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Dear Fellow Shareholdersand Employees

am extremely proud of MediacomS accomplishments in 2008 In many respects it was Mediacoms best year ever

and with the economy in state of free fall our results were even more remarkable We exceeded our own expectations

operationally and financially allowing us to raise our external guidance to the marketplace on three different occasions

during the year Our key highlights included record customer additions revenues and Adjusted OIBDAa and our highest

annual growth rate in Adjusted OIBDA since 2002

Delivering solid performance in difficult economic conditions has been hallmark of the cable industry MediacomS

exceptional results in 2008 reflect the resilience of our subscription-based business model and the tremendous value

consumers find in our products and services Of course our customers are no different from other Americans which

means many of them are struggling financially and worried about the future Although they may be cutting back on

discretionary spending out of necessity or as precaution its clear that our customers know that they are getting their

moneys worth with Mediacoms double and triple-play bundles

In 2008 the marketplace took note of Mediacoms superior results as our stock was among the best performers in the

media cable telecom and related technology sectors With our debt leverage reduced our cost of debt capital at

reasonable levels and our capital spending expected to decline significantly in 2009 we are better positioned today than

ever before to produce solid returns for our shareholders despite the uncertain macro-economic environment In the

coming year we foresee tenfold increase in our after-tax free cash flow per share with the prospect of double-digit

growth rates in the years beyond Though cautious about our operating results in this deepening recession am confident

in our ability to enhance long-term
shareholder value

2008 Highlights

record-setting increase in revenue generating units or RGUs drove in large part our revenue and Adjusted
OIBDA

growth of 8.4% and 10.7% respectively The addition of 222000 RGUs beat our 2007 growth by 67% as we had great

success selling the double and triple-play bundles of services Besides the savings they realize our customers like the

convenience and simplicity of dealing with one company and receiving one bill for their video high-speed Internet and

phone services At year-end 2008 bundled penetration had reached 48% of our customer relationships Moreover

demonstrating how far we have come in solidifying our competitive position in the video subscription market our basic

subscriber losses were just 6000the lowest level since 2002

In 2008 we focused on growing profitably We increased monthly revenue per basic subscriber by over 10% while our

efforts to contain costs benefitted from the third-party savings we negotiated for our high-speed data delivery and

customer care platforms This combination of factors helped us increase our Adjusted OIBDA margin to 36.5% At the

same time we continued to invest in our network delivery facilities preparing us for the 2009 broadcast television digital

transition and keeping us at the forefront of product innovation With much of the digital transition spending behind us

going forward we expect to see dramatic drop in annual capital expenditures from the $290 million we spent in 2008

fueling in major way significant jump in our free cash flow



Last year wrote that the credit markets were in state of disrepair Unfortunately that has proven to be major

understatement of the seriousness of problems facing the domestic financial system Luckily we found small window of

opportunity during the year and accessed the bank market in May 2008 raising $350 million under term loan facility

maturing in 2016 The credit markets effectively shut down soon thereafter but have shown some recent signs of thawing

for highly rated issuers However new credit facilities for non-investment grade companies like Mediacom continue to be

limited and expensive

Our long-standing disciplined approach to managing Mediacoms finances has put us in great position to weather the

current crisis We do not have any financing needs for at least the next two years given our expected free cash flow

generation and minimal scheduled debt repayments in the near term This is backstopped by over $760 million of unused

committed revolving lines of credit as of year-end 2008 Our cost of debt is now running at 6.0% per annum and recently

we secured favorable interest rate hedges to help us maintain low cost of debt in the foreseeable future Successfully

managing upward pressure on future interest expense will play major role in our ability to generate sustainable free cash

flow growth

Over the years we have been aggressive buyers of our stock without compromising our long-term deleveraging strategy

In September 2008 we agreed to buy out long-time major stockholder of Mediacom in transaction that closed in

February 2009 This transaction was structured as tax-free exchange in which we traded $110 million in cash and certain

non-strategic cable systems serving approximately 25000 subscribers for 28.3 million shares of our Class common stock

held by affiliates of Morris Communications Corporation Including this exchange in recent years we have repurchased

about 45% of our total outstanding shares and in the process returned to our shareholders over $335 million

Looking Forward

Looking ahead we are cautiously optimisticcautious because of the potential impact of tough economic times on our

customers and the financial markets but optimistic because of our array of broadband product offerings that give multiple

choices at great value to consumers our favorable competitive market positioning and our strengthened balance sheet

Our video high-speed Internet and phone services today are competitive and in most cases are market leaders Our

facilities-based triple-play offering of these services is now available across 92% of our 2.8 million homes far exceeding the

reach of the bundled offerings of any of our major competitors Our scalable fiber-rich infrastructure puts us in great position

to use our existing network to offer more faster and better services With network upgrades and rebuilds largely complete

capftal deployment will now focus on maximizing the efficiency of our infrastructure Ongoing recapture of analog capacfty and

the planned introduction of DOCSIS 3.0 technology for the high-speed Internet service will make our network even faster and

more capable enabling us to continue to give customers even more high-definftion TV programming and the ever-faster

Internet speeds they crave It will also help keep our product offerings highly differentiated from those of our competitors

Business services represent an exciting opportunity for us particularly within the market represented by small and

medium-sized commercial establishments and should prove to be an increasingly important contributor to our future



growth While we have been selling video and commercial high-speed data services to businesses for several years

beginning in March 2009 we launched across much of our footprint multi-line phone product as part of our suite of

business services The introduction of this new product should place us on even better footing in terms of our ability to

compete successfully with incumbent local phone companies

As locally-based business our deep commitment to the communities we serve is an essential part of what we do and

who we are Being good partner and good neighbor is quite simply good business personally believe that one of

our greatest contributions was taking the risks and making the investments needed to insure that the small towns and

cities we serve were not bypassed by the technological revolution that has marked our industry am proud that we have

made it possible for our communities to enjoy at affordable prices state-of-the-art video Internet and telephone services

that are at least the equal of those in the nations biggest cities

The credit for our record 2008 performance and our enduring positive community relationships belongs to the people of

Mediacom We operate 24 hours-a-day days-a-week with 4500 skilled dedicated individuals who take great care of

our customers and ensure that they have the best experience with Mediacom What is really important to me is the pride

that our employees take in representing us in the villages towns and cities in which they live and work Because of them

Mediacom is well-prepared to deliver the next generation of services that our customers are already beginning to demand

would like to express my sincere gratitude to William Morris Ill and Craig Mitchell for their contributions during

their many years of distinguished service on Mediacoms Board of Directors and for their unequivocal support throughout

our business association spanning over decade particularly would like to thank Mr Morris who as an early and strong

believer of our business strategy and in our management team made the most significant equity investment in Mediacom

which played critical part in our growth story On behalf of the Board and all of our employees wish the entire Morris

organization continued success

Finally thank you my fellow shareholders for your support as we navigate these turbulent economic times

Respectfully yours

Rocco Commisso

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mediacom Communications Corporation

May 2009

Definitions of Adjusted OIBDA and revenue generating units are set forth in the attached Annual Report on Form 0-K Free cash flow is defined as Adjusted OIBDA

less interest expense net cash taxes and capital expenditures
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NOTICE OF THE 2009 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To the Stockholders of Mediacom Communications Corporation

The 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Mediacom Communications Corporation
will be held at

Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP 1221 Avenue of the Americas 25th Floor New York New York at 200

p.m local time on Tuesday June 16 2009 for the following purposes

To elect six directors to serve for term of one year

To amend our Non-Employee Directors Equity
Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares of

our Class common stock reserved for issuance from 500000 to 1250000

To ratify the selection of PricewaterhouseCooPers LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal

year ending December 31 2009 and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or

postponement thereof

The record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is the close of business

on April 21 2009 The accompanying proxy statement contains additional information regarding the matters to be

acted on at the Annual Meeting

By Order of the Board of Directors

Joseph Young

Secretaiy

Middletown New York

May 2009

All stockholders are urged to attend the Annual Meeting in person However to ensure that your vote is

counted at the Annual Meeting please
vote as promptly as possible

You have three options for submitting

your vote before the Annual Meeting the Internet by telephone or by mailing your proxy or voting

instruction card



MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

100 Crystal Run Road

Middletown New York 10941

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE 2009 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On
June 16 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND THE ANNUAL MEETING

This proxy statement is being sent to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of

Directors of Mediacom Communications Corporation for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at

Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP 1221 Avenue of the Americas 25 Floor New York New York at 200

p.m local time on Tuesday June 16 2009 We invite you to attend in person

Distribution and Electronic Availability of Proxy Materials

In accordance with the SECs proxy delivery rules we intend to commence distribution on or about May

2009 of the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials the Notice of Internet Availability indicating that

our Notice of the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders our Proxy Statement and our 2008 Annual Report to

Stockholders will be made available at www.proxyvote.com This website will also provide stockholders with

instructions on how to vote their shares The Notice of Internet Availability also indicates how you may request

printed copies of our proxy materials including proxy card or voting instruction card We believe that this new

process
will reduce the environmental impact and lower our costs of printing and distributing our proxy materials

Voting Information

Record date

The record date for the Annual Meeting is April 21 2009 You may vote all shares of our common stock

that you owned as of the close of business on that date On April 21 2009 there were 40408597 shares of Class

common stock and 27001944 shares of Class common stock outstanding Each share of Class common stock

is entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted on at the Annual Meeting and each share of Class common stock

is entitled to ten votes

How to vote

There are four different ways you may cast your vote this year You may vote by

the Internet at the address provided on the Notice of Internet Availability or on each proxy card or

vote instruction card

telephone using the toll-free number listed on each proxy card if you are stockholder of record or

vote instruction card if your shares are held by bank broker or other nominee

marking signing dating and mailing each proxy card or vote instruction card and returning it in the

envelope provided If you return your signed proxy card or vote instruction card but do not mark the

boxes showing how you wish to vote your shares will be voted FOR proposals through or



attending the meeting if your shares are registered directly in your name on our books and not held

through broker bank or other nominee

If you are the registered shareholder that is if you hold your stock in your name you can vote by

telephone or electronically through the Internet by following the instructions provided on the Notice of Internet

Availability or on the proxy card

If your shares are held in street name that is they are held in the name of broker bank or other

nominee you will receive instructions with your materials that you must follow in order to have your shares voted

Please review your proxy or vote instruction card to determine whether you will be able to vote by telephone or

electronically

Revoking your proxy

You can revoke your proxy at any time before your shares are voted at the meeting by sending written

notice to Joseph Young Secretary Mediacom Communications Corporation 100 Crystal Run Road Middletown
New York 10941 ii submitting by mail telephone or the Internet another proxy dated as of later date or iii

voting in
person at the Annual Meeting Merely attending the Annual Meeting will not revoke your proxy Voting in

person at the Annual Meeting will replace any previous votes submitted by proxy

Voting Instructions

If you complete and submit your proxy voting instructions the persons named as proxies will follow your
instructions If you submit proxy voting instructions but do not direct how to vote on each item the persons named
as proxies will vote as the Board recommends on each proposal The persons named as proxies will vote on any
other matters properly presented at the Annual Meeting in accordance with their best judgment We have not

received notice of other matters that may be properly presented for voting at the Annual Meeting

Withholding your vote voting to abstain and broker nonvotes

In the election of directors you can withhold your vote for any of the nominees Withheld votes will be

excluded entirely from the vote and will have no effect on the outcome With regard to the other proposals you can

vote to abstain If you vote to abstain your shares will be counted as present at the meeting for purposes of that

proposal and
your vote will have the effect of vote against the proposal Broker nonvotes are proxies received

from brokers who in the absence of specific voting instructions from beneficial owners of shares held in brokerage

name have declined to vote such shares in those instances where discretionary voting by brokers is permitted

Broker nonvotes will not be counted for purposes of determining whether proposal has been approved

Votes required to hold the Annual Meeting

We need majority of the voting power of our Class common stock and Class common stock

outstanding on April 21 2009 present in person or by proxy to hold the Annual Meeting

Votes required to elect directors and to adopt other proposals

Directors will be elected by plurality of votes cast at the Annual Meeting The affirmative vote of

majority of the voting power of our Class common stock and Class common stock voting together as one class
that are present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to amend our Non-Employee Directors

Equity Incentive Plan and ii ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent auditors

for 2009



As of the record date Rocco Commisso beneficially owned approximately
87.6% of the voting power of

our Class common stock and Class common stock voting together as one class See Security Ownership of

Management and Directors Accordingly the affirmative vote of Mr Commisso alone is sufficient to adopt each of

the proposals to be submitted to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting We have been advised by Mr Commisso

that he intends to vote FOR all of the proposals set forth in the notice attached to this proxy statement

Other matters to be decided at the Annual Meeting

If any matters were to properly come before the Annual Meeting that are not specifically set forth on your

proxy and in this proxy statement the persons appointed to vote the proxies would vote on such matters in

accordance with their best judgment

Postponement or adjournment of the Annual Meeting

If the Annual Meeting were to be postponed or adjourned your proxy would still be valid and might be

voted at the postponed or adjourned meeting You would still be able to revoke your proxy until it was voted

Cost of Proxy Solicitation

We will pay the expenses of the preparation of our proxy materials and the solicitation by the Board of

Directors of your proxy Our directors officers and employees who will receive no additional compensation for

soliciting may solicit your proxy by telephone or other means



Proposal Election of Directors

Six directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting Each director will serve until the next annual meeting of

stockholders and until their successors have been elected and qualified At the meeting the
persons named in the

proxy will vote the shares covered therby for the election of the nominees named below to our Board of Directors

unless instructed to the contrary

Each nominee is currently director of our company Rocco Commisso and Mark Stephan have been

our directors since we were formed in November 1999 Thomas Reifenheiser Natale Ricciardi and Robert

Winikoff have been our directors since the completion of our initial public offering in February 2000 Scott

Seaton who has been director since April 22 2009 was identified as candidate for the Board by Rocco

Commisso our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Name of Nominee Age Principal Occupation and Business Experience

Rocco Commisso 59 Mr Commisso has 30 years of experience with the cable television industry

and has served as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since founding

our predecessor company in July 1995 From 1986 to 1995 he served as

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and director of Cablevision

Industries Corporation Prior to that time Mr Commisso served as Senior Vice

President of Royal Bank of Canadas affiliate in the United States from 1981
where he founded and directed specialized lending group to media and

communications companies Mr Commisso began his association with the

cable industry in 1978 at The Chase Manhattan Bank where he managed the

banks lending activities to communications firms including the cable industry

He serves on the board of directors and executive committees of the National

Cable Television Association and Cable Television Laboratories Inc and on

the board of directors of C-SPAN and the National Italian American

Foundation Mr Commisso holds Bachelor of Science in Industrial

Engineering and Master of Business Administration from Columbia

University

Thomas Reifenheiser 73 Mr Reifenheiser retired as Managing Director of JP Morgan Chase

overseeing the Global Media and Telecommunications Division in September

2000 after 38 years with JP Morgan Chase and its predecessors

Mr Reifenheiser is member of the board of directors of Cablevision Systems

Corporation Lamar Advertising Company and Citadel Broadcasting

Corporation

Natale Ricciardi 60 Mr Ricciardi has held various management positions with Pfizer Inc for the

past 37 years Mr Ricciardi joined Pfizer in 1972 and currently serves as

Senior Vice President Pfizer Inc and President/Team Leader Pfizer Global

Manufacturing with responsibility for all of Pfizers manufacturing and supply

activities He is member of the Pfizer Executive Leadership Team

Scott Seaton 49 Mr Seaton has been Partner of Londonderry Capital LLC financial

advisory firm focused on media and telecommunications companies since

April 2009 From 2002 to April 2009 he was Managing Director in the

Technology Media and Telecommunications investment banking group of

Bank of America Prior to that time Mr Seaton was Managing Director in

the investment banking department of Credit Suisse First Boston from 1996



Name of Nominee Age Principal Occupation and Business Experience

Mark Stephan
52 Mr Stephan has 22 years of experience with the cable television industry and

has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since

July 2005 Prior to that time he was Executive Vice President Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer since November 2003 and our Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since the commencement of our

operations in March 1996 Before joining us Mr Stephan served as Vice

President Finance for Cablevision Industries from July 1993 Prior to that

time he served as Manager of the telecommunications and media lending

group of Royal Bank of Canada

Robert Winikoff 62 Mr Winikoff has been partner of the law firm of Sonnenschein Nath

Rosenthal LLP since August 2000 Prior to that time he was partner of the

law firm of Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester Newman P.C for 20 years

Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP currently serves as our outside general

counsel and prior to such representation Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester

Newman P.C served as our outside general counsel from 1995

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors has an Audit Committee and Compensation Committee We are Controlled

Company as defined in Rule 4350c5 of The Nasdaq Stock Market because Rocco Commisso holds

approximately 87.6% of our voting power As Controlled Company we are exempt from having an independent

board of directors an independent compensation committee and an independent nominating committee Although

we have an independent
board of directors and an independent compensation committee our Board has determined

not to establish nominating committee nominees for election as directors are selected by our Board of Directors

Our Audit Committee consists of three directors Thomas Reifenheiser Chairman Natale Ricciardi

and Scott Seaton Our Board of Directors has determined that each member of our Audit Committee meets the

Nasdaq Marketplace Rule definition of independent for audit committee purposes Our Board of Directors has

also determined that Thomas Reifenheiser meets the SEC definition of an audit committee financial expert

Information regarding our Audit Committee and its functions and responsibilities is included in this proxy statement

under the caption Report of the Audit Committee below

Our Compensation Committee consists of two directors Natale Ricciardi Chairman and Thomas

Reifenheiser Our Board of Directors has determined that each member of our Compensation Committee meets the

Nasdaq Marketplace Rule definition of independent director for compensation committee purposes Each member

of our Compensation Committee is an outside director under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code and

non-employee director as defined in Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Our Compensation

Committee is responsible for approving the compensation for our chief executive officer and based on

recommendations made by our chief executive officer approving the compensation of other executive officers Our

Compensation Committee also administers our 2003 Incentive Plan and 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Our

Compensation Committee does not have charter

Each committee has the power to engage independent legal financial or other advisors as it may deem

necessary without consulting or obtaining the approval of our Board of Directors or any of our officers

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees

During 2008 there were nine meetings of our Board of Directors six meetings of our Audit Committee and

six meetings of our Compensation Committee Each of our directors attended at least 75% of the meetings of the

Board and the committees of the Board on which each director served during 2008



Director Independence

Our Board of Directors has determined that each of our non-employee directors Messrs Reifenheiser

Ricciardi Seaton and Winikofi who collectively constitute majority of our Board meets the general

independence criteria set forth in the Nasdaq Marketplace rules In addition as further required by the Nasdaq rules
our Board has made subjective determination as to each of the foregoing individuals that no relationships exist

that in the opinion of our Board would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the

responsibilities of director

Director Nominations and Qualifications

As noted above our Board of Directors has no nominating committee Our Board has determined that

given its relatively small size the function of nominating committee could be perf9rmed by our Board as whole
without unduly burdening the duties and responsibilities of our Board members Our Board does not currently have

charter or written policy with regard to the nominating process The nominations of the directors standing for

election at the 2009 Annual Meeting were unanimously approved by our Board of Directors

At this time we do not have formal policy with regard to the consideration of any director nominees
recommended by our stockholders because historically we have not received nominations from our stockholders and
the costs of establishing and maintaining procedures for the consideration of stockholder nominations would be

unduly burdensome However any recommendations received from stockholders will be evaluated in the same
maimer that potential nominees recommended by Board members management or other parties are evaluated Any
stockholder nominations proposed for consideration should include the nominees name and qualifications for Board

membership and should be addressed to Mark Stephan Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Mediacom Communications Corporation 100 Crystal Run Road Middletown NY 10941 We do not intend to treat

stockholder recommendations in any manner different from other recommendations

Qualifications for consideration as director nominee may vary according to the particular areas of

expertise being sought as complement to the existing Board composition However in making its nominations our
Board of Directors considers among other things an individuals business experience industry experience financial

background breadth of knowledge about issues affecting us time available for meetings and consultation regarding

company matters and other particular skills and experience possessed by the individual

Executive Sessions of Independent Directors

The independent members of our Board of Directors meet in executive session without any employee
directors or other members of management in attendance each time the full Board convenes for regularly
scheduled meeting and if the Board convenes special meeting the independent directors may meet in executive
session if the circumstances warrant

Code of Ethics

Our Audit Committee has adopted Code of Ethics applicable to our principal executive officer principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer We have made the Code of Ethics available on our website at

www.mediacomcc.com under the heading Governance-Corporate Governance Documents found under About
Us-Investor Relations

Stockholder Communication with Board Members

We maintain corporate contact information both telephone and electronic mail for use by stockholders on
our website www.mediacomcc.com under the heading About Us Investor Relations By following the Investor
Relations link stockholder will be given access to our telephone number and mailing address as well as link for



providing
email correspondence to Investor Relations Communications sent to Investor Relations and specifically

marked as communication for our Board will be forwarded to our Board or specific members of our Board as

directed in the stockholder communication In addition communications received via telephone for our Board are

forwarded to our Board by one of our officers

Board Member Attendance at Annual Meetings

Our Board of Directors does not have formal policy regarding attendance of directors at our annual

stockholder meetings All of our directors attended our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the election of each of the director nominees named herein



Proposal Amend Our Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan to Increase the Number of Shares
of Our Class Common Stock Reserved for Issuance from 500000 to 1250000

Our Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan was amended by our Board of Directors on April 21
2009 to increase the number of shares of Class common stock authorized under the plan from 500000 to

1250000 subject to the approval of our stockholders We believe that we have been successful in the past in

attracting and retaining qualified directors in part because of our ability to offer such persons options to purchase
Class common stock and other equity awards and the increase is necessary for us to continue to attract and retain

qualified directors

For description of the Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan and the securities that may be

granted thereunder including the tax status of awards thereunder see the section of this proxy statement entitled

Executive Compensation Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan

At April 22 2009 there were four non-employee directors participating or eligible to participate in our

Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan Information regarding equity granted to these directors Thomas
Reifenheiser Natale Ricciardi Scott Seaton and Robert Winikoff is set forth under the heading Director

Compensation

Assuming approval of this proposed amendment to our Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan and
after giving effect thereto as of April 22 2009 approximately 775000 shares would be available for future grants
under our Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan No determinations have been made regarding the non-

employee directors to whom grants will be made in the future under this plan or the terms of such grants

The affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the shares of our common stock
present in person or by

proxy and voting on this matter at the Annual Meeting is required for approval of this amendment to the Non-

Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends vote FOR approval of the amendment to the Non-

Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan



Proposal Ratify Appointment of Our Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent auditors for the 2009

fiscal year Although stockholder ratification of the Audit Committees action in this respect is not required the

Board of Directors considers it desirable for stockholders to pass upon such appointment

proposal will be presented at the Annual Meeting to ratif the Audit Committees appointment of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent auditors representative of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is

expected to attend the meeting and will have an opportunity to make statement if he or she so chooses The

representative will also be available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders

Fees

Fees for professional services provided by our independent auditors in each of the last two fiscal years in

each of the following categories are as follows

2008 2007

Audit Fees 300000 300.000

ALiditRelated Fees 43.U X5.UUfl

Tax Fees 13.000

AU Other Fees

1.356.000 1385.000

Audit fees are principally for annual audit of our consolidated financial statements quarterly reviews of

interim financial statements in our Form 10-Q reports and Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 work Audit-related fees are

principally for the audit of our 401k plan and due diligence activities and tax fees are principally for tax services

The Audit Committee has adopted policy that requires advance approval of all audit audit-related tax

services and other services performed by our independent auditor The policy provides for preapproval by the Audit

Committee of specifically defined audit and non-audit services Unless the specific service has been previously pre

approved with respect to that year the Audit Committee must approve the permitted service before the independent

auditor is engaged to perform it

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of Pricewaterhouse

Coopers LLP



Report of the Audit Committee

The functions of our Audit Committee the Committee are focused on three areas

the adequacy of the internal controls and financial reporting process
of Mediacom Communications

Corporation the Company and the reliability of its consolidated financial statements

the appointment compensation retention and oversight of the Companys independent auditors and

the Companys compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

We operate under written charter which has been approved by the Board of Directors The Company has

made the Audit Committee charter available on its website at www.mediacomcc.com under the heading

Governance Corporate Governance Documents found under About Us Investor Relations

We meet with management periodically to consider the adequacy of the Companys internal controls and

the objectivity of the Companys financial reporting We discuss these matters with the Companys independent

auditors and with appropriate financial personnel We regularly including during the course of each meeting of the

Committee meet privately with both the independent auditors and the Companys financial personnel each of

whom has unrestricted access to us We also appoint the independent auditors and review their performance and

independence from management In addition we review the Companys financing plans

Management is responsible for the financial reporting process including the system of internal control and

the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

The Companys independent accountants are responsible for auditing those financial statements Our responsibility

is to monitor and review these processes However we are not professionally engaged in the practice of accounting

or auditing and are not experts in the fields of accounting or auditing including with respect to auditor

independence The Committee relies without independent verification on the information provided to it and on the

representations made by management and the independent accountants

In this context we held six meetings during 2008 The meetings were designed among other things to

facilitate and encourage communication among us management the internal accountants and the Companys
independent accountants for fiscal year 2008 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP We discussed with the independent

accountants the overall scope and plans for their audit We also met with the independent accountants with and

without management present to discuss the results of their examinations and their evaluations of the Companys
internal controls We reviewed and discussed with the independent accountants the Companys compliance in

establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting as required

by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

We reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2008 with management and PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

We also discussed with the independent accountants matters required to be discussed with audit committees

under generally accepted auditing standards including among other things matters related to the conduct of the

audit of the Companys consolidated fmancial statements and the matters required to be discussed by Statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 as amended Communication with Audit Committees

We have received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent accountants required by the

applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent

accountants communications with the Committee concerning independence and we discussed with the independent

accountants their independence from the Company When considering PricewaterhouseCoopers LLPs
independence the Committee considered whether their provision of services to us beyond those rendered in

connection with their audit and review of the Companys consolidated financial statements was compatible with

maintaining their independence We also reviewed among other things the amount of fees paid to

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit and non-audit services

10



Based on our review and these meetings discussions and reports and subject to the limitations on our role

and responsibilities referred to above and in the Committee charter we recommended to the Board of Directors that

the Companys audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2008 be included in

the Companys annual report on Form 10-K for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission

April 212009 Members of the Audit Committee

Thomas Reifenheiser Chairman

Natale Ricciardi

11



Security Ownership of Management and Directors

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of our common stock as of Apnl

22 2009 by

each director

each named executive officer in the summary compensation table in this proxy statement and

all directors and executive officers as group

The amounts and percentages of common stock beneficially owned are reported on the basis of regulations

of the Securities and Exchange Commission governing the determination of beneficial ownership of securities

Under the rules of the SEC person
is deemed to be beneficial owner of security if that person has or shares

voting power which includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of such security or investment power
which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of such security person is also deemed to be

beneficial owner of any securities of which that person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days

of April 22 2009 Under these rules more than one person may be deemed beneficial owner of the same securities

and
person may be deemed to be beneficial owner of securities as to which such person has no economic interest

Unless otherwise indicated below each beneficial owner named in the table has sole voting and sole

investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned subject to community property laws where

applicable Holders of Class common stock are entitled to one vote per share while holders of Class common

stock are entitled to ten votes per share Holders of both classes of common stock will vote together as single class

on all matters presented for vote except as otherwise required by law Percentage of beneficial ownership of Class

common stock is based on 40408597 shares of Class common stock outstanding and percentage of beneficial

ownership of Class common stock is based on 27001944 shares of Class common stock outstanding Unless

otherwise indicated the address of each beneficial owner of more than 5% of Class or Class common stock is

Mediacom Communications Corporation 100 Crystal Run Road Middletown New York 10941 Except as noted

no shares of common stock held by our directors or executive officers have been pledged

Class Common Stock Class Common Stock

Percent Percent Percent of

Name of of of Vote as

Beneficial Owner Stock Options3 Class Stock Options Class Single Class

Directors

Rocco CominissoW 1145042 819149 2.3% 27001 1398892 100.0% 87.6%

Mark Stephan 100194 172236 2122226

Thomas Reifenheiser 28750 75500

Natale Ricciardi 28750 75500

Scott Seaton 68344

Robert Winikoff 44950 85500

Named Executive Officers7

John Pascarelli 103862 201345

ItaliaCornniissoWeinand 226279 140140

Joseph Young 75513 144750

All Executive Officers

and Directors as

Group 12 persons 1001787 2066437 7.1% 27001944 1398892 100.0% 87.7%

Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1%
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Pursuant to Significant Stockholder Agreement dated September 2008 Mr Commisso has agreed not to consummate

prior to September 2010 an extraordinary transaction involving our company without the recommendation of majority

of either the disinterested directors that are members of our Board of Directors or ii the members of special

committee of our Board consisting of disinterested directors An extraordinary transaction means any transaction in which

Mr Commisso in his capacity as stockholder directly or indirectly seeks to effect any acquisition of material assets

of our company any buyout transaction or any recapitalization restructuring liquidation dissolution or other

extraordinary transaction with respect to our company

Includes 1849 shares held by Mr Commissos wife Mr Commisso disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares

Represent options that are currently exercisable or will be exercisable within 60 days of April 22 2009

Includes 52000 shares issuable upon exercise of options held by Mr Commissos wife Mr Commisso disclaims

beneficial ownership of these shares

Includes 212222 shares owned of record by another stockholder for which Mr Commisso holds an irrevocable proxy
representing all remaining shares of Class common stock outstanding Includes 3000000 shares held by Mr Commisso
that have been pledged

Such beneficial owner has granted Mr Commisso an irrevocable proxy with respect to such shares

Excluding Rocco Commisso our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mark Stephan our Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer who are named above
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Securities Owned by Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table reports beneficial ownership of our common stock of the only persons known by us to

beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock other than Rocco Commisso based on statements on

Schedule 13G filed by these holders with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Number of

Shares of Class Percent of Percent of Vote

Name of Beneficial Owner Common Stock Class As Single Class

Neuberger Bennan jD 6.49531G 1%

Columbia Wanger Asset Management L.P 47250001 1.7%1.5%

Based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed jointly by Neuberger Berman Inc and Neuberger Berman LLC on

March 10 2009 Neuberger Berman Inc and Neuberger Berman LLC have sole power to vote or direct the vote of

4510010 shares of our Class common stock and iishared power to dispose of or direct the disposition of 6495310

shares of our Class common stock The address of Neuberger Berman Inc and Neuberger Berman LLC is 605 Third

Avenue New York New York 10158

Based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed by Columbia Wanger Asset Management L.P on March 2009

Columbia Wanger Asset Management L.P has sole power to vote or direct the vote of and has sole power to dispose of or

direct the disposition of 4750000 shares of our Class common stock The shares reported include shares held by

Columbia Acorn Trust Massachusetts business trust that is advised by Columbia Wanger The address of Columbia

Wanger Asset Management L.P is 227 West Monroe Street Suite 3000 Chicago IL 60606

Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Throughout this proxy statement our Chief Executive Officer the CEO as well as the other individuals

included in the Summary Compensation Table on page 20 are referred to as the named executive officers

Overview of Our Compensation Program Philosophy and Process

To maximize stockholders returns we believe we have to attract motivate and retain highly-skilled and

effective executives who can achieve long-term success in an increasingly competitive business environment Our

executive compensation program is based upon the following objectives

drive executives toward accomplishment of our financial operational and strategic goals

align executive and stockholder interests through long-term equity plans

allow us to attract and retain executives to effectively execute our strategy and

provide compensation package that recognizes individual contributions as well as our overall

business results

The Compensation Committee the Committee of the Board of Directors has primary responsibility for

overseeing the design development and implementation of the compensation program for the CEO and the other

named executive officers Its members are independent directors as defined under NASDAQ Stock Market rules

outside directors as defmed in Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code and non-employee directors as

defined in Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Compensation decisions are usually made early in the fiscal year The Committee evaluates our financial

and operational performance for the prior fiscal year against pre-established goals and objectives and determines

annual bonus and equity incentive awards of our named executive officers with respect to that performance Also at

these meetings base salaries and target and maximum annual cash bonus and equity incentive awards together with

their corresponding financial and operational goals are approved for the current fiscal year
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Compensation for each of the named executive officers other than the CEO is approved by the Committee

in consultation with the CEO and is based on the CEOs recommendations These named executives do not play

role in their own compensation determination other than discussing individual performance objectives with the

CEO Along with the approval of compensation for the other named executive officers the Committee evaluates the

performance of the CEO and determines CEO compensation in light of the goals and objectives of our compensation

program

Elements Used to Achieve Compensation Objectives

Our executive compensation program is designed to provide balanced mix of fixed and at-risk

compensation that is weighted primarily towards variable components linked to the attainment of specific financial

and operational goals Our program also allows for periodic grants of long-term equity awards that vest only after

several
years

of an executives service to promote their retention and their focus on our longer-term goals and

objectives To that end the principal components of our named executive officers compensation are

base salary

annual cash bonus awards tied to specific performance goals

annual equity incentive awards in the form of restricted stock units RSUs and stock options also

based on attainment of specific performance goals and

long-term equity awards in the form of cliff-vested RSUs and stock options designed to strengthen

retention and focus executives on our longer-term goals and objectives

In determining the appropriate balance between annual bonuses and equity incentive awards the

Committee considers our historical compensation structures and the competitive market conditions we face to recruit

and retain senior management The Committee also apportions more weight toward the performance-based

components of annual bonus and equity incentive awards when it determines the CEOs compensation

Link Compensation to Performance

Our executive compensation program provides for annual cash bonus and equity incentive awards that are

linked to performance The objective is to compensate individuals annually based on the achievement of specific

annual goals that the Committee believes contribute to the growth of long-term stockholder value The Committee

establishes target and maximum financial and operational goals that correspond to target and maximum incentive

awards

In early 2008 the CEO made recommendations to the Committee that they use certain financial and

operational measures to guide and determine compensation for the year After discussions with the CEO the

Committee accepted most of the CEOs recommendations except for upward adjustments to the maximum

performance goals affecting annual growth rates in adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization

and revenue generating units as defined below

Cash bonus payments and equity awards under our 2008 incentive plan were principally tied to growth in

our operating income before depreciation and amortization and non-cash compensation charges Adjusted

OIBIDA ii our revenues and iii our revenue generating units or RGUs which represent the sum of basic

subscribers and digital high-speed data and phone customers

The Committee has selected these key measures principally because it believes that investors use them to

evaluate our financial performance Among these measures as noted below the Committee placed greater

importance on Adjusted OIBDA growth because it believes it is the most critical component in determining our

performance and is the most common measure of performance employed in the cable and other capital-intensive

industries non-GAAP financial measure Adjusted OIBDA excludes the significant level of non-cash depreciation

and amortization
expense

that results from the capital intensive nature of our business and intangible assets

recognized in acquisitions we have made Our Board and the Committee use this measure in evaluating our overall

financial performance and management uses it to evaluate our financial performance across our markets and to

allocate resources and capital We believe that Adjusted O1BDA is also useful to investors because it provides them
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measure that can be used to analyze value and compare companies in our industiy which may have different

depreciation and amortization policies as well as different non-cash share based compensation programs

For 2008 the Committee established the following target performance goals for the annual cash bonuses

and equity incentive awards annual growth rates for revenues and Adjusted OIBDA equal to the midpoint of our

external guidance for the year of 6.5% ii annual RGU additions of 150000 and iii other specified corporate and

operational goals mainly in the areas of product extensions new product launches network and other infrastructure

enhancements and customer service and cost control initiatives that were reasonably achievable Maximum

performance goals for 2008 were set by the Committee for annual growth in revenues Adjusted OIBDA and RGUs

of 7.5% 8.0% and 190000 respectively The Committee also detennined that the weightings of the performance

goals were as follows 20% to revenue growth 40% to Adjusted OIBDA growth 25% to RGU growth and 15% to

other corporate and operational objectives

Before the award of any annual cash bonus and equity incentive the Committee reviews the fiscal year

operating and financial results and other performance data with the CEO and determines the extent to which these

goals have been achieved Consistent with our compensation objectives discussed above in determining the actual

amounts of the annual cash bonus and equity awards the Committee reserves the flexibility to respond to and adjust

for changes in the business and economic environment and individual accomplishments performance and other

circumstances

Our financial and operating performance in 2008 was strong despite worsening economic conditions later

in the year We exceeded the maximum performance goals in the three objective categories by generating record

setting unit growth in RGUs of 222000 an 8.4% increase in revenues and 10.6% growth in Adjusted OIBDA our

highest rate of growth in six years Our performance allowed us to revise our external financial guidance upward

three times throughout the year In addition the Committee considered that we successfully maintained high

degree of financial flexibility reflecting significant liquidity in the form of available revolving credit commitments

relatively low cost of debt and very manageable near term debt maturities As result in its evaluation of our

overall 2008 performance the Committee determined that we met the maximum performance goals and

consequently granted annual incentive compensation at or near the maximum incentive level to the named

executive officers as noted in the commentary below

Annual Cash Compensation

Base salary Base salaries provide an underlying level of compensation security to executives and allow us

to attract competent executive talent and maintain stable management team Base salaries reflect the executives

position and role with some variation for individual factors such as experience and performance Decisions

regarding salary increases primarily take into account the executives current and past salary the executives

performance any increase in the executives duties and responsibilities and the levels of achievement of our overall

performance goals Base salaries are reviewed annually however the Committee uses its discretion in determining

if an increase in base salary is warranted in light of all circumstances Mr Commissos salary was not increased in

2008 The other named executive officers base salaries were increased 4%-6% effective January 2008 to the

amounts shown in the Summary Compensation Table on page 20

In light of the severe economic downturn underway the CEO recommended to the Committee that all base

salaries in 2009 be frozen at prior year
levels for senior executive officers including the named executive officers

The Committee accepted and approved the CEOs recommendation to freeze such base salaries Thus 2009 base

salaries of our named executive officers remain at the level shown in the Summary Compensation Table on page 20

Cash Bonus Our cash bonus plan provides variable element to annual cash compensation that is tied to

the achievement of specified financial and operating results This plan puts significant amount of annual cash

compensation at risk and provides our executives with bonus opportunity that recognizes their senior level

responsibilities and duties and the competitive environment in which we must recruit and retain our senior

management

In determining Mr Commissos annual bonus the Committee takes into account his responsibilities as both

our Chairman and CEO For 2008 the Committee established target and maximum bonus awards for Mr Commisso

of 75% and 150% respectively expressed as percentage of 2008 base salary Based on its determination that the
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CEOs performance met the maximum incentive level the Committee approved bonus of $1275000 which

represented 150% of Mr Commissos 2008 base salary

For 2008 the Committee established target and maximum bonus awards for our other named executive

officers of 30% and 45% respectively expressed as percentage
of 2008 base salary Based on its determination

that the other named officers performance met the maximum incentive level the Committee approved for each of

such named officers dollar amount equal to range of 47% to 49% of his or her respective 2008 base salary

These percentage levels awarded to the other named executives slightly exceeded the maximum bonus guidelines

but the Committee determined that this was warranted given our 2008 performance

The annual cash bonuses awarded to the named executive officers for 2008 and paid in March 2009 are

shown in the Summary Compensation Table on page 20 under the column heading Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Compensation

Equity Incentive Compensation

Stock options and RSUs Our equity incentive compensation is designed to ensure that our named

executive officers have continuing stake in our long-term success and to align their interests with those of

stockholders By using combination of stock options and RSUs that vest over time or vest at the end of period we

believe we can effectively balance our multiple objectives of focusing the named executive officers on increasing

stockholder value rewarding their annual performance and retaining their services for the long term

RSUs in combination with stock options promote our goal of retention as well as provide direct

alignment to our share price and our stockholders Because each RSU is equal in value to share of our Class

common stock the units will have value as long as our stock has value subject to the satisfaction of vesting

requirements In this regard RSUs serve both to reward and retain our executives In contrast stock options act as

motivational tool because they only have intrinsic value to the extent the price of our stock on the date of exercise

exceeds the exercise price on grant date and are an effective compensation element only if the stock price grows

over the term of the award

We also use both pro-rata vesting and end-of-period vesting also known as cliff vesting of equity

compensation for purposes of rewarding annual performance and maintaining effective retention measures that will

help us achieve our long-term compensation objectives Pro-rata vesting is equal vesting over multi-year period

and gives named executive officers continuous pay for performance Cliff vesting is full vesting after specified

period of service and is designed to promote longer term retention of our named executive officers

The Committee believes that the combination of RSUs and stock options together with their multi-year and

cliff vesting requirements not only encourages retention of our named executive officers but also instills in them

longer-term perspective

Annual Equity Incentive Awards For 2008 the Committee established target and maximum annual equity

awards for Mr Commisso of 185% and 270% respectively expressed as percentage
of 2008 base salary Based

on its determination that the CEOs 2008 performance met the maximum incentive level and using the fair value of

the equity awards at the time of such evaluation the Committee in 2009 approved an equity award for Mr

Commisso equal to 265% of his 2008 base salary

For 2008 the Committee established annual target and maximum equity awards for our other named

executive officers as follows expressed as percentage
of 2008 base salary Messrs Stephan and Pascarelli 90%

and 135% and Ms Commisso Weinand and Mr Young 70% and 105% respectively Based on its determination

that the other named executive officers 2008 performance met the maximum incentive level and using the fair

value of the equity
awards at the time of such evaluation the Committee in 2009 approved equity awards for these

executives as follows Messrs Stephan and Pascarelli each at 133% of their respective 2008 base salaries and Ms

Commisso Weinand and Mr Young each at 102% of their respective 2008 base salaries

The equity awards noted above for each of the named executive officers fell slightly short of the applicable

maximum equity awards because of the change in fair value from the date the recommendation was made to the

Committee and the actual grant date Also the Committee approved equity grants reflecting an approximate equal
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split between stock options and RSUs based on fair value on the grant date which is generally consistent with past

years

The following table details the grant date fair value of the stock option and RSU awards granted to our

named executive officers as annual equity incentive in February 2009 for the 2008 fiscal year and those granted in

March 2008 for the 2007 fiscal year

Annual Equity-Based Incentive Compensation
Name of Executive For Fiscal 2008 For Fiscal 20072

Rocco Commisso 2253129 1237697
Mark Stephan 466938 238 570
John Pascarelli 447188 229816
Italia Commisso Weinand 259404 137895
Joseph Young 259404 137895

Represents grant date fair value of stock option and RSU awards granted in February 2009 as follows Mr Commisso
received 510000 stock options and 290000 RSUs Mr Stephan received 102000 stock options and 60000 RSUs Mr
Pascarelli received 102000 stock options and 55000 RSUs and Ms Commisso Weinand and Mr Young each received

59000 stock options and 32000 RSUs RSUs were valued at the closing price of our Class common stock on the grant

date and options were valued as of the date of grant using the Black Scholes method based on the assumptions disclosed in

Note to our consolidated financial statements in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

Represents grant date fair value of stock option and RSU awards granted in March 2008 which are shown in the 2008
Grants of Plan-Based Awards table on page 21

The stock options become exercisable in three equal annual installments in the case of Mr Commisso and
in four equal annual installments in the case of the other named executives beginning one year after the grant date
and have maximum ten-year term Each RSU granted will vest and convert into one share of our Class common
stock in three equal annual installments in the case of Mr Commisso and in four equal annual installments in the

case of the other named executives beginning one year after the grant date In recognition of Mr Commissos dual

roles of Chairman and CEO the Committee has traditionally approved vesting schedule that is one-year shorter
than the vesting schedules of our other named executive officers

Long Term Equity Awards Another key element of our compensation program is long-term equity awards
that are provided on selective basis as an incentive to attract and retain executives and conditioned upon the

recipients continued employment with us throughout multi-year period In November 2008 based on the CEOs
recommendation the Committee approved long-term equity awards for the named executive officers other than the

CEO along with certain other senior managers These November 2008 grants which comprised options and RSUs
are shown in the 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table on page 21 and are subject to four-year cliff vesting The
Committee last approved similar long-term equity awards for the named executive officers other than the CEO in

February 2005 which awards were also subject to four-year cliff vesting These 2005 equity awards vested in

February 2009 The fair value of the November 2008 grants represented about 65% of the fair value of the February
2005 grants

Refer to the Option and RSU Awards sections under Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of

Control found below for vesting rights and forfeiture conditions with respect to the named executive officers stock

options and RSUs

Securities Trading Policies Our insider trading policy prohibits any executive officer together with his or
her family members from engaging in any transaction involving our securities including stock plan transaction
such as an option exercise or gift loan pledge or hedge contribution to trust or any other transfer without first

obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from our Chief Financial Officer or General Counsel This assures that the

executives will not trade in our securities at time when in possession of inside information In addition our insider

trading policy prohibits any executive officer from engaging in short sales of our securities and in transactions in

publicly traded options such as puts calls and other derivative securities
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Policy on Recovery The equity awards are subject to restrictive covenants in favor of our company They

provide for forfeiture of the award and any shares then in the possession
of the executive or his or her heirs or

members of his or her immediate family that were acquired on exercise of any similar award granted prior to the

determination that the executive engaged in activities that may result in such forfeiture The activities that could

result in forfeiture include competing with our company soliciting employees to leave the employ of our company

breach of confidentiality obligations making negative or derogatory statements about our company or acts of

personal dishonesty involving personal profit In addition in the event of restatement of our financial statements

we are subject to the forfeiture requirements of Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Retirement and Other Benefits

We have no retirement benefit program for the named executive officers except for our 401k program that

is available to all of our employees Our executives also may participate in health and welfare programs generally

available to all of our employees including medical and dental coverage flexible spending accounts and other

benefit programs generally applicable to salaried and hourly employees

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

We provide named executive officers with limited perquisites that the Committee believes are reasonable

and consistent with our overall compensation program to better enable us to attract and retain superior employees for

key positions The Committee periodically reviews the levels of perquisites and other personal benefits provided to

named executive officers

Mr Commisso is entitled to an amount of up to $100000 to cover his choice of perquisites and fringe

benefits which can include automobile reimbursement ii country club or other membership reimbursement

iii personal estate tax or financial planning reimbursement iv company aircraft reimbursement and any tax

liability reimbursement that results from the use of the foregoing allowances The other named executive officers are

provided the use of company automobiles or are otherwise given equal value These amounts are included in the

Summary Compensation Table on page 20

Tax Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code limits deductions for certain executive compensation in

excess of $1 million for the taxable year Certain types of compensation in excess of $1 million are deductible only

if they meet certain requirements While the Committee will continue to give due consideration to the deductibility

of compensation payments on future compensation arrangements with the companys executive officers the

Committee will make itscompensation decisions based upon an overall determination of what it believes to be in the

best interests of the company and its stockholders and deductibility will be only one among number of factors

used by the Committee in making its compensation decisions Accordingly we may enter into compensation

arrangements under which payments are not deductible under Section 162m portion of Mr Commissos

compensation will be non-deductible under Section 162m

Report of the Compensation Committee

We the members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors have reviewed and discussed

with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section Based on this review and discussion we have

recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy

statement

Members of the Compensation Committee

Natale Ricciardi Chairman
Thomas Reifenheiser
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Summary Compensation Tab1e

Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Awards2 Awards5 Compensation Compensatio5 Total

Rocco Comnsisso 2008 $850000 588215 669294 1275000 95500 3478009
Chairman and 2007 $850000 376638 689.350 510000 80041 2506029
Chief Executive Officer 2006 $850000 110211 $1045159 892500 74866 2972736

Mark Stephan 2008 $350000 258.295 109.693 165000 22.750 905738
Executive Vice President and 2007 $330000 220.396 109056 79000 17500 755.952

chief Financial OffIcer 2006 5295.000 190339 104725 120000 17500 727564

No bonus awards were made except for performance-based bonus awards under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation We have no

pension or deferred compensation plans other than our 401k plan

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the applicable fiscal year for the fair

value of restricted stock units RSUs granted in 2008 as well as prior fiscal years in accordance with SFAS 123R and do not

correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers The amounts shown exclude the impact of

estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions The fair value of the RSUs was calculated using the closing price of our

Class common stock on the date of grant For additional information refer to note of our consolidated financial statements in our
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the SEC See the 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards
table below for information on stock awards

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the applicable fiscal year for the fair

value of stock options granted in 2008 as well as prior fiscal years in accordance with SFAS 123R and do not correspond to the actual

value that will be recognized by the named executive officers The amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to

service-based vesting conditions For additional information on the valuation assumptions with respect to the 2008 grants refer to note

of our consolidated financial statements in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the SEC
For information on the valuation assumptions with respect to grants made prior to 2008 refer to the note on Stockholders Equity of our

consolidated financial statements in the Form 10-K for the respective fiscal year See the 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table below
for information on options granted

Amounts in this column represent annual performance-based bonuses earned in the year stated by the named executive officers under our
annual incentive plan and paid in the first quarter of the following year

This column includes payments for company-leased automobiles or allowance for personal car use for the named executive officers

other than the CEO Mr Stephan $15000 Mr Pascarelli $14616 Ms Commisso Weinand $14401 and Mr Young $12024
company matching contributions to the 401k plan Mr Stephan $7750 and Ms Commisso Weinand $2531 and perquisites and
other payments for Mr Commisso comprising transportation related reimbursement $45651 personal tax preparation reimbursement

$12300 country club fees and dues reimbursement $6645 and reimbursement covering the tax liability for such perquisites

$30904

Italia Connnisso

Senior Vice Presideni $245000

Programming and Human Resources $230000

2008

2007

2006

/L3 165...

168684 78150 59000 15171 566005
146142 76760 80000 13929 546831
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2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The table below provides information about equity and non-equity awards granted to our named executive

officers in 2008

Exercise

or Base

Price of

Represents estimated annual performance-based bonus awards for the named executive officers under our 2008 cash bonus plan The

actual amounts earned with respect to these bonuses for 2008 are included in the Summary Compensation Table for 2008 under the Non

Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column Bonus amounts in 2008 were determined based on the achievement of specified financial

and operational objectives as described in the CDA There is no specific
threshold payout amounts specified in our non-equity incentive

plan because each perfonnance variable that factors into our compensation plan could generate cash bonus

Represents RSU that upon vesting converts into one share of our Class common stock Such grants to our named executive officers

were made under our 2003 Incentive Plan For Mr Commisso the RSUs subject to each award will vest in three equal installments

beginning on March 19 2009 For the other named executives the RSUs subject to the March 2008 award will vest equally over

four year period beginning on March 2009 and ii the November 12 2008 award will vest on November 12 2012

Represents shares of our Class common stock underlying stock option awards granted to our named executive officers under our 2003

Incentive Plan For Mr Commisso the options subject to each award will vest in three equal installments beginning on March 19 2008

For the other named executives the options subject to the March 2008 award will vest equally over four year period beginning on

March 2009 and ii the November 12 2008 award will vest on November 12 2012

This column shows the exercise price for the stock options granted and the grant date per unit value of RSUs which was the closing price

of our Class common stock on the grant date

This colunm shows the full grant date fair value of RSU5 and stock options under SFAS 123R granted to the named executive officers in

2008 For RSUs fair value is calculated using the closing price of our Class common stock on the grant date of $4.31 for Mr Commisso

and $4.37 for the other named executive officers grant on March 2008 and $3.88 for the grant on November 12 2008 For stock

options fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes value on the grant date of $2.10 for Mr Commisso and $2.19 for the other named

executive officers grant on March 2008 and $1.94 for the grant on November 12 2008 The fair value shown for stock awards and

option awards are determined in accordance with SFAS 23R For additional information on the valuation assumptions refer to note of

our consolidated financial statements in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the SEC

All Other All Other

Stock Option

Estimated Future Payouts Awards Awards

Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Number of Number of

Awards Shares of Securities

Stock or Underlying

Grant Date

Fair Value of

Stock and

On
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End

The following table provides information on the holdings of option and stock awards by the named
executive officers as of December 31 2008 This table includes unexercised and unvested option awards and
unvested RSUs The vesting schedules for these grants are disclosed in the footnotes to this table The market value

of the stock awards is based on the $4.30 closing share price of our Class common stock as of December 31
2008

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of

Securities Securities Number of

Underlying Underlying Shares or Units Market Value of

Unexercised Unexercised of Stock That Share or Units of

Options Options Option Exercise Option Have Not Stock That Have
Name of Executive ExercisabIe Unexcercisabl Price Expiration Date Vested0 Not Vested

Rocco Commisso 324000 4.31 3/18/18 129000 554700
88000 176.000 8.02 3/21/17 74.000

09
318200

96667 48333
161

5.83 3/30/12 25000 107.500

300000 6.29 3/9/11

450000 8.80 12/30/13

987041 19.00 2/3/10

Mark Stephan 80000 3.88 11/11/18 80000 344.000

59000a 4.37 3/1/18 2500022 107.500

10000 30000
10

8.00 2/22/17 12000 1.600

15000 1500011 5.66 3/1/12 600025 25800
22 500 7.500

02
5.42 2/24/11 130000

26
55 9.000

20000 8.02 2/25/14

40000 7.58 11/28/13

20000 17.75 2/26/11

4986 19.00 2/3/10

John Pascarelli 80000 3.88 11/11/18 80000
21

344000
57000 4.37 3/1/18 24000

23
103200

10000 30000 8.00 2/22/17 12000 024
1600

15000 i50OO 5.66 3/1/12 60O0 25800
22500 7500 5.42 2/24/11 130000

26
559000

20000 8.02 2/25/14

40000 7.58 11/28/13

15000 17.75 2/26/11

39595 19.00 2/3/10

Italia Commisso 60000 3.88 1111/18 60000
75

258.000
Weinand 35000 4.37 3/1/18 14000 60200

7.000 21000
15

8.00 222/17 9000
29

38700
10.000 10000

16
5.66 3/1/12 4500

50
19350

16 500 5500
17

5.42 2/24/I 100000
31

430000
15000 8.02 2/25/14

30000 7.58 11/28/13

15000 17.75 2/26/11

20390 19.00 2/3/10

JosephE.Young 60000 3.88 11/11/18 60000 258000
35000 4.37 3/1/18 I4000 60200

7000 210O0 8.00 2/22/17 900029 38700
10000 10000

016
566 3/1/12 4500

30
19350

16500 5500 5.42 2/24/11 100OOO0 430000
15000 8.02 2/25/14

30000 7.58 11/28/13

40000 15.20 11/2611

Represents underlying shares of Class common stock unless otherwise indicated

Represents underlying shares of Class common stock which were granted to Mr Commisso pursuant to his employment agreement
Shares of Class common stock are convertible on one-for-one basis for shares of Class common stock without payment of any
conversion price

Represents 38149 shares of Class common stock and 948892 shares of Class common stock the shares of Class common stock
were granted to Mr Commisso as part of our initial public offering in 2000

108000 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 19 2009 2010 and 2011
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88000 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 22 2009 and 2010

48333 shares underlying the option vest on March 30 2009

80000 shares underlying the option vest on November 12 2012

14750 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 2009 2010 2011 and 2012

95 14250 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 2009 2010 2011 and 2012

10
10000 shares underlying the option vest on each of Februaiy 23 2009 2010 and 2011

ID 7500 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 12009 and 2010

12
7500 shares underlying the option vest on February 24 2009

13
60000 shares underlying the option vest on November 12 2012

14
8750 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 2009 2010 2011 and 2012

15 7000 shares underlying the option vest on each of February 23 20092010 and 2011

16
5000 shares underlying the option vest on each of March 2009 and 2010

D7
5500 shares underlying the option vest on February 24 2009

18
43000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 19 20092010 and 2011

19
37000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 23 2009 and 2010

20
25000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on March 30 2009

80000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on November 122012

22
6250 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 22009 2010 2011 and 2012

23
6000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 2009 20102011 and 2012

24 4000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of February 23 2009 2010 and 2011

25
3000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 2009 and 2010

26
130000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on February 24 2009

27
60000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on November 12 2012

28
3500 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 2009 2010 2011 and 2012

29
3000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of February 23 20092010 and 2011

30
2250 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on each of March 12009 and 2010

100000 of the shares subject to the RSU award vest on February 24 2009

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2008

The following table provides information for the named executive officers on the number of shares

acquired upon the vesting of stock awards in the form of RSUs in 2008 and the value realized at such time before

payment of any applicable withholding tax No options were exercised by the named executive officers in 2008

Stock Awards

Number of Shares Acquired on Value Realized on

Name of Executive Vesting Vesting

Rocco Comrnisso
62000 269920

Mark Stephan 7000 30630

John Pascarelli lffl 30630

Italia Commisso Weinand
5250 22973

Joseph Young
5250 22973

These amounts do not necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers

23



Agreements with Our Named Executive Officers

The following is description of selected terms of the agreements that we have entered into with our
named executive officers as such terms relate to the compensation reported and described in this proxy statement

Employment Agreement with Mr Commisso

As of December 28 2003 we entered into an employment arrangement with Rocco Commisso which
provided for an annual base salary of $800000 In 2006 the Committee approved an increase to his salary to

$850000 effective January 2006 which remains in effect Mr Commisso is entitled to participate in all

compensation plans insurance programs and other benefit plans which we generally make available to our

employees and ii an annual amount of up to $100000 to cover reimbursement for and reimbursements of
perquisites and fringe benefits of his choice plus tax gross-ups on these amounts In addition in the event of his

permanent disability or death Mr Conimisso or his estate will receive payment of $4000000 in the event of his

permanent disability such payment would be payable over two
years

in equal monthly installments reduced by any
payments made to him under our disability plans or programs

Employment Agreements with Other Named Executive Officers

Mark Stephan John Pascarelli Italia Commisso Weinand and Joseph Young have entered into

employment arrangements setting forth the terms of their at-will employment with us Each of the employment
arrangements provides that if we terminate the employees employment without cause the employee is entitled to

severance payment equal to six months of base salary and precludes the employee from competing with us for

period of three years following termination

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

This section describes the payments and benefits that our named executive officers would have been
entitled to had their employment been terminated under the circumstances described below on December 31 2008

Cash Payments Our annual cash bonus policy provides that employees including our named executive

officers will receive their annual bonuses if they are employed with us on the date the bonus is paid Because this

section assumes that the termination of employment of our named executive officers occurred on December 31
2008 the description of potential payments due upon termination does not include those bonus amounts in

respect
of 2008

In the event of his permanent disability or death Mr Commisso or his estate will receive payment of
$4000000 subject to the terms and conditions noted above in his employment agreement

In the event named executive officer other than Mr Commisso is terminated without cause he or she is

entitled to lump sum severance payment equal to six months of base salary as follows Mr Stephan $175000Mr Pascarelli $167500 and Ms Commisso Weinand and Mr Young each $127500

Option and RSU Awards Options and RSUs become fully vested in the event the named executive officer

terminates employment on account of death or disability or in the event that within one year following change in

control the named executive officer other than Mr Commisso terminates employment at time when Mr
Commisso is not our CEO and the termination is initiated by the executive for good reason as described below or
is initiated by us for reasons other than for cause Options and RSUs for Mr Commisso become fully vested in the
event that within one year following change in control he terminates his employment for good reason or if his

termination of employment is initiated by us for reasons other than for cause The vesting of options and RSUs is

partially accelerated in the event the named executive officer is terminated by us other than for cause or terminates

voluntarily for good reason prior to change in control The number of options and RSUs affected by such
accelerated vesting is the number that would vest on the next regularly scheduled vesting date pro rated for the

portion of the period since the most recent prior regularly scheduled vesting date that elapsed prior to the
termination
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Under the option and RSU agreements good reason includes reduction in salary adverse change in

responsibilities or authority required relocation of more than 25 miles or discontinuance or other change in bonus

incentive or benefit plan that does or could adversely affect the executive

The table below shows the intrinsic value as of December 31 2008 of equity awards for which vesting

would have been accelerated as result of termination or change of control Intrinsic value was based on the closing

market price of our Class common stock minus in the case of stock options the exercise price On December 31

2008 the closing market share price of our Class common stock was $4.30

Upon DeathlDisability/Change in Control

Termination1 Without Cause or for Good Reason

Stock Options RSUsName of Executive Stock Options RSUs

RoccoB Commisso 980400 351269

Mark Stephan 33600 1087900 1.128 535709

John Pascarelli 33600 1083.600 1128 535709

Italia Commisso Weinand 25.200 806250 846 406689

Joseph Young 25200 806250 846 406689

Please see the above description of Option and RSU Awards for the conditions for accelerated vesting in change of control termination

Due to the number of factors that affect the nature and amount of any benefits provided upon the events

discussed above any actual amounts paid or distributed may be different Factors that could affect these amounts

include the timing during the year of any such event and the companys stock price

Director Compensation

Each non-employee director receives $30000 annual retainer and the Chairs of the Audit and

Compensation Committees receive additional annual retainers of $15000 and $10000 respectively Each non-

employee director who served on the Special Committee to review and approve the Exchange Agreement

transaction see Related Person Transactions on page 32 received pro
rated fee of $30000 per month This fee is

in addition to the annual retainer fees and committee chairman fees Messrs William Morris III and Craig

Mitchell our former directors were each paid $30000 annual retainers for their services in 2008 They resigned in

February 2009 in connection with the completion of the Exchange Agreement

We also pay our non-employee directors compensation in RSUs and stock options and over the past

several years they each have been given annual equity awards with fair value at the time of the grant between

$50000 to $80000 The RSUs and stock options the non-employee directors receive vest equally over two-year

period The
per

share exercise price of the stock options was equal to the fair market value of the common stock at

the date of grant which is the closing price of share of our Class common stock on the date of grant

Scott Seaton became member of our Board of Directors on April 22 2009 and received on such date

an option to purchase 20000 shares of Class common stock which had fair value on the date of grant of

$51943

Non-employee directors are reimbursed for travel expenses for meetings attended Directors who are our

employees do not receive any fees for their services as directors

The following table sets forth specified information regarding the compensation for 2008 of our non-

employee directors

Fees Earned or

Paid in Casht1Name of Director Stock Awards2 Option Awards3 Total

Craig Mitchell 30000 37347 33.443 100790

William Monis III 30000 37.347 33.443 100790

Thomas Reifenheiser 105000 37347 33.443 175.790

Natale Ricciardi 100 000 37347 33443 170.790

Robert Winikoff 90000 37347 33443 60790
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This colunm represents all cash retainers earned by our non-employee directors with respect to their service in 2008

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the 2008 fiscal year for the

fair value of RSUs granted in 2008 as well as prior fiscal years in accordance with SFAS 123R and do not correspond to the actual value

that will be recognized by the non-employee directors Fair values were calculated using the Class common stock closing price on the

date of grant and multiplying it by the number of shares subject to the grant

For services rendered in 2008 on March 13 2009 each of the non-employee directors except for Messrs Craig Mitchell and William

Morris III received 7500 RSUs that have grant date fair value of $31950 and vest equally over two-year period commencing on

March 13 2010 As of December 31 2008 each of our non-employee directors had 10000 RSUs with respect to shares of Class

common stock excluding those RSUs granted on March 13 2009

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the 2008 fiscal year for the

fair value of stock options granted in 2008 as well as prior fiscal years based on the Black Scholes valuation model in accordance with

SFAS 123R For additional information on the valuation assumptions with respect to the 2008 grants refer to note of our consolidated

financial statements in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the SEC For information on

the valuation assumptions with respect to grants made prior to 2008 refer to the note on Stockholders Equity of our consolidated financial

statements in the Form 10-K for the respective fiscal year Amounts in this column reflect our accounting expense for these awards and do

not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the non-employee directors

For services rendered in 2008 on March 13 2009 each of the non-employee directors except for Messrs Craig Mitchell and William

Morris III received an option grant representing 15000 shares of Class common stock that had grant date fair value of $33627 and

vest equally over two-year period commencing on March 13 2010 As of December 31 2008 Mr Winikoff had outstanding option

awards for 93000 shares and Messrs Ricciardi and Reifenheiser each had outstanding option awards for 83000 shares excluding those

options granted on March 13 2009 All of these option awards are for Class common stock

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31 2008 about our common stock that may be

issued upon the exercise of options warrants and rights under all of our existing equity plans

Number of Shares of Number of Shares of Common
Common Stock To Stock Remaining Available for

Be Issued upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance under Equity

Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans Excluding

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Common Stock Reflected

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in First Numerical Column

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders

2001 Employee Stock

Purchase Plan nla 687929

2003 Incentive Plan 98011431 10.70 10479132

Non-Employee Directors

Equity Incentive Plan 3250002 112500

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders...

Total 10126143 11279561

Represents options to purchase 5451001 shares of Class common stock ii options to purchase 1398892 shares of Class

common stock and iii2951250 unvested restricted stock units of Class common stock

Represents options to purchase 275000 shares of Class common stock and ii 50000 unvested restricted stock units of Class

common stock

Weighted-Average Exercise Price calculation does not include restricted stock units since they do not have an exercise price
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Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan

Introduction The Mediacom Communications Corporation Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive

Plan the Plan was adopted by our board of directors in March 2004 and approved by our stockholders on June

17 2004 total of 500000 shares of our Class common stock have been reserved for issuance under the Plan If

our stockholders approve the amendment to the Plan Proposal at the Annual Meeting there would be 1250000

shares of our Class common stock reserved for issuance under the Plan

The Plan authorizes the award of stock options restricted shares deferred stock and dividend equivalent

rights to non-employee directors of our company In addition the Plan permits each non-employee director to

receive all or any portion of his or her directors fees in our common stock

The material features of the Plan are summarized below and such summary is qualified in its entirety by

reference to the complete text of the Plan

Purpose The Plan is intended to attract and retain highly qualified persons to serve as non-employee

directors of our company and to promote ownership by such non-employee directors of greater proprietary interest

in our company thereby aligning such non-employee directors interests more closely with the interests of our

stockholders

Administration The Plan is administered by our board of directors Subject to the terms of the Plan our

board has full power and discretion to determine when to whom awards and in what type and amounts awards will

be granted to determine the terms and conditions of awards to amend or change the terms of any award agreement

including but not limited to the term the vesting schedule and/or the exercise price to cancel with the grantees

consent outstanding awards and to grant new awards in substitution therefor to determine and change the

conditions restrictions and limitations relating to any award to determine the settlement cancellation forfeiture

exchange or surrender of any award to make adjustments in the terms and conditions of awards in recognition of

unusual or nonrecurring events including but not limited to changing the exercise price of any award to construe

and interpret the Plan and any award agreement to establish amend and revoke rules and regulations for the

administration of the Plan to make all determinations deemed
necessary or advisable for administration of the Plan

and to exercise any powers and perform any acts it deems necessary or advisable to administer the Plan Our board

may appoint such agents as it deems advisable to administer the Plan

Eligibility Only non-employee directors are eligible to receive awards under the Plan

Offering of Common Stock Class common stock will be available under the terms of the Plan for

issuance in settlement of awards The term shares or stock in this summary refers to our Class common stock

The stock delivered to settle awards made under the Plan may be authorized and unissued shares or treasury

shares including shares repurchased by us for purposes
of the Plan If any award or shares subject to any award

granted under the Plan are forfeited or otherwise terminated without delivery of shares the shares subject to such

awards will again be available for issuance under the Plan In addition if any shares are withheld as payment for

shares issued upon exercise of an award the shares withheld will again be available for grant under the Plan If any

shares previously owned by the grantee are surrendered as payment for shares issued upon exercise of an award the

surrendered shares will be added back to the total number of shares available for issuance under the Plan

If dividend or other distribution recapitalization forward or reverse stock split subdivision

consolidation or reduction of capital reorganization merger consolidation scheme or arrangement split-up spin

off or combination or similar transaction or event affects the common stock such that an adjustment is appropriate

in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of grantees our board will make such equitable change or

adjustment as it deems appropriate in the number and kind of securities subject to or to be issued in connection with

awards whether or not then outstanding and the exercise price relating to an award
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Summay of Awards under the Plan The Plan permits the granting of any or all of the following types of

awards to all grantees

stock options

restricted shares

deferred stock and

dividend equivalents

Generally awards under the Plan may be granted for no consideration other than prior and future services

Awards granted under the Plan may in the discretion of our board be granted alone or in addition to in tandem with

or in substitution for any other award under the Plan or other plan of our company The material terms of each

award will be set forth in written award agreement between the grantee and us

Stock Options Our board is authorized to grant non-qualified stock options stock option allows

grantee to purchase specified number of shares at predetermined price during fixed period measured from the

date of grant The purchase price per
share of stock subject to stock option is the fair market value per share on the

date of grant as set forth in the award agreement

Our board may adopt procedures allowing each non-employee director to make an election an option

election to receive all or part of his or her directors fees in the form of stock options The number of shares subject

to an option granted pursuant to an option election will equal the amount of directors fees that the non-employee

director elects to receive in the form of options divided by the per share value of the option on the date of grant as

determined by our board using modified Black-Scholes option pricing model or similaroption pricing model and

applied on the basis of such risk-free interest rate expected option life volatility average stock price and other

applicable parameters or formulas as our board in its sole discretion approves

The term of each option will be ten years or such shorter period as determined by our board and set forth in

the award agreement Options granted pursuant to non-employee directors option election will be fully vested and

exercisable at any time during the term of the option and except as otherwise provided in the award agreement all

other options will vest and become exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant Options may be

exercised by payment of the purchase price in cash stock or through the sale of the shares acquired on exercise of

the option through broker-dealer to whom the grantee submitted an irrevocable notice of exercise and irrevocable

instructions to deliver the sales proceeds promptly to our company

Except as otherwise provided in an award agreement if grantee of an option terminates service as non-

employee director of our company for any reason other than death or disability the option to the extent vested at

termination will remain exercisable for period of ninety days or by reason of death or disability the option will

immediately vest and remain exercisable for one-year period However in no case will options be exercisable for

period of more than ten years
from the date of grant

Restricted Shares Our board may award restricted shares consisting of shares which remain subject to

risk of forfeiture and may not be disposed of by grantees until certain restrictions established by our board lapse

Except as otherwise provided in the award agreement grantee receiving restricted shares will have all of the rights

of stockholder of our company including the right to vote the shares and the right to receive any dividends

Our board shall determine the amount if any that grantee must pay for restricted shares If restricted

shares are forfeited and if the grantee was required to pay for such shares or acquired such restricted shares upon the

exercise of stock option the grantee shall be deemed to have resold such restricted shares to our company at

price equal to the lesser of the amount paid by the grantee for such restricted shares or the fair market value

per share on the date of such forfeiture

Except as otherwise provided in an award agreement the restrictions on restricted shares will lapse on the

third anniversary of the date of grant Unless otherwise provided in the award agreement upon termination of

service as non-employee director of our company by reason of death or disability during the restriction period

restricted shares will immediately vest Upon termination of service for any other reason during the restriction

period restricted shares will be forfeited subject to such exceptions if any as are provided in the award agreement
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Deferred Stock Our board may also make deferred stock awards Deferred stock consists of right to

receive shares at the end of specifieddeferral period

Our board may adopt procedures allowing each non-employee director to make an election deferral

election to receive an award of deferred stock in lieu of all or part of his or her directors fees and dividend

equivalents on deferred stock granted pursuant to deferral election non-employee director may also elect to

receive unrestricted shares of common stock in lieu of all or any portion of his or her directors fees

Awards of deferred stock are subject to such limitations as our board may impose in the award agreement

Deferred stock awards carry no voting or other rights associated with stock ownership unless and until the shares are

actually delivered at the end of the deferral period Dividend equivalents granted with respect to deferred stock will

be deemed to be reinvested in additional shares of deferred stock unless our board determines to make payment in

cash If grantee receives an award of deferred stock pursuant to deferral election the grantee may elect whether

dividend equivalents received with respect to such deferred stock will be paid to the grantee immediately in cash or

deemed to be reinvested in additional shares of deferred stock

Unless otherwise provided in the award agreement upon termination of service as non-employee
director

of our company by reason of death or disability during the deferral period deferred stock will become immediately

vested and will be promptly settled with delivery of unrestricted shares Upon termination of service for any other

reason during deferral period except as otherwise provided in the award agreement deferred stock to the extent not

vested will be forfeited and vested deferred stock will be promptly settled with delivery of unrestricted shares

Deferred stock acquired pursuant to deferral election will be fully vested at all times All other grants of deferred

stock will vest and become nonforfeitable on the third anniversary of the date of grant or such earlier or later date as

set forth in the award agreement

Transfer Limitations on Awards Awards granted under the Plan generally may not be pledged or otherwise

encumbered and generally are not transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution Each award

will be exercisable during the grantees lifetime only by the grantee or if permitted under applicable law by the

grantees guardian or legal representative However transfers of awards for estate planning purposes may be

permitted in the discretion of our board

Amendment and Termination of the Plan

The Plan may be amended altered suspended discontinued or terminated by our board without further

stockholder approval unless such approval of an amendment or alteration is required by law or regulation or under

the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which the common stock is then listed or quoted

although our board may in its discretion seek stockholder approval in any circumstance in which it deems such

approval advisable

In addition subject to the terms of the Plan no amendment or termination of the Plan may materially and

adversely affect the right of grantee under any award granted under the Plan prior to the amendment or

termination

Unless terminated earlier by our board the Plan will terminate when no shares remain reserved and

available for issuance or if earlier on March 10 2014 The terms of the Plan shall continue to apply to any award

made prior to the termination of the Plan until we have no further obligation with respect to any award granted under

the Plan

Federal Income Tax Consequences

We believe that under present law the following are the federal tax consequences generally arising with

respect to awards granted under the Plan This summary is for stockholder informative purposes and is not intended

to provide tax advice to grantees

The grant of an option should not create any tax consequences for the grantee or us Upon exercising an

option the grantee must generally recognize ordinary income equal to the difference between the exercise price and

the fair market value of the freely transferable and non-forfeitable stock acquired on the date of exercise We will be
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entitled to deduction for the taxable year in which the grantee recognizes ordinary income and for the amount

recognized as ordinary income by the grantee The treatment to grantee of disposition of shares acquired upon

the exercise of an option will be short-term or long-term capital gain or loss depending on how long the shares

have been held Generally there will be no tax consequences to us in connection with disposition of shares

acquired under an option Different tax rules apply with respect to grantees who are subject to Section 16 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 when they acquire stock in transaction deemed to be nonexempt purchase under

that statute Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code imposes special tax rules

on nonqualified deferred compensation that does not meet certain requirements Stock options are generally exempt

from the requirements of Section 409A if the exercise price is not less than the fair market value of the stock on the

date of grant and certain other conditions apply The stock options granted under the Plan are intended to be exempt

from Section 409A and will be administered to preserve that exemption

With respect to deferred stock grantee must generally recognize ordinary income equal to the fair market

value of shares on the date unrestricted shares are received or constructively received by the grantee in settlement

of such deferred shares We will be entitled to deduction in the taxable year
in which the grantee recognizes

ordinary income for the same amount of ordinary income recognized by the grantee Deferred stock is subject to

Section 409A of the Code To date the Board has not adopted any procedures for the issuance of deferred stock and

has not issued any deferred stock under the Plan In the event that any deferred stock is issued under the Plan in the

future such grants will be made in accordance with procedures intended to comply in both form and operation with

the requirements of Section 409A of the Code in order to avoid acceleration of taxation and imposition of tax

penalties on the grantee

With respect to restricted shares the grantee must generally recognize ordinary income equal to the fair

market value of the shares received at the first time the shares become transferable or not subject to substantial risk

of forfeiture whichever occurs earlier We will be entitled to deduction for the taxable year in which the grantee

recognizes ordinary income in the amount of the ordinary income recognized by the grantee In certain

circumstances grantee may elect to be taxed at the time of receipt of restricted shares rather than upon the lapse of

restrictions on transferability or the substantial risk of forfeiture If the grantee makes this election we will be

entitled to deduction for the taxable year
in which the grantee recognizes ordinary income in the amount of the

ordinary income recognized by the grantee

The foregoing provides only general description of the application of federal income tax laws to certain

types of awards under the Plan The summary does not address the effects of foreign state and local tax laws

Because of the variety of awards that may be made under the Plan and the complexities of the tax laws grantees are

encouraged to consult tax advisor as to their individual circumstances
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Policy and Procedures with Respect to Related Person Transactions

Our Board of Directors has adopted written policy with respect to related person transactions that is

designed to monitor and ensure the proper review approval ratification and disclosure of related person transactions

involving our company Our Board of Directors determined that the Audit Committee is the appropriate committee

to review approve and ratif any transaction in which the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to

exceed $120000 in any calendar year ii we are participant and iiiany related person has or will have direct

or indirect interest other than solely as result of being director or less than 10% beneficial owner of another

entity Our Audit Committee has determined that certain transactions shall be deemed pre-approved by the

Committee even if the amount involved will exceed $120000 Such transactions include employment of

executive officers ii director compensation and iii certain transactions with other companies when the related

person
has only specified limited relationship with such other company and the aggregate amount received by that

company does not exceed the greater of $200000 or 5% of that companys total annual revenues

Related Person Transactions

Share Exchange Agreement with an Affiliate of Morris Communications

On September 2008 we entered into Share Exchange Agreement the Exchange Agreement with

Shivers Investments LLC Shivers and Shivers Trading Operating Company STOC Both STOC and

Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company LLC Morris Communications STOC Shivers and

Morris Communications are controlled by William Morris III who together with another Morris Communications

representative Craig Mitchell held two seats on our Board of Directors On such date Morris Communications

held 30% of our Class common stock representing 8.4% of the aggregate voting power of our Class and

Class common stock

On February 13 2009 we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged 100% of

the shares of stock of wholly-owned subsidiary which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic

cable systems serving approximately 25000 basic subscribers for 28309674 shares of our Class common stock

held by Shivers Investments As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the completion of this transaction our

total outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million representing 39.5 million shares of our Class common

stock and 27.0 million shares of our Class common stock Effective upon the closing of the transaction

Messrs Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of Directors

Other Transactions

Robert Winikoff member of our Board of Directors is partner of the law firm of Sonnenschein Nath

Rosenthal LLP which serves as our outside general counsel During 2008 we paid legal fees to Sonnenschein

Nath Rosenthal LLP in the amount of approximately $500000

From 2002 to 2009 Scott Seaton was Managing Director in the Technology Media and

Telecommunications investment banking group of Bank of America Prior to that time Mr Seaton was Managing

Director in the investment banking department of Credit Suisse First Boston since 1996 Bank of America and

Credit Suisse First Boston or their affiliates have in the past engaged in transactions with and performed services for

our company and our affiliates in the ordinary course of business including commercial banking financial advisory

and investment banking services

Compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers and persons who own

beneficially more than 10% of our common stock to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership of such

common stock with the SEC and to file copies of such reports with us Based solely upon review of the copies of

such reports filed with us we believe that during 2008 such reporting persons complied with the filing requirements

of said Section 16a
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Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address

We have adopted procedure approved by the SEC called householding Under this procedure if

stockholders of record have the same address and last name do not participate in electronic delivery of proxy

materials and have requested householding in the past they will receive only one copy of our annual report and

proxy statement unless one or more of these stockholders notifies us that they wish to continue receiving individual

copies This procedure reduces our printing costs and postage
fees Each stockholder who participates in

householding and who is not receiving proxy materials via the Internet will continue to receive separate proxy

card If any stockholders in your household wish to receive separate annual report and separate proxy statement

they may call our Investor Relations Department at 845-695-2642 or write to Investor Relations Department

Mediacom Communications Corporation 100 Crystal Run Road Middletown NY 10941 They may also send an

email to our Investor Relations Department at mcinvrelations@mediacomcc.com See also

http//www.mediacomcc.com and follow the About Us link to the Investor Relations tab Other stockholders who

have multiple accounts in their names or who share an address with other stockholders can authorize us to

discontinue mailings of multiple annual reports and proxy statements by contacting Investor Relations

Other Matters

The Board of Directors knows of no other matters to be brought before the meeting However if other

matters should come before the meeting it is the intention of each person named in the proxy to vote each proxy in

accordance with his judgment on such matters

2010 Stockholder Proposals

Stockholders are entitled to submit proposals on matters appropriate for stockholder action consistent with

regulations of the SEC In order for stockholder proposals for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be

eligible for inclusion in our proxy statement our Secretary must receive them at our principal executive offices not

later than January 2010
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This Annual Report on Form 0-K is for the year ended December 31 2008 This Annual Report on Form 10-

modifies and supersedes periodic reports filed before it The Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
allows us to incorporate by reference information that we file with them which means that we can disclose

important information to you by referring you directly to those documents Information incorporated by reference is

considered to be part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K In addition information that we file with the SEC in the

future will automatically update and supersede information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K we refer to Mediacom Communications Corporation as

Mediacom and Mediacom and its consolidated subsidiaries as we us and our

Performance Graph

The graph below compares the performance of our Class common stock with the performance of the Nasdaq

Global Select market composite Index and the Nasdaq Telecommunications Index an index containing performance

data of radio telephone telegraph television and cable television companies from December 31 2003 through

December 31 2008
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

You should carefully review the information contained in this Annual Report and in other reports or documents

that we file from time to time with the SEC

In this Annual Report we state our beliefs of future events and of our future financial performance In some

cases you can identify those so-called forward-looking statements by words such as may will should

expects plans anticipates believes estimates predicts potential or continue or the negative of

those words and other comparable words These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those we anticipate many of which are

beyond our control Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those contained in the forward-looking

statements include but are not limited to competition for video high-speed data and phone customers our ability to



achieve anticipated customer and revenue growth and to successfully introduce new products and services greater
than anticipated effects of the current or future economic downturns and other factors which may negatively affect

our customers demand for our products and services increasing programming costs and delivery expenses related

to our products and services changes in consumer preferences laws and regulations or technology that may cause
us to change our operational strategies changes in assumptions underlying our critical accounting polices which
could impact our results our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our debt service obligations liquidity

and overall instability in the credit markets which may impact our ability to refinance our debt as our revolving
credit facilities begin to expire in September 2011 and other substantial debt becomes due in 2013 and beyond in

the same amounts and on the same terms as we currently enjoy and the other risks and uncertainties discussed in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 and other reports or documents that we file

from time to time with the SEC Statements included in this Annual Report are based upon information known to us
as of the date that this Annual Report is filed with the SEC and we assume no obligation to update or alter our

forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report whether as result of new information future events or

otherwise except as required by applicable federal securities laws



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Introduction

We are the nations eighth largest cable company based on the number of basic video subscribers or basic

subscribers and among the leading cable operators focused on serving the smaller cities and towns in the United

States About 55% of our basic subscribers are located within the top 50-100 television markets in the United States

with significant concentration in the midwest and southern regions

Over the last several years we have introduced compelling variety of new and advanced services to

consumers made possible by investments in our interactive fiber networks which have boosted their capacity

capability and reliability We now offer greater
choice and convenience to our customers with wide and deep

array of advanced products and services including video-on-demand VOD high-definition
television

HDTV digital video recorders DVR high-speed data HSD and feature-rich phone service We provide

the triple play bundle of video HSD and phone over single communications platform to substantially all of our

markets significant advantage over most competitors in our service areas

As of December 31 2008 we served approximately 1.32 million basic subscribers 643000 digital video

customers or digital customers 737000 HSD customers and 248000 telephone customers totaling 2.95 million

revenue generating units RGUs We provide access to the triple play bundle to 91% of the estimated homes that

our network passes basic subscriber is customer who purchases one or more video services RGUs represent the

sum of basic subscribers and digital HSD and phone customers

We are publicly-owned company and our Class common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Global Select

Market under the symbol MCCC We were founded in July 1995 by Rocco Commisso our Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer who beneficially owns shares of our Class and stock representing the majority of the

aggregate voting power of our common stock

Recent Developments

Share Exchange Agreement with an Affiliate of Morris Communications

On September 2008 we entered into Share Exchange Agreement the Exchange Agreement with

Shivers Investments LLC Shivers and Shivers Trading Operating Company STOC Both STOC and

Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company LLC Morris Communications STOC Shivers and

Morris Communications are controlled by William Morris III who together with another Morris Communications

representative Craig Mitchell held two seats on our Board of Directors

On February 13 2009 we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged 100% of the

shares of stock of wholly-owned subsidiary which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic

cable systems serving approximately 25000 basic subscribers for 28309674 shares of Mediacom Class common

stock held by Shivers Investments As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the completion of this

transaction our total Class and Class outstanding shares were approximately
66.5 million Effective upon

closing of the transaction Messrs Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of Directors See Note 11 to our

consolidated financial statements for more information

Available Information and Website

Our phone number is 845 695-2600 and our principal executive offices are located at 100 Crystal Run Road

Middletown New York 10941 our website is located at www.mediacomcc.com Our Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form 0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such reports filed with or

furnished to the SEC under sections 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange act of 1934 are made available free of

charge on our website follow the About Us link to the Investor Relations tab to SEC Filings as soon as

reasonably practicable
after such reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC We have also made

our Code of Ethics available in the Governance portion of the Investor Relations tab of our website The

information on our website is not part of this Annual Report
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Description of Our Cable Systems

Overview

The following table provides an overview of selected subscriber and customer data for our cable systems for

the
years ended December 31

200812 2007 2006 2005 2004

Operating Data

Core Video

Estimated homes passed 2854000 2836000 2829000 2807000 2785000
Basic subscribers2 1318000 1324000 1380000 1423000 1458000
Basic penetration3 46.2% 46.7% 48.8% 50.7% 52.4%

Digital Cable

Digital customers4 643000 557000 528000 494000 396000
Digital penetration5 48.8% 42.1% 38.3% 34.7% 27.2%

High Speed Data

HSD customers6 737000 658000 578000 478000 367000
HSD penetration7 25.8% 23.2% 20.4% 17.0% 13.2%

Phone

Estimated marketable phone homes8 2604000 2550000 2300000 1450000
Phone customers9 248000 185000 105000 22000
Phone penetration 9.5% 7.3% 4.6% 1.5%

Revenue Generating Units 2946000 2724000 2591000 2417000 2221000

Represents the estimated number of single residence homes apartments and condominium units passed by the

cable distribution network Estimated homes passed is based on the best information currently available

Represents dwelling with one or more television sets that receives package of over-the-air broadcast

stations local access channels or certain satellite-delivered cable services Accounts that are billed on bulk

basis which typically receive discounted rates are converted into full-price equivalent basic subscribers by

dividing total bulk billed basic revenues of particular system by average cable rate charged to basic

subscribers in that system This conversion method is consistent with the methodology used in determining

payments made to programmers Basic subscribers include connections to schools libraries local government
offices and employee households that may not be charged for limited and expanded cable services but may be

charged for digital cable HSD phone or other services Customers who exclusively purchase HSD and/or

phone service are not counted as basic subscribers Our methodology of calculating the number of basic

subscribers may not be identical to those used by other companies offering similarservices

Represents basic subscribers as percentage of estimated homes passed

Represents customers receiving digital video services

Represents digital customers as percentage of basic subscribers

Represents residential HSD customers and small to medium-sized commercial cable modem accounts billed at

higher rates than residential customers Small to medium-sized commercial accounts generally represent
customers with bandwidth requirements of up to 20 Mbps and are converted to equivalent residential HSD
customers by dividing their associated revenues by the applicable residential rate Customers who take our

scalable fiber-based enterprise network products and services are not counted as HSD customers Our

methodology of calculating HSD customers may not be identical to those used by other companies offering
similarservices

Represents the number of total HSD customers as percentage of estimated homes passed

Represents estimated number of homes to which we offer phone service and is based upon the best information

currently available

Represents customers receiving phone service

10
Represents the number of total phone customers as percentage of estimated marketable phone homes

11
Represents the sum of basic subscribers and digital HSD and phone customers

12 Does not reflect the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13 2009 See Note 11 to our

consolidated financial statements for more information



Our Service Areas

Over 65% of our basic subscribers are in the top 100 television markets commonly referred to as Nielsen

Media Research designated market areas DMAs in the United States with about 55% in the top 50-100 DMAs
Our service areas have significant concentration in the Midwest and Southern regions and we are the leading

provider of broadband services in Iowa and the second largest in Illinois The following table provides the largest

DMAs in which we serve

DMA Rank Designated Market Area

Chicago IL

15 Minneapolis St Paul MN

36 Greenville Spartanburg Anderson SC

60 Mobile AL Pensacola FL Ft Walton FL

71 Des Moines Ames IA

74 Springfield MO

78 Paducah KY Cape Girardeau MO Harrisburg IL

83 Champaign Springfield Decatur IL

88 Cedar Rapids Waterloo Iowa City Dubuque IA

97 Davenport IA Rock Island Moline IL

Products and Services

Video

We receive majority of our revenues from video services however our reliance on video services as source

of revenue has been declining for the past several years primarily due to increased contributions from our HSD and

phone services trend we expect to continue Basic subscribers and digital customers are billed on monthly basis

and generally may discontinue services at any time We design our channel line-ups for each system according to

demographics programming preferences channel capacity competition price sensitivity and local regulation

Monthly subscription rates and related charges vary according to the type of equipment used by subscribers and

types of services selected by subscribers and customers which are described below

Broadcast Basic Service Our broadcast basic service includes for monthly fee 12 to 20 local broadcast

channels network and independent stations limited satellite-delivered programming and local public government

home-shopping and leased access channels

Family Basic Service Our family basic service includes for an additional monthly fee 40 to 55 additional

satellite-delivered channels such as CNN ESPN Lifetime MTV USA Network and TNT

As of December 31 2008 we had 1.32 million basic subscribers representing 46.2% penetration of estimated

homes passed

Digital Service We currently offer several programming packages that include digital basic channels

multichannel premium services sports channels digital music channels an interactive on-screen program guide and

full access to our VOD library Currently digital customers receive up to 230 digital channels depending on the

level of service selected digital converter or cable card is required to receive our digital and other advanced video

services Customers pay monthly fee for digital video service which varies according to the level of service taken

and the number of digital converters in the home As of December 31 2008 we had 643000 digital customers

representing 48.8% penetration of our basic subscribers

Pay-Per- View Service Our pay-per-view service allows customers to pay to view single showings of

programming on an unedited commercial-free basis including feature films live sporting events concerts and other

special events



Video-On-Demand Mediacom On Demand our VOD service provides on-demand access to over 4000

movies special events and general interest titles and is available to 87% of our digital customers Subscription-based

VOD SVOD premium packages such as Starz Showtime and HBO are included when customers take such

premium programming packages and movies and other programming can be ordered on first-run pay-per-view

basis Our customers enjoy full two-way functionality including the ability to start the programs at whatever time is

convenient as well as pause rewind and fast forward VOD programming Due to their limited two-way capability

direct broadcast satellite DBS providers are unable to offer similar product to customers which gives us

competitive advantage for these services in our markets

High-Definition Television HDTV features high-resolution picture quality digital sound quality and wide-

screen theater-like display when using an HDTV set Up to 26 high-definition HD channels including most

major broadcast networks leading national cable networks premium channels and regional sports networks are

offered free of charge to our digital customers and represent the most widely-watched programming We also offer

over 100 HD titles on-demand with plans to further expand our HD on-demand library in 2009

Digital Video Recorders We make available to our customers HDTV-capable digital converters that have

video recording capability allowing them to record and store programming for later viewing as well as pause
and

rewind live television DVR services require the use of an advanced digital converter for which we charge monthly

fee

As of December 31 2008 33.2% of digital customers received DVR and/or HDTV services

Mediacom Online

Mediacom Online our HSD product offers to consumers packages of competitively priced cable modem-based

services with downstream speeds of up to 20Mbps depending on the service selected We believe our flagship

residential HSD offering at 8Mbps is currently the fastest Internet service in substantially all of our markets HSD

customers who take our VIP triple play of video Internet and phone enjoy an upgrade to 10 Mbps downstream

speeds free of charge Our services include interactive portal multiple e-mail addresses personal webspace and

local community content In 2009 we are introducing an enhanced interactive portal featuring single sign-on for

e-mail local channel lineups online billing and other Mediacom Online services as well as proprietary content

including video and other features that are designed to showcase the capability of faster broadband speeds As of

December 31 2008 we had 737000 HSD customers representing 25.8% penetration of estimated homes passed

We are now investing in equipment with DOCSIS 3.0 technology which will allow us to offer
very high-speed

Internet service commonly referred to as wideband We are now testing wideband service with download speeds

of up to 100Mbps and plan to selectively deploy this service in certain markets in 2009

Mediacom Phone

Mediacom Phone is our Voice over Internet Protocol VoIP phone service that offers unlimited local

regional and long-distance calling within the United States Puerto Rico the U.S Virgin Islands and Canada for

flat monthly rate including popular calling features such as Caller ID with name and number call waiting three-

way calling and enhanced Emergency 911 dialing Directory assistance and voice mail services are available for an

additional charge and international calling is available at competitive rates As of December 31 2008 we marketed

phone service to about 91% of our 2.85 million estimated homes passed and served 248000 phone customers

representing 9.5% penetration of estimated marketable phone homes passed Substantially all of our phone

customers take multiple services from us almost 85% take the VIP triple play and approximately 14% take either

video or HSD service in addition to phone

Mediacom Business Services

We provide range of advanced data services for the commercial market For small and medium-sized

businesses we offer several packages of HSD services that include business e-mail webspace storage and several IP

address options Using our fiber-rich regional networks we also design customized Internet access and data

transport solutions for large businesses including the healthcare financial services and education markets For

wireless communication providers we offer point-to-point circuits to carry
their voice and HSD traffic



In 2009 we are launching Mediacom Business Phone service across most of our markets aimed at small-to-

medium sized businesses This service will allow us to package video HSD and phone services which will improve

our competitive positioning with the local telephone companies

Advertising

We generate revenues from selling advertising time we receive from programmers as part of our license

agreements to local regional and national advertisers Our advertising sales infrastructure includes in-house

production facilities production and administrative employees and locally-based sales workforce In many of our

markets we have entered into agreements commonly referred to as interconnects with other cable operators to

jointly sell local advertising simplifying our clients purchase of local advertising and expanding their geographic

reach In some of these markets we represent the advertising sales efforts of other cable operators in other markets

other cable operators represent us Additionally national and regional interconnect agreements have been negotiated

with other cable system operators to simplify the purchase of advertising time by our clients

In 2009 we plan to offer an advertising triple-play to businesses in our markets combining traditional video

advertising with advertising-supported VOD service and online advertising Our advertising-supported VOD service

permits interested customers to view long-form information advertisements while allowing advertisers to track non-

confidential aggregate viewing data Our online advertising business revolves around the introduction of new web

portal which will be introduced later this year Businesses in our markets will have the ability to advertise to our

customers through multiple platforms at competitive prices

Marketing and Sales

We primarily focus on marketing our VIP triple play bundles offering our customers simple and easy way to

order our products and services the convenience of single bill and discounted pricing compared to pricing on an

individual product basis We have enhanced our VIP offering with VIP Extra loyalty program rewarding

customers who subscribe to the triple play with free VOD movies faster HSD speeds and retailer discounts

We employ wide
range

of sales channels to reach current and potential customers including direct marketing

tactics such as direct mail outbound telemarketing door-to-door sales and field technician sales We have

substantially increased our direct door-to-door sales staff recently to expand our customer base and use our inbound

contact centers to raise the awareness of service offerings We also employ mass media including broadcast

television radio newspaper and outdoor advertising to direct people to our inbound call centers or web site and

advertise on our own cable systems to reach our current customers Direct sales channels have also been established

with national e-tailers to capture Internet sales

Customer Care

Providing superior customer care contributes to customer satisfaction and customer retention and increases the

penetration of our advanced services

Contact Centers

Our customer care group has several contact centers which are staffed with dedicated customer service and

technical support representatives that respond to customer inquiries on all of our products and services Qualified

representatives are available 24 hours day seven days week to assist our customers We have deployed virtual

contact center technology that helps our customer care group to function as single unified call center and allows

us to effectively manage and leverage resources and reduce answer times through call-routing in seamless manner

web-based service platform called e-Care is available to our customers allowing them to order products via the

Internet manage their payments and receive general technical support and self-help tools to help troubleshoot

technical difficulties

Network Management and Field Operations

Our principal focus is effective real-time network management We have centralized operations center whose

personnel monitors the health and reliability of our network using several network and service monitoring solutions

to ensure reliability and performance of our product and services



Our workflow management system for field technicians promotes on-time customer appointments and first call

resolution to avoid repeat service trips and customer dissatisfaction Field activity is scheduled routed and

accounted for seamlessly including automated appointment confirmations along with real time remote technician

dispatching and service provisioning Technicians have web-based hand-held tools to determine real-time quality of

service at customers homes allowing us to effectively install new services and efficiently resolve customer-

reported issues

Community Relations

We are dedicated to fostering strong relations with the communities we serve and believe that our local

involvement strengthens the awareness of our brand We support local charities and community causes with events

and campaigns to raise funds and supplies for persons in need and in-kind donations that include production

services and free airtime on cable networks We participate in industry initiatives such as the Cable in the Classroom

program which provides more than 3100 schools with free video service and more than 270 schools with free high-

speed Internet service and Get Ready for Digital TV the cable industrys 18-month multimedia consumer education

initiative designed to inform cable customers and other consumers about how to manage the transition to digital

broadcast television We also provide free cable service to over 3900 government buildings libraries and not-for-

profit hospitals along with free HSD service to 320 such sites

We develop and provide exclusive local programming for our communities service that is not offered by

direct broadcast satellite providers Several of our cable systems have production facilities to create local

programming which includes local school sports events fund-raising telethons by local chapters of national

charitable organizations local concerts and other entertainment We believe our local programming helps build

customer loyalty in the communities we serve

Franchises

Cable systems are generally operated under non-exclusive franchises granted by local governmental authorities

Historically these franchises typically imposed numerous conditions such as time limitations on commencement

and completion of construction conditions of service including population density specifications for service the

bandwidth capacity of the system the broad categories of programming required the provision of free service to

schools and other public institutions and the provision and funding of public educational and governmental access

channels PEG access channels provision for franchise fees and the maintenance or posting of insurance or

indemnity bonds by the cable operator Many of the provisions of local franchises are subject to federal regulation

under the Communications Act of 1934 or Communications Act as amended the Cable Act

Many of the states in which we operate have recently enacted comprehensive state-issued franchising statutes

that cede control over our franchises away from local communities and towards state agencies such as the various

public service commissions that regulate other utilities As of December 31 2008 about 42% of our customer base

was under state-issued franchise Some of these states permit us to exchange local franchises for state issued

franchises before the expiration date of the local franchise These state statutes make the terms and conditions of our

franchises more uniform and in some cases eliminate locally imposed requirements such as PEG access channels

As of December 31 2008 we held 1368 cable franchises These franchises provide for the payment of fees to

the issuing authority In most of our cable systems such franchise fees are passed through directly to the customers

The Cable Act prohibits franchising authorities from imposing franchise fees in excess of 5% of gross revenues from

specified cable services and permits the cable operator to seek renegotiation and modification of franchise

requirements if warranted by changed circumstances

We have never had franchise revoked or failed to have franchise renewed In addition substantially all of

our franchises eligible for renewal have been renewed or extended prior to their stated expirations and no franchise

community has refused to consent to franchise transfer to us The Cable Act provides among other things for an

orderly franchise renewal process in which franchise renewal will not be unreasonably withheld or if renewal is

denied and the franchising authority acquires ownership of the cable system or effects transfer of the cable system

to another person the cable operator generally is entitled to the fair market value for the cable system covered by

such franchise The Cable Act also established comprehensive renewal procedures which require that an incumbent

franchisees renewal application be assessed on our own merits and not as part of comparative process
with

competing applications We believe that we have satisfactory relationships with our franchising communities
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Programming Supply

We have various fixed-term contracts to obtain programming for our cable systems from suppliers whose

compensation is typically based on fixed monthly fee per subscriber or customer Although most of our contracts

are secured directly we also negotiate programming contract renewals through programming cooperative of which

we are member In general we attempt to secure longer-term programming contracts which may include

marketing support and other incentives from programming suppliers

We also have various retransmission consent arrangements with local broadcast station owners allowing for

carriage of their broadcast television signals on our cable systems Federal Communications Commission FCC
rules mandate that every three-years local broadcast station owners elect either must carry or retransmission consent

The most recent cycle ended on December 31 2008 and we were able to reach agreement with all broadcasters

whose agreements expired Historically retransmission consent has been contingent upon our carnage
of satellite

delivered cable programming offered by companies affiliated with the stations owners or other forms of non-cash

compensation In the most recently completed cycle cash payments and to lesser extent our purchase of

advertising time from local broadcast station owners were required to secure their consent

We expect our programming costs to remain our largest single expense item for the foreseeable future In

recent years we have experienced substantial increase in the cost of our programming particularly sports and local

broadcast programming well in excess of the inflation rate or the change in the consumer price index We believe

our programming costs will continue to rise in the future due to increased costs charged by programming suppliers

substantially due to existing programming

Technology

Our cable systems are designed as hybrid fiber-optic coaxial HFC networks that have proven to be highly

flexible in meeting the increasing requirements of our business This HFC designed network is engineered to

accommodate bandwidth management initiatives that provide increased capacity and performance for our advanced

video and broadband products and services without the need for costly upgrades We deliver our signals via laser-

fed fiber optical cable from control centers known as headends and hubs to individual nodes Coaxial cable is then

connected from each node to the individual homes we serve Our network design generally provides for six strands

of fiber optic cable extended to each node with two strands active and four strands dark or inactive for future use

As of December 31 2008 about 94% of our cable network had capacity of at least 750 megahertz excluding

portions that converted to all-digital technology We operate from 116 headend facilities with 97% of our basic

subscribers served by our 50 largest headend facilities We have two regional fiber networks which connect 83% of

our estimated homes passed upon which we have overlaid video transport system that serves almost 80% of our

video subscriber base Our regional networks give us greater reach from central location and make it more cost

efficient to introduce new and advanced services to customers helping us reduce equipment personnel connectivity

charges and other expenditures

Demand for new services including additional HDTV channels requires us to become more efficient with our

bandwidth For network efficiency purposes we are moving certain of our video programming from analog to

digital delivery allowing us to deliver the same programming using less bandwidth As channels move from analog

to digital delivery we can offer our customers more HDTV channels faster HSD speeds and other advanced

products and services using the reclaimed bandwidth We also have introduced digital simulcasting across 50% of

our cable system giving digital ready customers better picture and sound quality for all of their video programming

This engineering duplicates analog channels as digital channels and lower-cost digital set-top tuners are

programmed to use the digital channel instead of the analog channel It is also
necessary

and important step toward

an all digital platform and we expect to cover 75% of our customer base with digital simulcasting by year-end 2009

Competition

We face intense and increasing competition from various communications and entertainment providers

principally DBS providers and certain local telephone companies many of whom have greater resources than we do

We are also subject to rapid and significant changes and developments in the marketplace in technology and in the

regulatory and legislative environment In the past several years many of our competitors have expanded their

service areas added features and adopted aggressive pricing and packaging for services and features that are

comparable to the services and features we offer We are unable to predict the effects if any of such future changes

or developments on our business
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Video

Direct Broadcast Satellite Providers

DBS providers principally DirecTV Inc and DISH Network Corp are the cable industrys most significant

video competitors having grown their customer base rapidly over the past several years They now serve more than

30 million customers nationwide according to publicly available information DBS service has technological

constraints due to its limited two-way interactivity which restricts their ability to compete with us in interactive

video HSD and phone In contrast our broadband network has full two-way interactivity giving us single

platform that is capable of delivering true VOD and SVOD as well as HSD and phone DBS providers are seeking

to expand their offerings to include these advanced services and in many cases have marketing agreements under

which local telephone companies offer DBS service bundled with their phone and HSD services These synthetic

bundles are generally billed as single package and from consumer standpoint appear similar to our triple play

bundle We believe that our delivery of multiple services from single broadband platform is and will continue to

be more cost effective than these arrangements between DBS providers and local phone companies giving us

long-term competitive advantage

Our ability to compete with DBS service depends in part on the programming available to them and us for

distribution DirecTV and DISH now offer more than 250 and 280 video channels of programming respectively

much of it substantially similar to our video offerings DireclV also has exclusive arrangements with the National

Football League NFL and Major League Baseball to offer sports programming unavailable to us DBS providers

also offer local HD broadcast signals of the four primary broadcast networks in certain major metropolitan markets

across the U.S DirecTV currently offers local HD signals in markets covering 85% of our basic subscribers and

more than 130 HD channels of national programming DISH currently offers local HD signals in markets covering

38% of our basic subscribers and more than 100 HD channels of national programming

We believe our customers prefer the cost savings of the bundled products and services we offer and the

convenience of having single provider contact for ordering scheduling provisioning billing and customer care In

addition we have meaningful presence
in our customers communities including the proprietary local content we

produce in several of our markets DBS providers are not locally-based and therefore do not have the ability to offer

locally-produced programming

Traditional Overbuilds

Cable systems are operated under non-exclusive franchises granted by local authorities more than one cable

system may legally be built in the same area by another cable operator local utility or other provider Some of

these competitors such as municipally-owned entities may be granted franchises on more favorable terms or

conditions or enjoy other advantages such as exemptions from taxes or regulatory requirements to which we are

subject Certain municipalities in our service areas have constructed their own cable systems in manner similar to

city-provided utility services We believe that various entities are currently offering cable service through wireline

distribution networks to 12.3% of our estimated homes passed most of these entities were operating prior to our

ownership of the affected cable systems

Local Telephone Companies

Local telephone companies can offer video and other services to compete with us and may increasingly do so in

the future Two major local telephone companies Venzon Communications Inc and ATT Inc who have

substantial resources have built and are continuing to build fiber networks with fiber-to-the-node or fiber-to-the-

home technology to replicate the cable industrys triple play bundle Their upgraded networks can now provide

video HSD and phone services that are comparable to ours with entry prices similar to those we offer Based on

internal estimates we believe that active marketing by ATT and Verizon with their reconstructed networks

covers approximately 2% of our estimated homes passed as of December 31 2008

Other

We also have other actual or potential video competitors including broadcast television stations private home

dish earth stations multichannel multipoint distribution services MMDS which deliver programming services

over microwave channels licensed by the FCC satellite master antenna television systems which use technology

similar to MMDS and generally serve condominiums apartment complexes and other multiple dwelling units new
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services such as wireless local multipoint distribution service and potentially new services offered over still

developing technologies We currently have limited competition from these competitors

HSI

Our HSD service competes primarily with digital subscriber line DSL services offered by local telephone

companies DSL technology provides Internet access at data transmission speeds greater than that of standard

telephone line or dial-up modems Based upon the speeds we offer we believe that our HSD product is superior to

comparable DSL offerings in our service areas

Some local telephone companies such as ATT Qwest Communications International Inc and Verizon have

built and are continuing to build fiber networks that allow them to offer significantly faster HSD services compared

to legacy DSL technology They are now offering these higher speeds in limited numbºt of our markets DBS

providers have attempted to compete with our HSD service but their satellite-delivered service has had limited

success given their technical constraints We expect that DBS providers will continue to explore other options for

the provision of HSD services

Other potential competitors include companies seeking to provide high-speed Internet services using wireless

or other technologies Many wireless telephone companies offer mobile data service for cellular use and may

expand into consumers households in the future Currently wireless providers are unable to offer data service

with speeds that compare to our HSD service but as their technology improves this may change in the future

Another technology being used is the delivery of broadband services to the home via power lines While this

technology is currently only being used in very limited parts of the country if electric utilities were to expand into

our service areas they could become formidable competitors given their resources

The American Recovery Act of 2009 provides specific funding for broadband development as part of the

economic stimulus package It is likely that some of our existing and potential competitors will apply for funds

under this program which if successful may allow them to build or expand facilities faster and deploy existing and

new services sooner and to more areas than they otherwise would

Phone

Mediacom Phone principally competes with the phone services offered by local telephone companies who may

have substantial capital longstanding customer relationships and extensive existing facilities In addition Mediacom

Phone competes with services offered by other VoIP providers that do not have traditional facilities-based

network but provide their services through consumers high-speed Internet connection

In the last several years trend known as wireless substitution has developed where certain phone customers

have decided they only need one phone provider and the provider
selected has been wireless or cellular phone

product We expect this trend to continue in the future and given the current economic downturn may accelerate as

consumers become more cost conscious

Other Competition

The quality of streaming video over the Internet and into homes and businesses continues to improve These

services are becoming more accessible as the use of high speed Internet access becomes more widespread In the

future we expect that streaming video will increasingly compete with the video services offered by cable operators

and other providers of video services For instance certain programming suppliers are marketing their content

directly to consumers through video streaming over the Internet bypassing cable operators or DBS providers as

video distributors although the cable operators may remain as the providers of high-speed Internet access service

Employees

As of December 31 2008 we employed 4444 full-time and 116 part-time employees None of our employees

are organized under or are covered by collective bargaining agreement We consider our relations with our

employees to be satisfactory
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Legislation and Regulation

General

Federal state and local laws regulate the development and operation of cable systems and to varying degrees
the services we offer Significant legal requirements imposed on us because of our status as cable operator or by
the virtue of the services we offer are described below

Federal Regulation

The Cable Act establishes the principal federal regulatory framework for the industry The Cable Act allocates

primary responsibility for enforcing the federal policies among the FCC and state and local governmental
authorities

Subscriber Rates and Program Tiering

The Cable Act and the FCCs regulations limit the amount cable systems can charge for certain services The

services included in this regulation are the lowest level of programming service offered by the cable
operator

which we call Broadcast Basic Service the installation of cable service service calls and the installation sale and

lease of Broadcast Basic Service equipment Federal law exempts cable systems from all rate regulation in

communities that are subject to effective competition which is defined as existing in variety of circumstances that

are increasingly satisfied with greater availability of comparable video service from DBS and some local phone

companies As of December 31 2008 given the determinations we have received from the FCC that effective

competition exists we have about 89% of our basic subscribers that are not subject to rate regulation

Other than requiring certain types of programming such as the carriage of local broadcast channels and any
public governmental or educational access channels to be part of the basic tier federal law does not currently

impose any other restrictions on the way such channels are provided e.g on tier or la carte In February 2006
the FCC adopted an order that expressed preference that cable operators provide more services individually or on
smaller tiers The FCC has taken no action on this matter since then and we cannot predict what action if any the

FCC will take however requirement to provide channels on smaller tiers or on an la carte basis could adversely
affect our business

In January 2009 the FCC commenced the process for seeking Office of Management and Budget approval for

the collection of information from cable operators in accordance with November 2007 FCC decision to determine

whether cable systems with at least 36 channels are available to at least 70 percent of U.S homes and whether
70 percent of households passed by those systems subscribe to cable service provider If that condition exists the

FCC may have additional discretion under the Cable Act to promulgate additional rules
necessary to promote

diversity of information sources The FCC did not specify what rules it would seek to promulgate We cannot

predict whether this information collection will ultimately be approved or what action if any the FCC may take or
how it could affect our business

Congress may also consider legislation regarding programming packaging bundling or Ia carte delivery of

programming Any such requirements could fundamentally change the way in which we package and price our
services We cannot predict the outcome of any current or future FCC proceedings or legislation in this area or the

impact of such proceedings on our business at this time

Content Regulations

Must Cariy and Retransmission Consent

The FCCs regulations require local commercial television broadcast stations to elect once every three years
whether to require cable system to carry their stations subject to certain exceptions commonly called

must-carry
or to negotiate the terms by which the cable system may carry the station on its cable systems commonly called

retransmission consent The most recent elections took effect January 2009
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The Cable Act and the FCCs regulations require cable operator to devote up to one-third of its activated

channel capacity for the carriage of local commercial television stations The Cable Act and the FCCs rules also

give certain local non-commercial educational television stations carriage rights but not the option to negotiate

retransmission consent Additionally cable systems must obtain retransmission consent for carriage of all distant

commercial television stations except for certain commercial satellite-delivered independent superstations such as

WGN commercial radio stations and certain low-power television stations

Through 2009 Congress barred broadcasters from entering into exclusive retransmission consent agreements

Congress also requires all parties to negotiate retransmission consent agreements
in good faith

Must-carry obligations may decrease the attractiveness of the cable operators overall programming offerings

by including less popular programming on the channel line-up while cable operators may need to provide some

form of consideration to broadcasters to obtain retransmission consent to carry more popular programming We

carry both must-carry broadcast stations and broadcast stations that have granted retransmission consent

significant
number of local broadcast stations carried by our cable systems have elected to negotiate for

retransmission consent and we have entered into retransmission consent agreements with substantially all of them

In February 2008 the FCC Chairman proposed requirement that cable operators carry signals of low-power

local television stations referred to as Class television stations Over 500 such stations exist mostly in rural areas

and they do not currently have must-carry rights The FCC has not taken any public action on this proposal If

ultimately imposed this carriage obligation could consume valuable bandwidth and force us to drop or prevent us

from adding other programming that is more highly valued by our subscribers

In February 2009 Congress delayed the final date by which all full-power television stations must broadcast

solely in digital format from February 18 2009 to June 13 2009 The legislation and the FCCs facilitating rule

changes generally empowered broadcasters to choose whether to discontinue analog transmissions on February 17th

at certain times prior to June 12th or on June 12 2009 After ceasing analog transmissions broadcasters must retum

their analog spectrum This change from analog to digital by broadcast television stations is commonly referred to as

the DTV transition or the digital transition Local television stations that surrender their analog channel and

broadcast only digital signals prior to the end of the digital transition may seek mandatory carriage for their digital

signals instead Stations transmitting in both digital and analog formats which is permitted during the transition

period have no carriage rights for the digital format during the transition unless and until they tam in their analog

channel

After broadcast station carried pursuant to must-carry has ceased transmitting in analog format the FCC has

mandated that it is the responsibility of cable operators to ensure that cable subscribers with analog television sets

can continue to view that broadcast stations signal thus creating dual carriage requirement for must-carry

signals post-DTV transition Cable operators
that are not all-digital will be required for at least three year period

to provide must-carry signals to their subscribers in the primary digital format in which the operator receives the

signal i.e high definition or standard definition and downconvert the signal from digital to analog so that it is

viewable to subscribers with analog television sets Cable systems that are all digital are not required to

downconvert must-carry signals into analog and may provide the must-carry signals in only in digital format The

FCC has ordered that the cable operator bear the cost of any downconversion The dual carriage requirement has

the potential of having negative impact on us because it reduces available channel capacity and thereby could

require us to either discontinue other channels of programming or restrict our ability to carry new channels of

programming or other services that may be more desirable to our customers

Tier Buy Through

The Cable Act and the FCCs regulations require our cable systems other than those systems
which are subject

to effective competition to permit subscribers to purchase video programming we offer on per channel or per

program basis without the necessity of subscribing to any tier of service other than the basic service tier

The FCC is reviewing complaint with respect to another cable operator to determine whether certain charges

routinely assessed by many cable operators including us to obtain access to digital services violate this anti-buy

through provision Any decision that requires us to restructure or eliminate such charges would have an adverse

effect on our business
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Use of Our Cable Systems by the Government and Unrelated Third Parties

The Cable Act allows local franchising authorities and unrelated third parties to obtain access to portion of

our cable systems channel capacity for their own use For example the Cable Act permits franchising authorities to

require cable operators to set aside channels for public educational and governmental access programming and

requires cable system with 36 or more activated channels to designate significant portion of that activated
channel capacity for commercial leased access by third parties to provide programming that may compete with

services offered by the cable operator

The FCC regulates various aspects of third
party commercial use of channel capacity on our cable systems

including the maximum reasonable rate cable operator may charge for third
party commercial use of the

designated channel capacity the terms and conditions for commercial use of such channels and the procedures for

the expedited resolution of disputes concerning rates or commercial use of the designated channel capacity

Migration of PEG channels from analog to digital service tiers frees up bandwidth over which we can provide

greater variety of other programming or service options During 2008 such migration however met opposition
from some municipalities members of Congress and FCC officials Any legislative or regulatory action to restrict

our ability to migrate PEG channels could adversely affect our ability to provide additional programming desired by
viewers

In February 2008 the FCC released Report and Order which could allow certain leased access users lower

cost access to channel capacity on cable systems The new regulations limit fees to 10 cents per subscriber
per

month for tiered channels and in some cases potentially no charge The regulations also impose variety of leased

access customer service information and reporting standards In May 2008 federal appeals court stayed

implementation of the new rules In July 2008 the United States Office of Management and Budget denied approval
of the new rules citing the FCCs failure to meet substantive requirements of The Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995
In July 2008 the federal appeals court agreed at the request of the FCC to hold the case in abeyance until the FCC
resolved its issues with the Office of Management and Budget If implemented as promulgated these changes will

likely increase our costs and could cause additional leased access activity on our cable systems and thereby require
us to either discontinue other channels of programming or restrict our ability to cany new channels of programming
or other services that may be more desirable to our customers We cannot however predict whether the FCC will

ultimately enact these rules as promulgated whether it will seek to implement revised rules or whether it will

attempt to implement any new commercial leased access rules

Franchise Matters

We have non-exclusive franchises in virtually every community in which we operate that authorize us to

construct operate and maintain our cable systems Although franchising matters have traditionally been regulated at

the local level through franchise agreement and/or local ordinance many states now allow or require cable
service providers to bypass the local

process and obtain franchise
agreements or equivalent authorizations directly

from state government Many of the states in which we operate including California Florida Georgia Illinois

Indiana Iowa Kansas Michigan Missouri North Carolina and Wisconsin make state-issued franchises available
State-issued franchises in many states generally allow local telephone companies or others to deliver services in

competition with our cable service without obtaining equivalent local franchises In states where available we are

generally able to obtain state-issued franchises upon expiration of our existing franchises Our business may be

adversely affected to the extent that our competitors are able to operate under franchises that are more favorable than

our existing local franchises While most franchising matters are dealt with at the state and/or local level the Cable
Act provides oversight and guidelines to govern our relationship with local franchising authorities whether they are
at the state county or municipal level

Ownershi Limitations

The FCC previously adopted nationwide limits on the number of subscribers under the control of cable

operator and on the number of channels that can be occupied on cable system by video programming in which the

cable operator has an interest The U.S Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit reversed the FCCs
decisions implementing these statutory provisions and remanded the case to the FCc for further proceedings In

December 2007 the FCC reinstituted restriction setting the maximum number of subscribers that cable operator

may serve at 30 percent nationwide The FCC also has commenced rulemaking to review vertical ownership limits

and cable and broadcasting attribution rules
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Registered utility holding companies and their subsidiaries may provide telecommunications and cable

services The FCC has adopted rules that affirm the ability of electric service providers to provide broadband

Internet access services over their distribution systems and ii seek to avoid interference with existing services

Electric utilities could be formidable competitors to cable system operators

Cable Equipment

The Cable Act and FCC regulations seek to promote competition in the delivery of cable equipment by giving

consumers the right to purchase set-top converters from third parties as long as the equipment does not harm the

network does not interfere with services purchased by other customers and is not used to receive unauthorized

services Over multi-year phase-in period the rules also required multichannel video programming distributors

other than direct broadcast satellite operators to separate security from non-security functions in set-top converters

to allow third party vendors to provide set-tops with basic converter functions To promote compatibility of cable

systems and consumer electronics equipment the FCC adopted rules implementing plug and play specifications

for one-way digital televisions The rules require cable operators to provide CableCard security modules and

support for digital televisions equipped with built-in set-top functionality In May 2008 Sony Electronics and

members of the cable industry submitted to the FCC Memorandum of Understanding MOU in connection with

the development of tru2wayTM national two-way plug and play platform other members of the consumer

electronics industry have since joined the MOU

Since July 2007 cable operators have been prohibited from issuing to their customers new set-top terminals

that integrate security and basic navigation functions The FCC has set forth number of limited circumstances

under which it will grant waivers of this requirement We obtained conditional waiver from the FCC that allowed

us to deploy low-cost integrated set-top boxes in certain cable systems serving less than five percent
of our

subscriber base and we have met the condition to upgrade to all-digital operations in those systems by February 17

2009 In all other systems we remain in full compliance with the rules banning integration of security and basic

navigation functions in set-top terminals

On March 2009 the FCC issued Notice of Inquiry to collect information regarding the existence and

availability of advanced technologies to allow blocking of parental selected content that are compatible with various

communications devices or platforms The Child Safe Viewing Act of 2007 requires that the FCC to issue report to

Congress by August 29 2009 Congress intends to use that information to spur development of the next generation

of parental control technology Additional requirements to permit selective parental blocking could impose

additional costs on us

Pole Attachment Regulation

The Cable Act requires certain public utilities including all local telephone companies and electric utilities

except
those owned by municipalities and co-operatives to provide cable operators and telecommunications carriers

with nondiscriminatory access to poles ducts conduit and rights-of-way at just and reasonable rates This right to

access is beneficial to us Federal law also requires the FCC to regulate the rates terms and conditions imposed by

such public utilities for cable systems use of utility pole and conduit space unless state authorities have

demonstrated to the FCC that they adequately regulate pole attachment rates as is the case in certain states in which

we operate In the absence of state regulation the FCC will regulate pole attachment rates terms and conditions only

in response to formal complaint The FCC adopted new rate formula that became effective in 2001 which

governs
the maximum rate certain utilities may charge for attachments to their poles and conduit by companies

providing telecommunications services including cable operators

This telecommunications services formula which produces higher maximum permitted attachment rates applies

only to cable systems
which elect to offer telecommunications services The FCC ruled that the provision of Internet

services would not in and of itself trigger use of this new formula The Supreme Court affirmed this decision and

held that the FCCs authority to regulate rates for attachments to utility poles extended to attachments by cable

operators
and telecommunications carriers that are used to provide Internet service or for wireless

telecommunications service The Supreme Courts decision upholding the FCCs classification of cable modem

service as an information service should strengthen our ability to resist rate increases based solely on the delivery of

cable modem services over our cable systems As we continue our deployment of cable telephony and certain other

advanced services utilities may continue to seek to invoke the higher rates
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As result of the Supreme Court case upholding the FCCs classification of cable modem service as an

information service the 11th Circuit has considered whether there are circumstances in which utility can ask for

and receive rates from cable operators over and above the rates set by FCC regulation In the 11th Circuits decision

upholding the FCC rate formula as providing pole owners with just compensation the 11th Circuit also determined

that there were limited set of circumstances in which utility could ask for and receive rates from cable operators

over and above the rates set by the formula including if an individual pole was full and where it could show lost

opportunities to rent space presently occupied by another attacher at rates higher than provided under the rate

formula. After this determination Gulf Power Company pursued just such claim based on these limited

circumstances before the FCC The Administrative Law Judge appointed by the FCC to determine whether the

circumstances were indeed met ultimately determined that Gulf Power could not demonstrate that the poles at issue

were full Gulf Power has appealed this decision to the full Commission and the appeal is pending Failing to

receive favorable ruling there Gulf Power could
pursue

its claims in the federal court

In November 2007 the FCC released Notice of Proposed Rulemaking NPRM addressing pole attachment

rental rates certain terms and conditions of pole access and other issues The NPRM calls for review of long

standing FCC rules and regulations including the long-standing cable rate formula and considers effectively

eliminating cables lower pole attachment fees by imposing higher unified rate for entities providing broadband

Internet service While we cannot predict the effect that the outcome of the NPRM will ultimately have on our

business changes to our pole attachment rate structure could significantly increase our annual pole attachment costs

Multiple Dwelling Unit Building Wiring

The FCC has adopted cable inside wiring rules to provide more specific procedure for the disposition of

residential home wiring and internal building wiring that belongs to an incumbent cable operator that is forced by
the building owner to terminate its cable services in building with multiple dwelling units In 2007 the FCC issued

rules voiding existing and prohibiting future exclusive service contracts for services to multiple dwelling unit or

other residential developments In March 2008 the FCC enacted ban on the contractual provisions that provide for

the exclusive provision of telecommunications services to residential apartment buildings and other multiple tenant

environments The loss of exclusive service rights in existing contracts coupled with our inability to secure such

express rights in the future may adversely affect our business to subscribers residing in multiple dwelling unit

buildings and certain other residential developments

Copyright

Our cable systems typically include in their channel line-ups local and distant television and radio broadcast

signals which are protected by the copyright laws We generally do not obtain license to use this programming
directly from the owners of the copyrights associated with this programming but instead comply with an alternative

federal compulsory copyright licensing process In exchange for filing certain reports and contributing percentage
of our revenues to federal copyright royalty pool we obtain blanket permission to retransmit the copyrighted
material carried on these broadcast signals The nature and amount of future copyright payments for broadcast signal

carriage cannot be predicted at this time

In 1999 Congress modified the satellite compulsory license in manner that permits DBS providers to become

more competitive with cable operators Congress adopted legislation in 2004 extending this authority for an
additional five years Absent implementation of the recommendations by the Copyright Office in its 2008 Report to

Congress discussed below to abandon the current cable and satellite compulsory licenses Congress may act to

extend the satellite compulsory license beyond 2009 In conjunction with this review Congress held several

hearings in February 2009 some of which included testimony with respect to the continuation or modification of the

cable compulsory license

The 2004 legislation also directed the United States Copyright Office to submit report to Congress by June

2008 recommending any changes to the cable and satellite licenses that the Office deems
necessary The Copyright

Offices Report to Congress analyzed copyright compulsory licensing for the cable and satellite television

industries carriage of broadcast television signals and made recommendations as to any necessary revisions The

Copyright Offices long-term recommendation was to abandon the cable Section 111 and satellite

Section 119 compulsory licenses for carriage of distant broadcast signals but as an interim measure create an

unified short-term
statutory license to commence when the Section 119 license expires at the end of 2009 In the

alternative the Copyright Office makes specific recommendations for statutory reform of the cable compulsory
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license Among other things the Copyright Office recommends that Congress make legislative changes to treat each

non-simulcast multicast stream of distant signal as separate signal subject to royalty fee change that could

significantly increase our copyright royalty costs In addition the Copyright Office recommends elimination of the

complex formula currently used for calculating Section 111 royalty fees in favor flat per-subscriber per-signal

fee and elimination of the minimum fee currently paid even where no distant signals are carried The impact of

these proposal on our copyright costs cannot be predicted The Copyright Office Report includes other

recommendations regarding the operation of the Section 111 including placing limits on the number of distant

broadcast signals that can be carried which can adversely affect the desirability of the programming we offer to

subscribers The Copyright Office warns that piecemeal modification of the statutory provisions
could upset the

delicate statutory structure The elimination or substantial modification of the cable compulsory license could

adversely affect our ability to obtain suitable programming and could substantially increase the cost of programming

that remains available for distribution to our subscribers

The Copyright Office has commenced inquiries soliciting comment on petitions it received seeking clarification

and revisions of certain cable compulsory copyright license reporting requirements and clarification of certain issues

relating to the application of the compulsory license to the carriage of digital broadcast stations The petitions seek

among other things clarification regarding
inclusion in gross revenues of digital converter fees additional set

fees for digital service and revenue from required buy throughs to obtain digital service ii reporting of dual

carriage and multicast signals and iiicertain reporting practices including the definition ofcominunity In May

2008 the Copyright
Office terminated Notice of Inquiry proceeding concluding that cable operators must include

in their compulsory license royalty calculation distant signal carried anywhere in the cable system as if it were

carried everywhere in the system thus resulting in payments on phantom signals While the Office determined

that it did not have the authority to change the royalty fee structure it did advocate for updating
the cable system

defmition as part of its Report to Congress to address this concern Moreover the Copyright Office has not yet acted

on filed petition and may solicit comment on the definition of the definition of network station for purposes of

the compulsory license

We cannot predict the outcome of any legislative or agency activity however it is possible that certain changes

in the rules or copyright compulsory license fee computations or compliance procedures could have an adverse

affect on our business by increasing our copyright compulsory license fee costs or by causing us to reduce or

discontinue carriage of certain broadcast signals that we currently carry on discretionary basis Further we are

unable to predict the outcome of any legislative or agency activity related to the right of direct broadcast satellite

providers to deliver local or distant broadcast signals

Privacy and Data Security

The Cable Act imposes number of restrictions on the manner in which cable operators can collect disclose

and retain data about individual system customers and requires cable operators to take such actions as necessary to

prevent unauthorized access to such information The statute also requires that the system operator periodically

provide
all customers with written information about its policies including the types of information collected the

use of such information the nature frequency and purpose of any disclosures the period of retention the times and

places where customer may hive access to such information the limitations placed on the cable operator by the

Cable Act and customers enforcement rights In the event that cable operator is found to have violated the

customer privacy provisions of the Cable Act it could be required to pay damages attorneys fees and other costs

Certain of these Cable Act requirements have been modified by certain more recent federal laws Other federal laws

currently impact the circumstances and the manner in which we disclose certain customer information and future

federal legislation may further impact our obligations In addition many states in which we operate
have also

enacted customer privacy statutes including obligations to notify customers where certain customer information is

accessed or believed to have been accessed without authorization These state provisions are in some cases more

restrictive than those in federal law In February 2009 federal appellate court upheld an FCC regulation that

requires VoIP subscribers to provide opt-in approval before certain subscriber information can be shared with

business partner for marketing purposes Moreover we are subject to variety of federal requirements governing

certain privacy practices and programs

During 2008 several members of Congress commenced an inquiry into the use by certain cable operators of

third-party system that tracked activities of subscribers to facilitate the delivery of advertising more precisely

targeted to each household practice known as behavioral advertising In February 2009 the Federal Trade

Commission issued revised self-regulatory principles for online behavioral advertising We cannot predict if there
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will be additional regulatory action or whether Congress will enact legislation that impacts the ability to effectively

engage in behavioral advertising in the future Additionally future federal and/or state laws may cover such issues

as privacy access to some types of content by minors pricing encryption standards consumer protection electronic

commerce taxation of e-commerce copyright infringement and other intellectual property matters The adoption of

such laws or regulations in the future may decrease the growth of such services and the Internet which could in turn

decrease the demand for our HSD service increase our costs of providing such service impair the ability to access

potential future advertising revenue streams or have other adverse effects on our business financial condition and
results of operations

HSD Service

In 2002 the FCC announced that it was classifying Internet access service provided through cable modems as

an interstate information service and determined that
gross revenues from such services should not be included in

the revenue base from which franchise fees are calculated Although the United States Supreme Court has held that

cable modem service was properly classified by the FCC as an information service freeing it from regulation as

telecommunications service it recognized that the FCC has jurisdiction to impose regulatory obligations on

facilities-based Internet service providers The FCC has an ongoing rulemaking process to determine whether to

impose regulatory obligations on such providers including us Because of the FCCs decision we are no longer

collecting and remitting franchise fees on our high-speed Internet service revenues We are unable to predict the

ultimate resolution of these matters but do not expect that any additional franchise fees we may be required to pay
will be material to our business and operations

In 2005 the FCC issued non-binding policy statement providing four principles to guide its policymaking
regarding Internet services According to the policy statement consumers are entitled to access the lawful

Internet content of their choice ii run applications and services of their choice subject to the needs of law

enforcement iii connect their choice of legal devices that do not harm the network and iv enjoy competition

among network providers application and service providers and content providers These principles are generally
referred to as network neutrality In January 2008 the FCC opened an investigation against another cable operator
for violating its 2005 policy statement by among other things allegedly managing user bandwidth consumption by

identifying and restricting the applications being run and the actual bandwidth consumed In August 2008 the FCC
took action against another cable provider after determining that the network management practices of that provider
violated the FCCs Internet Policy Statement This decision may establish de facto standards that limit the network

management practices that cable operators use to manage bandwidth consumption on their networks We cannot

predict the outcome of any pending proceedings or any impact these developments may have on the FCCs net

neutrality requirements as they apply to other Internet access providers

Our HSD service enables individuals to access the Internet and to exchange information generate content
conduct business and engage in various online activities on an international basis The law relating to the liability of

providers of these online services for activities of their users is currently unsettled both within the United States and
abroad Potentially third parties could seek to hold us liable for the actions and omissions of our HSD service

customers such as defamation negligence copyright or trademark infringement fraud or other theories based on
the nature and content of information that our customers use our service to post download or distribute We also

could be subject to similar claims based on the content of other websites to which we provide links or third-party

products services or content that we may offer through our Internet service Due to the global nature of the Web it

is possible that the governments of other states and foreign countries might attempt to regulate its transmissions or

prosecute us for violations of their laws

We regularly receive notices of claimed infringements by our HSD service users The owners of copyrights and

trademarks have been increasingly active in seeking to prevent use of the Internet to violate their rights In many
cases their claims of infringement are based on the acts of customers of an Internet service provider for example

customers use of an Internet service or the resources it provides to post download or disseminate copyrighted

music movies software or other content without the consent of the copyright owner or to seek to profit from the use
of the goodwill associated with another persons trademark In some cases copyright and trademark owners have

sought to recover damages from the Internet service provider as well as or instead of the customer The law relating

to the potential liability of Internet service providers in these circumstances is unsettled In 1996 Congress adopted
the Digital Millennium Copyright Act which is intended to grant ISPs protection against certain claims of copyright

infringement resulting from the actions of customers provided that the ISP complies with certain requirements So

far Congress has not adopted similarprotections for trademark infringement claims
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Voice-over-Internet Protocol Telephony

The 1996 amendments to the Cable Act created more favorable regulatory environment for cable operators to

enter the phone business Over the past several years numerous cable operators have commenced offering VoIP

telephony as competitive alternative to traditional circuit-switched telephone service Various states including

states where we operate have adopted or are considering differing regulatory treatment ranging from minimal or no

regulation to full-blown common carrier status As part of the proceeding to determine any appropriate regulatory

obligations for VoIP telephony the FCC recently decided that alternative voice technologies like certain types of

VoIP telephony should be regulated only at the federal level rather than by individual states Many implementation

details remain unresolved and there are substantial regulatory changes being considered that could either benefit or

harm VoIP telephony as business operation While the final outcome of the FCC proceedings cannot be predicted

it is generally believed that the FCC favors light touch regulatory approach for VoIP telephony which might

include preemption of certain state or local regulation In 2006 the FCC announced that it would require VoIP

providers to contribute to the Universal Service Fund based on their interstate service revenues Recently the FCC

issued Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking with respect to possible changes in the intercarrier compensation

model in way that could financially disadvantage us and benefit some of our competitors Beginning in 2007

facilities-based broadband Internet access and interconnected VoIP service providers were required to comply with

Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act requirements It is unknown what conclusions or actions the

FCC may take or the effects on our business

Despite the FCCs interpretations to date the Missouri Public Service Commission has held that cable

operators providing VoIP services must obtain state certification The decision is being appealed by that cable

provider

In January 2009 the FCC issued letter to another cable provider of VoIP service that could signal shift in

the regulatory classification of VoIP service In that letter the FCC questioned whether the segregation of VoIP for

bandwidth management purposes would make it facilities based provider of telecommunications services and thus

subject to common carrier regulation We cannot predict how these issues will be resolved

State and Local Regulation

Our cable systems use local streets and rights-of-way Consequently we must comply with state and local

regulation which is typically imposed through the franchising process Our cable systems generally are operated in

accordance with non-exclusive franchises permits or licenses granted by municipality or other state or local

government entity Our franchises generally are granted for fixed terms and in many cases are terminable if we fail

to comply with material provisions The terms and conditions of our franchises vary materially from jurisdiction to

jurisdiction Each franchise generally contains provisions governing

franchise fees

franchise term

system construction and maintenance obligations

system channel capacity

design and technical performance

customer service standards

sale or transfer of the franchise and

territory of the franchise
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to our Operations

Our products and services face great deal of competition that could adversely afftct our business financial

condition and results of operations

We operate in highly competitive industry In some instances we compete against companies with fewer

regulatory burdens easier access to financing greater resources and operating capabilities more brand name

recognition and long-standing relationships with regulatory authorities and customers

Our principal competitors are DBS providers and local telephone companies DBS providers principally

DirecTV and DISH are our most significant video competitors They have video offering that is in some respects

similar to our video services including DVR and some interactive capabilities and hold exclusive rights to

programming such as the NFL that is not available to us and other video providers We have lost significant

number of video subscribers to DBS providers in the past and will continue to face significant challenges from

them Certain local telephone companies including ATT Verizon and Qwest are actively deploying fiber more

extensively in their networks In the case of ATT and Verizon these deployments enable them to offer video HSD

and phone service to consumers in bundled packages similar to those which we currently provide DBS providers in

some cases have marketing agreements under which local telephone companies sell DBS service bundled with their

phone and HSD services These synthetic bundles are generally billed as single package and from consumer

standpoint appear similar to our triple play bundle We also face competition from municipal entities that provide

video HSD and phone services Some municipal entities are also exploring building wireless networks to deliver

these services Many companies have increased their offerings of video content streamed over the Internet often

accessed free of charge which could negatively impact demand for our video services

Our HSD service faces competition from local telephone companies utilizing their upgraded fiber networks

and/or DSL lines Wi-Fi Wi-Max and wireless broadband services provided by wireless service providers

broadband over power line providers and from providers of traditional dial-up Internet access The American

Recovery Act of 2009 provides specific funding for broadband development as part of the economic stimulus

package It is likely that some of our existing and potential competitors will apply for funds under this program

which if successful may allow them to build or expand facilities faster and deploy existing and new services sooner

and to more areas than they otherwise would

Our phone service faces competition for voice customers from local telephone companies wireless telephone

service providers VoIP service and others Competition in phone service is intensifying as more consumers are

replacing their wireline service with wireless service

Weakening economic conditions may adversely impact our business financial condition and results of

operations

During 2008 the downtum in the global financial markets the tightening of credit markets and the collapse of

several large financial institutions caused already weak economic conditions to worsen Most of our revenues are

provided by residential customers who may downgrade their services or discontinue some or all of their services if

these economic conditions persist or further weaken

We may be unable to keep pace with rapid technological change that could adversely affect our business and

our results of operations

We operate in rapidly changing environment and our success depends in part on our ability to enhance

existing or adopt new technologies to maintain or improve our competitive positioning It may be difficult to keep

pace with future technological developments and if we fail to choose technologies that provide products and

services that are preferred by our customers and that are cost efficient to us we may experience customer losses and

our results of operations may be adversely affected
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The continuing increases in programming costs may have an adverse affect on our results of operations

Programming costs have historically been our largest single expense category and have increased dramatically

over the last several years The largest increases have come from sports programming and more recently from

broadcast stations in the form of retransmission consent fees We expect programming costs to continue to increase

in the coming years largely as result of both increased unit costs charged by the satellite delivered networks we

carry
in addition to increasing financial demands by local broadcast stations to obtain their retransmission consent

If we refuse to meet the demands of these broadcast station owners or are unable to negotiate reasonable contracts

with non-broadcast networks we may not be able to transmit these stations which may result in the loss of existing

or potential additional subscribers

Our video service profit margins have declined over the last several years as the cost to secure cable

programming and broadcast station retransmission consent outpaces video revenue growth If we are unable to

increase subscriber rates or offer additional services to fully offset such programming costs our video service

margins will continue to deteriorate

We may be unable to secure necessary hardware software telecommunications and operational support that

may impair our ability to provision and service our customers and adversely affect our business

Third party firms provide some of the inputs used in delivering our products and services including digital set-

top converter boxes DVRs and VOD equipment routers provisioning and other software the telecommunications

network interconnection agreements and e-mail platform for our HSD and phone services fiber optic cable and

construction services for expansion and upgrades of our cable systems and our customer billing platform Some of

these companies may hold leverage over us considering that they are the sole supplier of certain products and

services or that there is long lead time and/or significant expense required to transition to another provider As

result our operation depends on the successful operation of these companies Any delays or disruptions in the

relationship as result of contractual disagreements operational or financial failures on the part of the suppliers or

other adverse events could negatively affect our ability to effectively provision and service our customers Demand

for some of these items has increased with the general growth in demand for Internet and telecommunications

services We typically do not carry significant inventories of equipment Moreover if there are no suppliers that are

able to provide set-top converter boxes that comply with evolving Internet and telecommunications standards or

that are compatible with other equipment and software that we use this could negatively affect our ability to

effectively provision and service our customers

We depend on network and information systems and other technologies disruption or failure in such

systems and technologies could have material adverse affect on our business financial condition and results of

operations

Because of the importance of network and information systems and other technologies to our business any

events affecting these systems and technologies could have devastating impact on our business These events

include computer hacking computer viruses worms or other disruptive software process breakdowns denial of

service attacks and other malicious activities or any combination of the foregoing natural disasters power outages

and man-made disasters Such occurrences may cause service disruptions loss of customers and revenues and

negative publicity and may result in significant expenditures to repair or replace the damaged infrastructure or

protect from similar occurrences in the future We may also be negatively affected by the illegal acquisition and

dissemination of data and information including customer personnel and vendor data and this may require us to

expend significant capital and other resources to remedy any such security breach

Our business depends on certain intellectual property rig/its and on not infringing on the intellectual

property rights of others

We rely on our copyrights trademarks and trade secrets as well as licenses and other agreements with our

vendors and other parties to use our technologies conduct our operations and sell our products and services Third

parties have in the past and may in the future assert claims or initiate litigation related to exclusive patent

copyright trademark and other intellectual property rights to technologies and related standards that are relevant to

us These assertions have increased over time as result of our growth and the general increase in the pace of patent

claims assertions particularly in the United States Because of the existence of large number of patents in the
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networking field the
secrecy

of some pending patents and the rapid rate of issuance of new patents it is not

economically practical or even possible to determine in advance whether product or any of its components

infringes or will infringe on the patent rights of others Asserted claims and/or initiated litigation can include claims

against us or our manufacturers suppliers or customers alleging infringement of their proprietary rights with

respect to our existing or future products and/or services or components of those products and/or services

Regardless of the merit of these claims they can be time-consuming result in costly litigation and diversion of

technical and management personnel or require us to develop non-infringing technology or enter into license

agreements There can be no assurance that licenses will be available on acceptable terms and conditions if at all or

that our indemnification by our suppliers will be adequate to cover our costs if claim were brought directly against

us or our customers Furthermore because of the potential for high court awards that are not necessarily predictable

it is not unusual to find even arguably unmeritorious claims settled for significant amounts If any infringement or

other intellectual property claim made against us by any third party is successful if we are required to indenmify

customer with respect to claim against the customer or if we fail to develop non-infringing technology or license

the proprietary rights on commercially reasonable terms and conditions our business results of operations and

financial condition could be adversely affected

Some of our cable systems operate in the Gulf Coast region which historically has experienced severe

hurricanes and tropical storms

Cable systems serving approximately 10% of our subscribers are located on or near the Gulf Coast in Alabama

Florida and Mississippi In 2004 and 2005 three hurricanes impacted these cable systems to varying degrees causing

property damage service interruption and loss of customers The Gulf Coast could experience severe hurricanes in

the future This could adversely impact our results of operations in affected areas causing us to experience higher

than normal levels of expense and capital expenditures as well as the potential loss of customers and revenues

The loss of key personnel could have material adverse effect on our business

Our success is substantially dependent upon the retention of and the continued performance by our key

personnel including Rocco Commisso our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Our debt arrangements

provide that default may result if Mr Commisso ceases to be our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer or if he

and his designees do not constitute majority of the Executive Committee of each of Mediacom LLC and

Mediacom Broadband LLC We have not entered into long-term employment agreement with Mr Commisso We
do not currently maintain key man life insurance on Mr Commisso or other key personnel If any of our key

personnel ceases to participate in our business and operations it could have an adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations
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Risks Related to our Financial Condition

We are exposed to risks caused by disruptions in the capital and credit markets which could have an adverse

affect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We rely on the capital markets for senior note offerings and on the credit markets for bank credit arrangements

to meet our financial commitments and liquidity needs Over the past several months the U.S economy entered

recession with major downturns in financial markets and the collapse or significant weakening of many banks and

other financial institutions The capital and credit markets severely tightened making it extremely difficult for many

companies to obtain financing at all or on terms comparable to those available over the past several years The

disruptions in the capital and credit markets could adversely affect our ability to refinance on satisfactory terms or

at all our scheduled debt maturities in the coming years and could adversely affect our ability to draw on our

revolving credit facilities

As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the Exchange Agreement with an affiliate of Morris

Communications which was completed on February 13 2009 approximately $284.0 million was available for

borrowing under the revolving credit facility maintained by the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC the LLC
Revolver and approximately $368.1 million could be borrowed under the revolving credit facility of the operating

subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC the Broadband Revolver The LLC revolver expires on

September 30 2011 and the Broadband Revolver expires on December 31 2012 Beyond 2012 we also face

significant principal payments on outstanding senior notes of Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Broadband LLC as

well as term loans under the bank credit agreements of their respective operating subsidiaries If the current

economic conditions were to persist or worsen we may not be able to replace the liquidity lost as each revolving

credit facility expires or refinance outstanding balances on maturing revolving credit facilities term loans or senior

notes at all or on acceptable terms Even if we can secure refinancing if prevailing credit market conditions persist

or worsen we would likely pay considerably higher interest rates on any refinancing or new financing than those we

currently pay

We also could be negatively affected by the weakness or failure of some of the financial institutions we rely

upon for liquidity Some lenders may not be able to meet their funding obligations to us under the LLC and

Broadband Revolvers if they experience shortages of capital or liquidity If that were to happen our other lenders

would not be required to fund any shortfalls because their obligations to us are several but not joint If one or more

lenders failed to fund in aggregate significant share of any future borrowings under our revolving credit facilities

there could be material adverse impact upon our financial condition and results of operations

We also may take measures to conserve cash and hold significantly higher cash balances than we have in the

recent past until the financial markets stabilize This may include the deferral of capital expenditures which could

adversely affect our ability to retain our existing customer base and attract new customers

We have substantial debt we are highly leveraged and we have significant interest payment requirements

which could limit our operational flexibility and have an adverse affect on our financial condition and results of

operations

As of December 31 2008 our total debt was approximately $3.3 16 billion Because of our substantial

indebtedness we are highly leveraged and will continue to be so As result our debt service obligations require us

to use large portion of our revenues and cash flows to pay interest reducing our ability to finance our operations

capital expenditures and other activities Our cash interest expense for 2008 was $217.8 million portion of our

debt including outstanding debt under our revolving credit facilities has variable rate of interest determined by the

Eurodollar rate plus margin which varies depending on the ratio of senior indebtedness as defined under the

credit facility to system cash flow as defined If we incurred additional debt under our revolving credit facilities

the Eurodollar rate were to rise and/or our system cash flow decreased we would be required to pay additional

interest expense which would have an adverse affect on our results of operations

Our credit agreements and senior notes require compliance with certain financial and other covenants

including but not limited to ratio of senior indebtedness as defmed to annualized system cash flow as defined

of no more than 6.0 to 1.0 The credit agreements also require compliance with other covenants including but not

limited to limitations on mergers and acquisitions consolidations and sales of certain assets liens the incurrence of
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additional indebtedness certain restricted payments and certain transactions with affihiate Our senior notes contain

financial and other covenants though they are generally less restrictive than those found in our bank credit facilities

Principal covenants include limitation on the incurrence of additional indebtedness based upon maximum ratio of

total indebtedness to cash flow as defined in these debt agreements of 7.0 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom LLCs

senior notes and 8.5 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom Broadband LLCs senior notes These agreements also contain

limitations on dividends investments and distributions Complying with these covenants may cause us to take

actions that we otherwise would not take or cause us not to take actions that we otherwise would take

We cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flows to permit us to fulfill our financial

covenants or revenues to fulfill our debt service and repay our debt Our highly leveraged position exposes us to

significant risk in the event of downturns in the economy or our business

We are holding company and our operating subsidiaries are unable to make funds available to us we may

not be able to fund their indebtedness and other obligations

We are holding company and do not have any operations or hold any assets other than our investments in

and our advances to our direct wholly-owned subsidiaries Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom LLC The

various operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom LLC conduct all of our consolidated

operations and own substantially all of our consolidated assets The only source of cash that they have to fund their

obligations including without limitation the payment of interest on and the repayment of principal of their

outstanding indebtedness is the cash that the operating subsidiaries generate from their operations and from

borrowing under their subsidiary credit facilities The operating subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities

and have no obligation contingent or otherwise to make funds available to Mediacom Broadband LLC or

Mediacom LLC The ability of our subsidiaries to make flmds available to us in the form of dividends loans

advances or other payments will depend upon the operating results of such subsidiaries applicable laws and

contractual restrictions including covenants under such subsidiaries credit facilities and the indentures governing

our senior notes

In the event of liquidation or reorganization of any of our subsidiaries the creditors of any of such

subsidiaries including trade creditors would be entitled to claim on the assets of such subsidiaries prior to any

claims of the stockholders of any such subsidiaries and those creditors are likely to be paid in full before any

distribution is made to such stockholders To the extent that we or any of our direct or indirect subsidiaries is

creditor of another of our subsidiaries the claims of such creditor could be subordinated to any security interest in

the assets of such subsidiary and/or any indebtedness of such subsidiary senior to that held by such creditor

default under our indentures or our credit facilities could result in an acceleration of our indebtedness

and other material adverse effr c/s

The agreements and instruments governing our subsidiaries indebtedness contain financial and operating

covenants The breach of any of these covenants could cause default which may result in the indebtedness

becoming immediately due and payable If this were to occur we would be unable to adequately finance our

operations In addition default could result in default or acceleration of our other indebtedness subject to cross-

default provisions If this occurs we may not be able to pay our debts or borrow sufficient funds to refinance them

Even if new financing is available it may not be on terms that are acceptable to us The membership interests of our

operating subsidiaries are pledged as collateral under our respective subsidiary credit facilities default under one

of our subsidiary credit facilities could result in foreclosure by the lenders on the membership interests pledged

under that facility Because we are dependent upon our operating subsidiaries for all of our cash flows foreclosure

would have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

lowering of the ratings assigned to our debt securities by ratings agencies may fur/her increase our future

borrowing costs and reduce our access to capitaL

Our debt ratings are below the investment grade category which results in higher borrowing costs There can

be no assurance that our debt ratings will not be lowered in the future by rating agency While there are no

restrictions or covenants tied to our debt ratings under our current arrangements lowering in our debt ratings may

further increase our future borrowing costs as well as reduce our access to capital
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We have histoiy of net losses and we may continue to generate net losses in the future

We have history of net losses and may continue to report net losses in the future We reported net losses of

$77.5 million $95.1 million and $124.9 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively In general our net losses principally result from depreciation and amortization expenses associated

with our acquisitions and the capital expenditures related to expanding and upgrading our cable systems interest

expense and other financing charges related to our indebtedness and losses on derivatives Should our net losses

continue they may limit our ability to attract needed financing and to do so on favorable terms because such losses

may detract some investors from investing in our securities

Changes to our valuation account for deferred tax assets can cause our net income or net loss to fluctuate

significantly

As of December 31 2008 we had pre-tax net operating loss carryforwards for federal purposes of

approximately $2.3 billion if not utilized they will expire in the years 2021 through 2028 Mostly due to these net

operating loss carryforwards as of December 31 2008 we had deferred tax assets of $968.3 million These assets

have been reduced by valuation allowance of $677.4 million to reflect our assessment of the likelihood of their

recovery in future periods

We periodically assess the likelihood of realization of our deferred tax assets considering all available

evidence both positive and negative including our most recent performance the scheduled reversal of deferred tax

liabilities our forecast of taxable income in future periods and the availability of prudent tax planning strategies As

result of these assessments in prior years we have established valuation allowances on portion of our deferred

tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the realization of these assets

We expect to add to our valuation allowance for any increase in the deferred tax liabilities relating to indefinite-

lived intangible assets We will also adjust our valuation allowance if we assess that there is sufficient change in our

ability to recover our deferred tax assets Our income tax expense in future periods will be reduced or increased to

the extent of offsetting decreases or increases respectively in our valuation allowance These changes could have

significant impact on our future earnings

Impairment of our goodwill and other intangible assets could cause signflcant losses

As of December 31 2008 we had approximately $2.0 billion of unamortized intangible assets including

goodwill of $220.7 million and franchise rights of $1.8 billion on our consolidated balance sheets These intangible

assets represented approximately 54% of our total assets

FASB Statement No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets requires that goodwill and other intangible

assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives such as cable franchise rights cease to be amortized SFAS No 142

requires that goodwill and certain intangible assets be tested at least annually for impairment If we find that the

carrying value of goodwill or cable franchise rights exceeds its fair value we will reduce the carrying value of the

goodwill or intangible asset to the fair value and will recognize an impairment loss in our results of operations

The impairment tests require us to make an estimate of the fair value of intangible assets which is determined

using discounted cash flow methodology Since number of factors may influence determinations of fair value of

intangible assets we are unable to predict whether impairments of goodwill or other indefmite-lived intangibles will

occur in the future Any such impairment would result in our recognizing corresponding write-off which could

cause us to report significant noncash operating loss Such impairment could have an adverse effect on our

business financial condition and results of operations Our annual impairment analysis was performed as of

October 2008 and resulted in no impairment Given the continuing economic downturn and overall market

conditions we may be required to conduct an impairment analysis prior to our anniversary date and such analysis

may result in an impairment of the fair value of our intangible assets
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Risks Related to Legislative and Regulatory Matters

Changes in cable regulations could adversely impact our business

The cable industry is subject to extensive legislation and regulation at the federal and local levels and in some

instances at the state level Many aspects of such regulation are currently the subject of judicial and administrative

proceedings and legislative and administrative proposals and lobbying efforts by us and our competitors We expect

that court actions and regulatory proceedings will continue to refine our rights and obligations under applicable

federal state and local laws The results of current or future judicial and administrative proceedings and legislative

activities cannot be predicted Modifications to existing requirements or imposition of new requirements or

limitations could have an adverse impact on our business including those described below See Business

Legislation and Regulation

Additional regulation of rates charged for our services could impair future revenues

Expansion of rate regulation beyond that currently imposed on certain of our cable services or on any other

services we offer could restrict our ability to generate future revenues and thus adversely affect our business See

Business Legislation and Regulation Federal Regulation Subscriber Rates and Program Tiering

Denials offranchise renewals or continued absence offranchise parity can adversely impact our business

Where State-Issued Franchises are not available local franchising authorities may demand concessions or

other commitments as condition to renewal and these concessions or other commitments could be costly

Although the Cable Act affords certain protections there is no assurance that we will not be compelled to meet their

demands in order to obtain renewals

Our cable systems are operated under non-exclusive franchises As of December 31 2007 approximately

12.3% of the estimated homes passed by our cable systems were served by other cable operators Because of the

FCCs actions to speed issuance of local competitive franchises and because many states in which we operate cable

systems have adopted and other states may adopt legislation to allow others including local telephone companies to

deliver services in competition with our cable service without obtaining equivalent local franchises we may face not

only increasing competition but we may be at competitive disadvantage due to lack of regulatory parity Any of

these factors could adversely affect our business See Business Legislation and Regulation Federal

Regulation Franchise Matters

Changes in carriage requirements could impose additional cost burdens on us

Any change that increases the amount of content that we must carry on our cable systems can adversely impact

our business by increasing our cost and limiting our ability to carry other programming more valued by our

subscribers or limit our ability to provide other services For example if we are required to carry more than the

primary stream of digital broadcast signals or the signals of Class low power broadcast stations or if the FCC

regulations are put into effect that require us to provide either very
low cost or no cost commercial leased access our

business would be adversely affected See Business Legislation and Regulation Federal Regulation

Content Regulations

Pending FCC and court proceedings could adversely affrct our HSD service

The regulatory status of providing HSD service by cable companies remains uncertain If the FCC imposes

additional regulatory burdens or further restricts the methods we may employ to manage the operation of our

network our costs would increase and our business would be adversely affected See Business Legislation and

Regulation Federal Regulation HSD Service

Our phone service may become subject to additional regulation

The regulatory treatment of VoIP services like those we and others offer remains uncertain The FCC

Congress the courts and the states continue to look at issues surrounding the provision of VoIP including whether

this service is properly classified as telecommunications service or an information service Any changes to existing

law as it applies to VoIP or any determination that results in greater or different regulatory obligations than

competing services would result in increased costs reduce anticipated revenues and impede our ability to effectively

28



compete or otherwise adversely affect our ability to successfully roll-out and conduct our telephony business See

Business Legislation
and Regulation

Federal Regulation Voice-over-Internet-Protocol Telephony

Changes in pole attachment regulations or actions by pole owners could signficanily
increased our pole

attachment costs

Our cable facilities are often attached to or use public utility poles ducts or conduits Significant change to the

FCCs long-standing pole attachment cable rate formula increases in pole attachment costs as result of our

provision of Internet VoIP or other services or pole owners seeking additional compensation because poles are

full could increase our pole attachment costs Our business financial condition and results of operations could

suffer material adverse impact from any significant increased costs and such increased pole attachment costs

could discourage system upgrades and the introduction of new products
and services See Business Legislation

and Regulation Federal Regulation Pole Attachment Regulation

Changes in compulsory copyright regulations could sign/icantly increase our license fees

The Copyright Offices decision regarding payment of copyright fees on phantom signals may cause us to

carry fewer distant signals in our channel lineups which could preclude carriage of programming valued by our

customers If the Copyright Office determines that we are required to treat each digital programming stream as

separate signal for copyright purposes or if other legislative proposals are enacted that change the compulsory

license our copyright costs could increase significantly or we may reduce the amount of off-air content that we

provide to our subscribers If Congress were to completely eliminate the compulsory license and we are required to

obtain copyright licensing of all broadcast material at the source that would impose significant administrative

burdens and additional costs that could adversely affect our business See Business Legislation and

Regulation Federal Regulation Copyright

Risks Related to our Chairman and Chief Executive Officers Controlling Position

Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer has the ability to control all major corporate decisions and

sale of his stock could result in change of control that would have unpredictable effrcts

Rocco Commisso our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer beneficially owned shares of our common

stock representing approximately 80.8% of the aggregate voting power as of December 31 2008 After completion

of the Exchange Agreement on February 13 2009 Mr Commisso had aggregate voting power of approximately

87.8% As result Mr Commisso generally has the ability to control the outcome of all matters requiring

stockholder approval including the election of our entire board of directors the approval of any merger or

consolidation and the sale of all or substantially all of our assets In addition Mr Commissos voting power may

have the effect of discouraging offers to acquire us because any such acquisition would require his consent

Pursuant to Significant Stockholder Agreement dated September 2008 Mr Cominisso has agreed not to

consummate prior to September 2010 an extraordinary transaction involving us without the recommendation of

majority of either the disinterested directors that are members of our board of directors or ii the members of

special committee of our board consisting of disinterested directors

We cannot assure you that Mr Commisso will maintain all or any portion of his ownership or that he would

continue as an officer or director if he sold significant part
of his stock The disposition by Mr Commisso of

sufficient number of shares could result in change in control of our company and no assurance can be given that

change of control would not adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations change in

control could also result in default under our debt arrangements could require us to offer to repurchase our senior

notes at 101% of their principal amount could trigger variety of federal state and local regulatory consent

requirements
and potentially

limit our utilization of net operating losses for income tax purposes
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our principal physical assets consist of cable operating plant and equipment including signal receiving
encoding and decoding devices headend facilities and distribution systems and equipment at or near customers
homes for each of the systems The signal receiving apparatus typically includes tower antenna ancillary
electronic equipment and earth stations for reception of satellite signals Headend facilities are located near the

receiving devices Our distribution system consists primarily of coaxial and fiber optic cables and related electronic

equipment Customer premise equipment consists of set-top devices and cable modems Our cable plant and related

equipment generally are attached to utility poles under pole rental agreements with local public utilities although in

some areas the distribution cable is buried in underground ducts or trenches The physical components of the cable

systems require maintenance and periodic upgrading to improve system performance and capacity In addition we
maintain network operations center with equipment necessary to monitor and manage the status of our HSD
network

We own and lease the real property housing our regional call centers business offices and warehouses
throughout our operating regions Our headend facilities signal reception sites and microwave facilities are located
on owned and leased parcels of land and we generally own the towers on which certain of our equipment is located
We own most of our service vehicles We believe that our properties both owned and leased are in good condition
and are suitable and adequate for our operations

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Mediacom LLC one of our wholly owned subsidiaries is named as defendant in putative class action
captioned Gary Ogg and Janice Ogg Mediacom LLC pending in the Circuit Court of Clay County Missouri
originally filed in April 2001 The lawsuit alleges that Mediacom LLC in areas where there was no cable franchise
failed to obtain permission from landowners to place its fiber interconnection cable notwithstanding the possession
of

agreements or permission from other third parties While the parties continue to contest liability there also
remains dispute as to the proper measure of damages Based on report by their experts the plaintiffs claim

compensatory damages of
approximately $14.5 million Legal fees prejudgment interest potential punitive damages

and other costs could increase that estimate to approximately $26.0 million The plaintiffs have recently proposed an
alternative damage theory of $42.0 million in compensatory damages We are unable to reasonably determine the
amount of our fmal liability in this lawsuit as our experts have estimated our liability to be within the range of

approximately $0.1 million to $2.3 million This estimate does not include any estimate of damages for prejudgment
interest attorneys fees or punitive damages We believe however that the amount of such liability as stated by any
of the parties would not have material effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations cash
flows or business There can be no assurance that the actual liability would not exceed this estimated range As of
March 2009 the trial commenced for the claim by the class representatives Gary and Janice Ogg Mediacom
LLC has tendered the lawsuit to our insurance carrier for defense and indemnification The carrier has agreed to

defend Mediacom LLC under reservation of rights and declaratory judgment action is pending regarding the
carriers defense and coverage responsibilities Mediacom LLC intends to vigorously defend against any claims
made by the plaintiffs including at trial and on appeal if necessary

We are involved in various other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business In the opinion of

management the ultimate disposition of these other matters will not have material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position results of operations cash flows or business

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
December 31 2008
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ITEM 4A DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following Directors and Executive Officers are as of February 28 2009

Name Age Title

Rocco Commisso 59 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mark Stephan
52 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

John Pascarelli 47 Executive Vice President Operations

Italia Commisso Weinand 55 Senior Vice President Programming Human Resources

Joseph Young 60 Senior Vice President General Counsel Secretary

Charles Bartolotta 54 Senior Vice President Customer Operations

Calvin Craib 54 Senior Vice President Business Development

Brian Walsh 43 Senior Vice President Corporate Controller

Thomas Reifenheiser 73 Director

Natale Ricciardi 60 Director

Robert Winikoff 62 Director

Rocco Commisso has 30 years of experience with the cable industry and has served as our Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer since founding our predecessor company in July 1995 From 1986 to 1995 he served as

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and director of Cablevision Industries Corporation Prior to that

time Mr Commisso served as Senior Vice President of Royal Bank of Canadas affiliate in the United States from

1981 where he founded and directed specialized lending group to media and communications companies

Mr Commisso began his association with the cable industry in 1978 at The Chase Manhattan Bank where he

managed the banks lending activities to communications firms including the cable industry He serves on the board

of directors and executive committees of the National Cable Television Association and Cable Television

Laboratories Inc and on the board of directors of C-SPAN and the National Italian American Foundation

Mr Commisso holds Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering
and Master of Business Administration from

Columbia University

Mark Stephan has 22 years of experience with the cable industry and has served as our Executive Vice

President and ChiefFinancial Officer since July 2005 Prior to that he was Executive Vice President Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer since November 2003 and our Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

since the commencement of our operations
in March 1996 Before joining us Mr Stephan served as Vice President

Finance for Cablevision Industries from July 1993 Prior to that time Mr Stephan served as Manager of the

telecommunications and media lending group
of Royal Bank of Canada

John Pascarelli has 28 years of experience in the cable industry and has served as our Executive Vice

President Operations since November 2003 Prior to that he was our Senior Vice President Marketing and

Consumer Services from June 2000 and our Vice President of Marketing from March 1998 Before joining us in

March 1998 Mr Pascarelli served as Vice President Marketing for Helicon Communications Corporation from

January 1996 to February 1998 and as Corporate Director of Marketing for Cablevision Industries from 1988 to

1995 Prior to that time Mr Pascarelli served in various marketing and system management capacities
for

Continental Cablevision Inc Cablevision Systems and Storer Communications Mr Pascarelli is member of the

board of directors of the Cable and Telecommunications Association for Marketing

Italia Commisso Weinand has 32 years
of experience in the cable industry Before joining us in April 1996

Ms Weinand served as Regional Manager for Comcast Corporation from July 1985 Prior to that time Ms Weinand

held various management positions
with Tele-Communications Inc Times Mirror Cable and Time Warner Inc

Ms Weinand is the sister of Mr Commisso

Joseph Young has 24 years
of experience with the cable industry Before joining us in November 2001 as

Senior Vice President General Counsel Mr Young served as Executive Vice President Legal and Business Affairs

for LinkShare Corporation an Internet-based provider of marketing services from September 1999 to October 2001

Prior to that time he practiced corporate
law with Baker Botts LLP from January 1995 to September 1999

Previously Mr Young was partner
with the Law Offices of Jerome Kern and partner with Shea Gould
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Charles Bartolotta has 26 years of experience in the cable industry Before joining us in October 2000
Mr Bartolotta served as Division President for ATT Broadband LLC from July 1998 where he was responsible
for managing an operating division serving nearly three million customers Prior to that time he served as Regional
Vice President of Tele-Communications Inc from January 1997 and as Vice President and General Manager for
TKR Cable Company from 1989 Prior to that time Mr Bartolotta held various management positions with

Cablevision Systems Corporation

Calvin Craib has 27 years of experience in the cable industry and has served as our Senior Vice President
Business Development since August 2001 He also assumed responsibility of Corporate Finance in June 2008 Prior
to that time Mr Craib was our Vice President Business Development since April 1999 Before joining us in April
1999 he served as Vice President Finance and Administration for Interactive Marketing Group from June 1997 to

December 1998 and as Senior Vice President Operations and ChiefFinancial Officer for Douglas Communications
from January 1990 to May 1997 Prior to that time Mr Craib served in various financial management capacities at

Warner Amex Cable and Tribune Cable

Brian Walsh has 21 years of experience in the cable industry and has served as our Senior Vice President

and Corporate Controller since February 2005 Prior to that time he was our Senior Vice President Financial

Operations from November 2003 our Vice President Finance and Assistant to the Chairman from November 2001
our Vice President and Corporate Controller from February 1998 and our Director of Accounting from November
1996 Before joining us in April 1996 Mr Walsh held various management positions with Cablevision Industries
from 1988 to 1995

Thomas Refenheiser served for more than seven years as Managing Director and Group Executive of the
Global Media and Telecom Group of Chase Securities Inc until his retirement in September 2000 He joined Chase
in 1963 and had been the Global Media and Telecom Group Executive since 1977 He also had been member of
the Management Committee of The Chase Manhattan Bank Mr Reifenheiser is also member of the board of

directors of Cablevision Systems Corporation Lamar Advertising Company and Citadel Broadcasting Corporation

Natale Ricciardi has held various management positions with Pfizer Inc for more than the past seven yearsMr Ricciardi joined Pfizer in 1972 and currently serves as Senior Vice President Pfizer Inc and President Pfizer
Global Manufacturing with responsibility for all of Pfizers manufacturing and supply activities He is member of
the Pfizer Executive Leadership Team

Robert Winikoff has been partner of the law firm of Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP since August
2000 Prior to that time he was partner of the law firm of Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester Newman P.C for

more than five years Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP currently serves as our outside general counsel and

prior to such representation Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester Newman P.C served as our outside general
counsel from 1995
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Class common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol MCCC The

following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing sales prices for our Class common

stock as reported by The Nasdaq Global Select Market

2008 2007

Low High Low High

First Quarter 3.97 5.27 7.54 8.25

Second Quarter 4.15 6.52 8.20 $10.03

Third Quarter
4.91 8.40 7.05 10.30

Fourth Quarter
2.00 5.81 3.93 7.36

As of February 28 2009 there were approximately 2348 holders of record of our Class common stock and

holders of record of our Class common stock The number of Class stockholders does not include beneficial

owners holding shares through nominee names

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our common stock We currently anticipate that we will

retain all of our future earnings for use in the expansion and operation of our business Thus we do not anticipate

paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future Our future dividend policy will be

determined by our board of directors and will depend on various factors including our results of operations

financial condition capital requirements and investment opportunities

During the year
ended December 31 2008 we repurchased 4.8 million shares of our Class common stock for

an aggregate cost of $22.4 million As of December 31 2008 approximately $47.6 million remained available under

our stock repurchase program We did not repurchase any Class common stock during the three months ended

December 31 2008

33



ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below we provide you with selected historical consolidated statement of operations data and cash

flow data for the years ended December 31 2004 through 2008 and balance sheet data as of December 31 2004

through 2008 which are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements except other data and operating

data

See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

200811 2007 200612 2005 2004

Amounts in thousands except per share data and operating data
Statement of Operations Data

Revenues 1401894 1293375 1210400 1098822 1057226
Costs and expenses

Service costs 585362 544072 492729 438768 407875
Selling general and administrative expenses 278942 264006 252688 232514 216394

Corporate expenses 30824 27637 25445 22287 19276

Depreciation and amortization 227910 235331 215918 220567 217262

Operating income 278856 222329 223620 184686 196419
Interest expense net 213333 239015 227206 208264 192740
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 35831 4742

Loss gain on derivative instruments net 54363 22902 15798 12555 16125
Loss gain on sale of cable systems net 21308 11079 2628 5885

Other expense net 9133 9054 9973 11829 12061
Loss income before income taxes 19281 37563 65188 24966 13628

Provision for income taxes 58213 57566 59734 197262 76
Netlossincome 77494 95129 124922 222228 13552

Basic and diluted loss earnings per
share

Basic and diluted loss earnings per share 0.81 0.88 1.13 1.90 0.11

Weighted average common shares outstandingW

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 95548 107828 110971 117194 118534
Diluted weighted average share outstanding 95548 107828 110971 117194 118543

Balance Sheet Data end of period
Total assets 3718989 3615210 $3652350 $3649498 $3635655
Totaldebt $3316000 $3215033 $3144599 $3059651 $3009632
Total stockholders deficit equity 346644 253089 94814 59107 293512

Cash Flow Data

Net cash flows provided by used in
Operating activities 268715 188792 176905 179095 224611

Investingactivities 289825 202335 210235 223600 177424
Financingactivities 68833 3454 52434 37911 49127

Other Data

Adjusted OIBDA2 511951 462979 444255 406610 413729
AdjustedO1BDAmargin3 36.5% 35.8% 36.7% 37.0% 39.1%

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges4 1.06

Operating Data end of period

Estimated homes passed5 2854000 2836000 2829000 2807000 2785000
Basic subscribers6 1318000 1324000 1380000 1423000 1458000
Digital customers7 643000 557000 528000 494000 396000
HSD customers8 737000 658000 578000 478000 367000
Phone customers9 248000 185000 105000 22000
RGUs 2946000 2724000 2591000 2417000 2221000

Basic and diluted loss earnings per share is calculated based on the basic and diluted weighted average shares

outstanding respectively

Adjusted OIBDA is not financial measure calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP in the United States We define Adjusted OIBDA as operating income before depreciation and
amortization and non-cash share-based compensation charges

Adjusted OIBDA is one of the primary measures used by management to evaluate our performance and to forecast

future results It is also significant performance measure in our annual incentive compensation programs We
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believe Adjusted OIBDA is useful for investors because it enables them to access our performance in manner

similar to the methods used by management and provides measure that can be used to analyze value and compare

the companies in the cable industry which may have different depreciation and amortization policies as well as

different non-cash share-based compensation programs Adjusted OIBDA and similar measures are used in

calculating compliance with the covenants of our debt arrangements limitation of Adjusted OIBDA however is

that it excludes depreciation and amortization which represents the periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and

intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business Management utilizes separate process to budget

measure and evaluate capital expenditures In addition Adjusted OIBDA has the limitation of not reflecting the

effect of our non-cash share-based compensation charges

Adjusted OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternative to either operating income or net income loss as an

indicator of operating performance nor should it be considered in isolation or substitute for financial measures

prepared in accordance with GAAP We believe that operating income is the most directly comparable GAAP

financial measure to Adjusted OIBDA

The following represents reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income which is the most directly

comparable GAAP measure dollars in thousands

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Adjusted OIBDA 511951 462979 444255 406610 413729

Non-cash share-based compensation and other

share-based awardsA 5185 5319 4717 1357 48

Depreciation and amortization 227910 235331 215918 220567 217262

Operating income 278856 222329 223620 184686 196419

Includes approximately $17 $20 $239 $24 and $48 for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 2006

2005 and 2004 respectively related to the issuance of other share-based awards

Represents Adjusted OIBDA as percentage of revenues See note above

Earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by $20.7 million $38.3 million $66.1 million and $26.4 million

for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 respectively Refer to Exhibit 12.1

Represents an estimate of the number of single residence homes apartments and condominium units passed by the

cable distribution network Estimated homes passed is based on the best available information

Represents dwelling with one or more television sets that receives package of over-the-air broadcast stations

local access channels or certain satellite-delivered cable services Accounts that are billed on bulk basis which

typically receive discounted rates are converted into full-price equivalent basic subscribers by dividing total bulk

billed basic revenues of particular system by the average cable rate charged to basic subscribers in that system

This conversion method is consistent with the methodology used in determining payments to programmers Basic

subscribers include connections to schools libraries local government offices and employee households that may

not be charged for limited and expanded cable services but may be charged for digital cable HSD phone or other

services Customers who exclusively purchase HSD andlor phone service are not counted as basic subscribers Our

methodology of calculating the number of basic subscribers may not be identical to those used by other companies

offering similarservices

Represents customers that receive digital video services

Represents residential HSD customers and small to medium-sized commercial cable modem accounts billed at

higher rates than residential customers Small to medium-sized commercial accounts generally represent customers

with bandwidth requirements of up to 20Mbps and are converted to equivalent residential HSD customers by

dividing their associated revenues by the applicable residential rate Our HSD customers exclude large commercial

accounts Our methodology of calculating HSD customers may not be identical to those used by other companies

offering similar services

Represents estimated number of homes to which we market phone service and is based upon the best available

information

10
Represents the sum of basic subscribers and digital HSD and phone customers

11 Does not give effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13 2009 See Note 11 to our

consolidated financial statements for more information

12
Effective January 2006 we adopted SFAS No 123R See Note to our consolidated financial statements
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Reference is made to the Risk Factors in Item 1A for discussion of important factors that could cause actual

results to differ from expectations and any of our forward-looking statements contained herein The following

discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Overview

We are the nations eighth largest cable company based on the number of basic video subscribers and among
the leading cable operators focused on serving the smaller cities and towns in the United States Through our

interactive broadband network we provide our customers with wide array of advanced products and services

including video services such as VOD HDTV and DVRs in addition to HSD and phone service We offer triple-

play bundles of video HSD and voice to 91% of our estimated homes passed Bundled products and services offer

our customers single provider contact for ordering provisioning billing and customer care

As of December 31 2008 our cable systems passed an estimated 2.85 million homes and served 1.32 million

basic subscribers in 22 states We provide digital video services to 643000 customers representing digital

penetration of 48.8% of our basic subscribers HSD service to 737000 customers representing HSD penetration of

25.8% of our estimated homes passed and phone service to 248000 customers representing penetration of 9.5%

of our estimated marketable phone homes

We evaluate our performance in part by measuring the number of RGUs we serve As of December 31 2008
we served 2.95 million RGUs representing an increase of 8.1% over the prior year

Revenues Costs and Expenses

Video revenues primarily represent monthly subscription fees charged to customers for our core cable products

and services including basic and digital cable programming services wire maintenance equipment rental and

services to commercial establishments pay-per-view charges installation reconnection and late payment fees and

other ancillary revenues HSD revenues primarily represent monthly fees charged to customers including small to

medium sized commercial establishments for our HSD products and services and equipment rental fees as well as

fees charged to medium to large sized businesses for our scalable fiber- based enterprise network products and

services Phone revenues primarily represent monthly fees charged to customers Advertising revenues represent the

sale of advertising time on various channels

Significant service costs include programming expenses employee expenses related to wages and salaries of

technical personnel who maintain our cable network perform customer installation activities and provide customer

support HSD costs including costs of bandwidth connectivity and customer provisioning phone service costs

including delivery and other expenses and field operating costs including outside contractors vehicle utilities and

pole rental expenses

Video programming costs which are generally paid on per subscriber basis represent our largest single

expense and have historically increased due to both increases in the rates charged for existing programming services

and the introduction of new programming services to our customers These costs are expected to continue to grow

principally because of contractual unit rate increases and the increasing demands of television broadcast station

owners for retransmission consent fees As consequence it is expected that our video gross margins will decline as

increases in programming costs outpace growth in video revenues

Significant selling general and administrative expenses include wages and salaries for our call centers

customer service and support and administrative personnel franchise fees and taxes marketing bad debt billing

advertising and office costs related to telecommunications and office administration

Corporate expenses reflect compensation of corporate employees and other corporate overhead
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Adjusted OIBDA

We define Adjusted OIBDA as operating income before depreciation and amortization and non-cash share-

based compensation charges Adjusted OIBDA is one of the primary measures used by management to evaluate our

performance and to forecast future results but is not financial measure calculated in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP in the United States It is also significant performance measure in our

annual incentive compensation programs We believe Adjusted OIBDA is useful for investors because it enables

them to assess our performance in manner similar to the methods used by management and provides measure

that can be used to analyze value and compare the companies in the cable industry which may have different

depreciation and amortization policies as well as different non-cash share-based compensation programs Adjusted

OIBDA and similar measures are used in calculating compliance with the covenants of our debt arrangements

limitation of Adjusted OIBDA however is that it excludes depreciation and amortization which represents the

periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business

Management utilizes separate process to budget measure and evaluate capital expenditures In addition Adjusted

OIBDA has the limitation of not reflecting the effect of the non-cash share-based compensation charges

Adjusted OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternative to either operating income or net income loss as an

indicator of operating performance nor should it be considered in isolation or as substitute for financial measures

prepared in accordance with GAAP We believe that operating income is the most directly comparable GAAP

financial measure to Adjusted OIBDA

Actual Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2007

The following table sets forth the unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars in thousands and percentage changes that are not meaningful are

marked NM
Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 Change Change

Revenues $1401894 $1293375 108519 8.4%

Costs and expenses

Service costs exclusive of depreciation and

amortization 585362 544072 41290 7.6%

Selling general and administrative expenses 278942 264006 14936 5.7%

Corporate expenses 30824 27637 3187 11.5%

Depreciation and amortization 227910 235331 7421 3.2%

Operating income 278856 222329 56527 25.4%

Interest expense net 213333 239015 25682 10.7%

Loss on derivatives net 54363 22902 31461 NM

Loss gain on sale of cable systems net 21308 11079 32387 NM
Other expense net 9133 9054 79 0.9%

Loss before provision for income taxes 19281 37563 18282 48.7%

Provision for income taxes 58213 57566 647 1.1%

Netloss 77494 95129 17635 18.5%

Adjusted OIBDA 511951 462979 48972 10.6%
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The following represents reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income which is the most directly

comparable GAAP measure dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Adjusted OIBDA 511951 462979

Non-cash share-based compensation and other

share-based awards1 5185

Depreciation and amortization 227910 __________

Operating income 278856
__________

Change Change

48972 10.6%

Includes approximately $17 and $20 for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively related

to the issuance of other share-based awards

Revenues

The following table sets forth revenue and selected subscriber customer and average monthly revenue statistics

for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars in thousands except per subscriber data

RGUs represent the total of basic subscribers and digital HSD and phone customers

Represents total average monthly revenues for the year divided by total average basic subscribers during such

period

Revenues rose 8.4% largely attributable to the growth in our HSD and phone customers as well as basic video

price increases RGUs grew 8.1% and average total monthly revenue per basic subscriber was 10.9% higher than the

prior year

5319
235331

222329

134

7421

56527

2.5%
3.2%
25.4%

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

921098 891594

324764 278853

89970 55892

66062 67036

$1401894 $1293375

Year Ended

December 31

Video

HSD

Phone

Advertising

Total

Basic subscribers

Digital customers

HSD customers

Phone customers

RGUsW

Average total monthly revenue per basic

subscriber2

Change

29504

45911

34078

974

108519

Increase

Decrease

6000
86000

79000

63000

222000

Change

3.3%

16.5%

61.0%

l.5%
8.4%

Change

0.5%
15.4%

12.0%

34.1%

8.1%

10.9%

2008

1318000

643000

737000

248000

2946000

2007

1324000

557000

658000

185000

2724000

88.44 79.72 8.72
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Video revenues increased 3.3% primarily due to basic video rate increases and customer growth in our

advanced video products and services offset in part by lower number of basic subscribers During the year ended

December 31 2008 we lost 6000 basic subscribers compared to reduction of 56000 basic subscribers in the prior

year which includes significant number of basic subscribers lost in connection with the retransmission consent

dispute with an owner of major television broadcast group and the sale during the period of cable systems serving

on net basis 6300 basic subscribers Digital customers grew by 86000 as compared to an increase of 29000 in

the prior year We ended the year with 643000 digital customers which represents 48.8% penetration of basic

subscribers As of December 31 2008 33.2% of digital customers received DVR and/or HDTV services as

compared to 29.1% in the prior year

HSD revenues rose 16.5% principally due to 12.0% increase in HSD customers and to lesser extent

growth in our enterprise network products and services HSD customers grew by 79000 as compared to gain of

80000 in the prior year We ended the year with 737000 customers or 25.8% penetration of estimated homes

passed

Phone revenues grew 61.0% primarily due to 34.1% increase in phone customers and to lesser extent

reduction in discounted pricing Phone customers grew by 63000 as compared to gain of 80000 in the prior year

We ended the year with 248000 customers which represents 9.5% penetration of our estimated marketable phone

homes As of December 31 2008 our phone service was marketed to 91% of our 2.85 million estimated homes

passed

Advertising revenues decreased 1.5% largely as result of sharp decrease in automotive advertising and to

lesser extent an unfavorable comparison to the prior year in which we benefitted from political advertising in

certain of our service areas

Costs and Expenses

Service costs rose 7.6% primarily due to higher programming phone service and field operating expenses

offset in part by lower HSD service costs Programming expenses grew 7.6% principally as result of higher

contractual rates charged by our programming vendors Phone service costs rose 46.6% mainly due to the growth in

phone customers Field operating expenses grew 13.4% primarily due to greater vehicle fuel and repair expenses

and lower capitalization of overhead costs offset in part by non-recurring expenses in the prior year relating to the

retransmission consent dispute noted above and lower insurance costs HSD expenses decreased 23.3% due to

reduction in product delivery costs offset in part by HSD customer growth Service costs as percentage
of

revenues were 41.8% and 42.1% for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Selling general and administrative expenses rose 5.7% principally due to higher expenses
related to marketing

and customer service employee costs offset in part by decrease in billing expenses Marketing expenses grew

12.8% primarily due to higher staffing levels more frequent direct mailing campaigns greater expenses tied to

sales activity and greater use of third-party sales support offset in part by reduction in other advertising Customer

service employee costs rose 14.9% as result of higher staffing levels at our call centers Billing expenses fell 5.0%

primarily due to more favorable rates charged by our billing service provider Selling general and administrative

expenses as percentage of revenues were 19.9% and 20.4% for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Corporate expenses rose 11.5% principally due to higher staffing levels Corporate expenses as percentage of

revenues were 2.2% and 2.1% for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Depreciation and amortization decreased 3.2% largely as result of an increase in the useful lives of certain

fixed assets offset in part by increased deployment of shorter-lived customer premise equipment

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA rose 10.6% due to growth in HSD phone and video revenues offset in part by higher service

costs and to lesser extent selling general and administrative expenses
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Operating Income

Operating income grew 25.4% primarily due to the increase in Adjusted OIBDA

Interest Expense Net

Interest expense net decreased 10.7% primarily due to lower market interest rates on variable rate debt offset

in part by higher average indebtedness

Loss on Derivatives Net

We enter into interest rate exchange agreements or interest rate swaps with counterparties to fix the interest

rate on portion of our variable rate debt to reduce the potential volatility in our interest expense that would

otherwise result from changes in variable market interest rates As of December 31 2008 we had interest rate swaps
with an aggregate notional amount of $2.3 billion of which $1.0 billion and $0.1 billion are forward starting swaps

which commence during the years ending December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively These swaps have not been

designated as hedges for accounting purposes The changes in their mark-to-market values are derived primarily

from changes in market interest rates and the decrease in their time to maturity As result of the quarterly mark-to-

market valuation of these interest rate swaps we recorded losses on derivatives amounting to $54.4 million and

$22.9 million based upon information provided by our counterparties for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively

Loss Gain on Sale of Cable Systems Net

During the year ended December 31 2008 there was $21.3 million loss on cable systems principally due to

$17.7 million non-cash write-down in connection with the sale of certain cable systems in Western North Carolina

and $4.0 million of related transaction costs paid offset in part by miscellaneous net gains of $0.4 million During

the year ended December 31 2007 we sold cable system for $32.4 million and recorded net gain on sale of

$11.1 million

Other Expense Net

Other expense net was $9.1 million for each of the years ended December31 2008 and 2007 During the year

ended December 31 2008 other expense net included $4.6 million of revolving credit facility commitment fees

and $4.1 million of deferred financing costs During the year ended December 31 2007 other expense net included

$4.2 million of revolving credit facility commitment fees and $4.0 million of deferred financing costs

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was approximately $58.2 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 as

compared to provision for income taxes of $57.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 During the year

ended December 31 2008 based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances we determined that an additional

portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized under the more-likely-

than-not standard required by SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes As result we increased our

valuation allowance and recognized $58.2 million corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense for the

year ended December 31 2008

We periodically assess the likelihood of realization of our deferred tax assets considering all available

evidence both positive and negative including our most recent performance the scheduled reversal of deferred tax

liabilities our forecast of taxable income in future periods and the availability of prudent tax planning strategies As

result of these assessments in prior periods and the current period we have established valuation allowances on

portion of our deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the realization of these assets

Net Loss

As result of the factors described above we incurred net loss for the
year

ended December 31 2008 of

$77.5 million as compared to net loss of $95.1 million for the year ended December31 2007
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Year Ended December 31 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2006

The following table sets forth the unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31 2007 and 2006 dollars in thousands and

percentage changes that are not meaningftjl are markedNM

Year Ended

December 31
2007 2006 Change Change

Revenues $1293375 $1210400 82975 6.9%

Costs and expenses

Service costs exclusive of depreciation and

amortization 544072 492729 51343 10.4%

Selling general and administrative expenses 264006 252688 11318 4.5%

Corporate expenses 27637 25445 2192 8.6%

Depreciation and amortization 235331 215918 19413 9.0%

Operating income 222329 223620 1291 0.6%
Interest expense net 239015 227206 11809 5.2%

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 35831 35831 NM
Loss on derivatives net 22902 15798 7104 45.0%

Gain on sale of cable systems net 11079 11079 NM
Other

expense 9054 9973 919 9.2%
Loss before provision for income taxes 37563 65188 27625 42.4%
Provision for income taxes 57566 59734 2168 3.6%
Net loss 95129 $124922 29793 23.8%
Adjusted OIBDA 462979 444255 18724 4.2%

The following represents reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31
2007 2006 Change Change

Adjusted OIBDA 462979 444255 18724 4.2%

Non-cash share-based compensation and other

share-based awards 5319 4717 602 12.8%

Depreciation and amortization 235331 215918 19413 9.0%

Operating income 222329 223620 1291 0.6%

Includes approximately $20 and $239 for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively related to

the issuance of other share-based awards
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Revenues

_________ Change Change

10064 1.1%

41311 17.4%

28896 107.0%

__________ __________
2704 4.2%

__________
82975 6.9%

RGUs represent
the total of basic subscribers and digital HSD and phone customers

Represents
total average monthly revenues for the year divided by total average basic subscribers during such

period

Revenues rose 6.9% year-over-year largely attributable to the growth in ourHSD and phone customers RGUs

grew 5.1% and average total monthly revenue per RGU was 0.9% higher than the prior year

Video revenues increased 1.1% due to higher service fees from our advanced video products and services such

as DVRs and HDTV offset by lower number of basic subscribers During the year
ended December 31 2007 we

lost 56000 basic subscribers including significant number of basic subscribers lost in connection with the

retransmission consent dispute with an owner of major television broadcast group and the sale of the period of

cable systems serving on net basis 6300 basic subscribers as compared to loss of 43000 basic subscribers in the

prior year Digital customers grew by 29000 as compared to an increase of 34000 in the prior year We ended the

year with 557000 digital customers representing 42.1% penetration of basic subscribers As of December 31

2007 29.1% of digital customers received DVR and/or HDTV services as compared to 20.0% in the prior year

HSD revenues rose 17.4% primarily due to 13.8% increase in HSD customers HSD customers grew by

80000 as compared to gain of 100000 in the prior year ending the year with 658000 customers or 23.2%

penetration of estimated homes passed

Phone revenues grew 107.0% primarily
due to 76.2% increase in phone customers Phone customers grew by

80000 as compared to gain of 83000 in the prior year ending the year with 185000 customers or 7.3%

penetration of estimated marketable phone homes

Advertising revenues increased by 4.2% as result of stronger
national advertising sales despite meaningful

decline in political advertising from the prior year

The following table sets forth revenue and selected subscriber customer and average monthly revenue

statistics for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 dollars in thousands except per
subscriber data

Year Ended

December 31

2007 2006

891594 881530

278853 237542

55892 26996

67036 64332

$1293375 $1210400

Video

HSD

Phone

Advertising

Total

Basic subscribers

Digital customers

HSD customers

Phone customers

RGUs
Average total monthly revenue per basic

subscriber2

Year Ended

December 31 _____

2007 2006

1324000 1380000

557000 528000

658000 578000

185000 105000

2724000 2591000

79.72

Increase

Decrease

56000
29000

80000

80000

133000

Change

1%
5.5%

13.8%

76.2%

5.1%

10.8%71.97 7.75
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Costs and Expenses

Service costs rose 10.4% primarily due to customer growth in our phone and HSD services and increases in

programming and field operating expenses Recurring expenses related to our phone and HSD services grew 43.0%
commensurate with the significant increase of our phone and HSD customers Programming expense rose 5.6%

principally as result of higher unit costs charged by our programming vendors offset in part by lower number of

basic subscribers Field operating costs rose 14.0% primarily as result of higher outside contractor usage
increases in utility fuel and vehicle maintenance costs costs associated with our mobile workforce management

system and the purchase of antennas for distribution to our customers during the aforementioned retransmission

consent dispute Service costs as percentage of revenues were 42.1% and 40.7% for the years ended December 31
2007 and 2006 respectively

Selling general and administrative expenses rose 4.5% principally due to higher marketing bad debt and

billing expenses offset in part by reductions in telecommunication and employee benefit costs Marketing costs rose

by 14.5% largely due to increases in direct mailing campaigns higher salaries sales commissions and recruiting

costs and greater use of outside contracted sales personnel Bad debt expenses grew by 17.5% primarily due to

higher average write-offs per delinquent account unusually low write-offs of uncollectable accounts in the prior

year
and increased collection expense Billing expenses rose by 5.1% largely due to increased processing bank and

credit card fees Selling general and administrative
expenses as percentage of revenues were 20.4% and 20.9% for

the
years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

Corporate expenses rose 8.6% principally due to increases in non-cash share-based compensation and legal

fees Corporate expenses as percentage of revenues were 2.1% for each of the
years

ended December 31 2007 and

2006

Depreciation and amortization increased 9.0% primarily due to increased deployment of customer premise

equipment and related installation activities

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA rose 4.2% due to revenue growth especially in HSD and phone offset in part by increases in

service costs and selling general and administrative expenses

Operating Income

Operating income decreased 0.6% year-over-year largely due to higher depreciation and amortization and

service costs substantiallyoffset by the growth in Adjusted OIBDA

Interest Expense Net

Interest expense net increased by 5.2% primarily due to higher average indebtedness the expiration of certain

interest rate hedging agreements with favorable rates and higher market interest rates on variable rate debt

Loss on Derivatives Net

As of December 31 2007 we had interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $1.0 billion These

swaps have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes The changes in their mark-to-market values are

derived primarily from changes in market interest rates and the decrease in their time to maturity As result of the

quarterly mark-to-market valuation of these interest rate swaps we recorded losses on derivatives amounting to

$22.9 million and $15.8 million based upon information provided by our counterparties for the years ended

December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

We incurred loss of $35.8 million for the year ended December 31 2006 as result of our redemption of our

11% senior notes due 2013
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Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was approximately $57.6 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007 as

compared to provision for income taxes of $59.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2006 During the year

ended December 31 2007 based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances we detennined that an additional

portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized under the more-likely-

than-not standard required by SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes As result we increased our

valuation allowance and recognized $57.3 million corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense for the

year
ended December 31 2007

Net Loss

As result of the factors described above we incurred net loss for the
year

ended December 31 2007 of

$95.1 million as compared to net loss of $124.9 million for the year ended December 31 2006

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We have invested and will continue to invest in our network to enhance our reliability and capacity in

customer growth and in the further deployment of advanced product and services Our capital spending today is

devoted primarily to customer growth and the deployment of advanced services We have high level of

indebtedness and incur significant amounts of interest expense each year We believe that we will meet interest

expense and principal payments capital spending and other requirements through combination of our net cash

flows from operating activities borrowing availability under our bank credit facilities and our ability to secure

future external financing However there is no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient future financing

or if we were able to do so that the terms would be favorable to us

As of December 31 2008 our total debt was $3 .316 billion Of this amount $124.5 million matures during the

year ending December 31 2009 During the year ended December 31 2008 we paid cash interest of $209.2 million

net of capitalized interest As of December 31 2008 about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed

interest rates or subject to interest rate protection

Recent Developments in the Credit Markets

In light of the unprecedented volatility in financial markets we continue to assess the impact if any of recent

market developments including the bankruptcy restructuring or merging of certain banks and investment banks on

our financial position These assessments include review of our continued access to liquidity in the credit markets

and counterparty creditworthiness

In this severely tightened credit environment we believe we have sufficient liquidity to meet our requirements

over the next two years We fund our liquidity needs for capital investment working capital and other financial

commitments through cash flow from continuing operations and available revolving credit commitments

aggregating $762.2 million as of December 31 2008 We have $124.5 million of debt maturities in 2009 and

$92.0 million of debt maturities in 2010 At this time we are not aware of any of our revolver banks being in

position where they would be unable to fund borrowings made under our revolving credit commitments The turmoil

in the financial markets may create additional risks in the foreseeable future including the failure of additional

banks which could reduce amounts available to us under our revolving credit commitments If the current economic

conditions were to persist or worsen we may not be able to replace the liquidity lost as each revolving credit facility

expires or refinance outstanding balances on maturing revolving credit facilities term loans or senior notes at all or

on acceptable terms Even if we can secure refinancing if prevailing credit market conditions persist or worsen we

would likely pay considerably higher interest rates on any refinancing or new financing than those we currently pay

44



Bank Credit Facilities

We own our cable systems through two principal subsidiaries Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Broadband LLC

The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC LLC Group have $1.21 billion bank credit facility the LLC
Credit Facility expiring in 2015 of which $895.0 million was outstanding as of December 31 2008 The LLC

Credit Facility consists of $400.0 million revolving credit commitment $180.0 million term loan and

$637.0 million term loan The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC Broadband Group have

$1 .755 billion bank credit facility the Broadband Credit Facility expiring in 2016 of which $1 .296 billion was

outstanding as of December 31 2008 The Broadband Credit Facility consists of $516.7 million revolving credit

commitment $106.5 million term loan $784.0 million term loan and $348.3 million term loan Continued

access to our credit facilities is subject to our remaining in compliance with the covenants of these credit facilities

including covenants tied to our operating performance principally the requirement that we maintain maximum

ratio of total senior debt to cash flow as defined in our credit agreements of 6.0 to 1.0 The average interest rates on

outstanding debt under the bank credit facilities as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were 4.3% and 6.7%

respectively including the effect of the interest rate exchange agreements discussed below

As of December 31 2008 we had unused revolving credit commitments of approximately $762.2 million all

of which could be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes
based on the terms and conditions of our debt

arrangements As of the same date $86.4 million of unused revolving credit commitments were subject to scheduled

reductions terminating on March 31 2010 $311.8 million and $364.0 million of our unused credit commitments

expire on September 30 2011 and December 31 2012 respectively and are not subject to scheduled reductions

prior to maturity Giving pro
forma effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13 2009 we

had unused revolving credit commitments of approximately $652.2 million as of December 31 2008

The LLC Credit Facility is collateralized by LLC Groups pledge of all its ownership interests in the operating

subsidiaries owned by LLC Group and is guaranteed by LLC Group on limited recourse basis to the extent of such

ownership interests The Broadband Credit Facility is collateralized by Broadband Groups pledge of all its

ownership interests in the operating subsidiaries owned by Broadband Group and is guaranteed by Broadband Group

on limited recourse basis to the extent of such ownership interests

As of December 31 2008 approximately $19.3 million of letters of credit were issued under our bank credit

facilities to various parties as collateral for our performance relating to insurance and franchise requirements

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate exchange agreements or interest rate swaps to fix the applicable Eurodollar portion of

debt under our Broadband and LLC Credit Facilities As of December 31 2008 we had current interest rate swaps

with various banks pursuant to which the interest rate on $1.2 billion is fixed at weighted average rate of

approximately 4.8% As of the same date about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed interest rates or

subject to interest rate protection These agreements have been accounted for on mark-to-market basis as of and

for the year ended December 31 2008 Our current interest rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of

$800 million $300 million and $100 million during the years ended December 31 2009 2010 and 2011

respectively

In 2008 we entered into forward starting interest rate swaps that fixed rates for two years at weighted average

of approximately 3.2% on $400.0 million of floating rate debt commencing in 2009 and approximately 2.9% on

$100.0 million of floating rate debt commencing in 2010 We also entered forward starting interest rate swaps that

fixed rates for three years at weighted average rate of approximately 3.3% on $600.0 million of floating rate debt

commencing in 2009 These agreements have been accounted for on mark-to-market basis as of and for the year

ended December 31 2008

Although we may be exposed to future losses in the event of counterparties non-performance we do not

expect such losses if any to be material
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Senior Notes

We have issued senior notes through Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Broadband LLC totaling $1.1 25 billion as

of December 31 2008 The indentures governing our senior notes also contain financial and other covenants though

they are generally less restrictive than those found in our bank credit facilities and do not require us to maintain any

financial ratios Principal covenants include limitation on the incurrence of additional indebtedness based upon

maximum ratio of total indebtedness to cash flow as defined in these debt agreements ranging from 7.0 to 1.0 at

Mediacom LLC to 8.5 to 1.0 at Mediacom Broadband These agreements also contain limitations on dividends

investments and distributions

Covenant Compliance and Debt Ratings

For all periods through December 31 2008 we were in compliance with all of the covenants under our bank

credit facilities and senior note arrangements We believe that we will not have any difficulty complying with any of

the applicable covenants in the foreseeable future

Our future access to the debt markets and the terms and conditions we receive are influenced by our debt

ratings Our corporate credit ratings are with stable outlook by Moodys and with stable outlook by

Standard and Poors There are no covenants events of default borrowing conditions or other terms in our credit

facilities or our other debt arrangements that are based on changes in our credit ratings assigned by any rating

agency Any future downgrade to our credit ratings could increase the interest rate on future debt issuance and

adversely impact our ability to raise additional funds

Operating Activities

Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $268.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008

primarily due to Adjusted OIBDA of $512.0 million offset in part by interest expense of $213.3 million and the

$22.4 million net change in our operating assets and liabilities The net change in our operating assets and liabilities

was principally due to decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $22.0 million and decrease of other

non-current liabilities of $3.2 million offset in part by an increase in deferred revenue of $3.3 million

Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $188.8 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007

primarily due to Adjusted OIBDA of $463.0 million offset in part by interest expense of $239.0 million and the

$30.8 million net change in our operating assets and liabilities The net change in our operating assets and liabilities

was primarily due to an decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $21.8 million an increase in our

accounts receivable net of $6.3 million an increase in our prepaid expenses and other assets of $5.4 million offset

in part by an increase in deferred revenue of $4.7 million

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $289.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Capital

expenditures were higher by $62.4 million over the prior year and represented all of the net cash flows used in

investing activities The increase in capital expenditures was largely due to higher spending on customer premise

equipment as result of customer growth upgrades and rebuilds of existing plant to increase bandwidth capacity

and scalable infrastructure for digital equipment In 2009 we expect to see reduction in capital expenditures of

$55 $70 million primarily due to the completion in 2008 of non-recurring projects related to system upgrades

all-digital system launches and the broadcast digital transition as well as lower spending on customer premise

equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $202.3 million for the year ended December 31 2007
decrease of $7.9 million over the prior year Capital expenditures of $227.4 million represented most of the net cash

flows used in investing activities and were offset in part by proceeds received from the sale of cable systems net of

acquisitions of approximately $25.1 million The increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to higher

spending on customer premise equipment and related installation activities as result of customer growth as well as

on scalable infrastructure for HSD and digital equipment
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Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities were $68.8 million for the year
ended December 31 2008

principally due to net bank financing of $101.0 million offset in part by repurchases of our Class common stock

totaling $22.4 million and financing costs of $10.9 million

Net cash flows used in financing activities were $3.5 million for the year ended December 31 2007 primarily

due to repurchases of our Class common stock totaling $69.0 million and other financing activities of

$5.8 million which were funded by net bank financing of $70.4 million

On September 2008 we entered into Share Exchange Agreement the Exchange Agreement with

Shivers Investments LLC Shivers and Shivers Trading Operating Company STOC Both STOC and

Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company LLC Morris Communications STOC Shivers and

Morris Communications are controlled by William Morris III who together with another Morris Communications

representative Craig Mitchell held two seats on our Board of Directors

On February 13 2009 we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged 100% of the

shares of stock of wholly-owned subsidiary which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic

cable systems serving approximately 25000 basic subscribers for 28309674 shares of Mediacom Class common

stock held by Shivers Investments As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the completion of this

transaction our total Class and Class outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million Effective upon

closing of the transaction Messrs Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of Directors

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments and the effects they

are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow for the five years subsequent to December 31 2008 and

thereafter dollars in thousands

Operating Interest Purchase

Debt Leases ExpenseW Obligations2 Total

2009 124500 6212 195313 49101 375126

2010-2011 365000 9930 339666 23152 737748

2012-2013 647250 5282 236507 250 889289

Thereafter
2179250 8531 145919

____________
2333700

Total cash obligations
$3316000 29955 917405 72503 $4335863

Refer to Note to our consolidated financial statements for discussion of our long-term debt and to Note 12

for discussion of our operating leases and other commitments and contingencies

Interest payments on floating rate debt and interest rate swaps are estimated using amounts outstanding as of

December 31 2008 and the average interest rates applicable under such debt obligations

We have contracts with programmers who provide video programming services to our subscribers Our

contracts typically provide that we have an obligation to purchase video programming for our subscribers as

long as we deliver cable services to such subscribers We have no obligation to purchase these services if we are

not providing cable services except when we do not have the right to cancel the underlying contract or for

contracts with guaranteed minimum commitment We have included such amounts in our Purchase

Obligations above as follows $18.4 million for 2009 $0.6 million for 2010-2011 and $0.3 million for 2012-

20 13
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities Periodically we evaluate our estimates including those related to doubtful accounts long-lived assets

capitalized costs and accruals We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that

we believe are reasonable Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

We believe that the application of the critical accounting policies discussed below requires significant judgments

and estimates on the part of management For summary of our accounting policies see Note of our consolidated

financial statements

Property Plant and Equipment

We capitalize the costs of new construction and replacement of our cable transmission and distribution facilities

and new service installation in accordance with SFAS No 51 Financial Reporting by Cable Television

Companies Costs associated with subsequent installations of additional services not previously installed at

customers dwelling are capitalized to the extent such costs are incremental and directly attributable to the

installation of such additional services Capitalized costs include all direct labor and materials as well as certain

indirect costs Capitalized costs are recorded as additions to property plant and equipment and depreciated over the

average life of the related assets We use standard costing models developed from actual historical costs and

relevant operational data to determine our capitalized amounts These models include labor rates overhead rates

and standard time inputs to perform various installation and construction activities The development of these

standards involves significant judgment by management especially in the development of standards for our newer
advanced products and services in which historical data is limited Changes to the estimates or assumptions used in

establishing these standards could be material We perform periodic evaluations of the estimates used to determine

the amount of costs that are capitalized Any changes to these estimates which may be significant are applied in the

period in which the evaluations were completed

Valuation and Impairment Testing of Indefinite-lived Intangibles

As of December 31 2008 we had approximately $2.0 billion of unamortized intangible assets including

goodwill of $220.7 million and franchise rights of $1.8 billion on our consolidated balance sheets These intangible

assets represented approximately 54% of our total assets

Our cable systems operate under non-exclusive cable franchises or franchise rights granted by state and local

governmental authorities for varying lengths of time We acquired these franchise rights through acquisitions of

cable systems over the past several years These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of

accounting The value of franchise is derived from the economic benefits we receive from the right to solicit new

subscribers and to market new products and services such as advanced digital television HSD and phone in

specific market territory We concluded that our franchise rights have an indefinite useful life since among other

things there are no legal regulatory contractual competitive economic or other factors limiting the period over

which these franchise rights contribute to our revenues and cash flows Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost

of an acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired In accordance with SFAS No 142
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets we do not amortize franchise rights and goodwill Instead such assets are

tested annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise

We follow the provisions of SFAS No 142 to test our goodwill and franchise rights for impairment We assess

the fair values of each cable system cluster using discounted cash flow methodology under which the fair value of

cable franchise rights are determined in direct manner This assessment involves significant judgment including

certain assumptions and estimates that determine future cash flow expectations and other future benefits which are

consistent with the expectations of buyers and sellers of cable systems in determining fair value These assumptions

and estimates include discount rates revenues per customer market penetration as percentage of homes passed

and operating margin We also consider market transactions market valuations and other valuations using multiples

of operating income before depreciation and amortization to confirm the reasonableness of fair values determined by

the discounted cash flow methodology Significant impairment in value resulting in impairment charges may result

if the estimates and assumptions used in the fair value determination change in the future and such impairments

could potentially be material
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Based on the guidance outlined in EITF No 02-7 Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-

Lived Intangible Assets we determined that the unit of accounting or reporting unit for testing goodwill and

franchise rights for impairment resides at cable system cluster level Such level reflects the financial reporting

level managed and reviewed by the corporate office i.e chief operating decision maker as well as how we

allocated capital resources and utilize the assets Lastly the reporting unit level reflects the level at which the

purchase method of accounting for our acquisitions was originally recorded We have two reporting units for the

purpose of applying SFAS No 142 Mediacom Broadband and Mediacom LLC

In accordance with SFAS No 142 we are required to determine goodwill impairment using two-step process

The first step compares the fair value of reporting unit with our carrying amount including goodwill If the fair

value of the reporting unit exceeds our carrying amount goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired

and the second step is unnecessary If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds our fair value the second step

is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss if any The second step compares the implied fair value of

the reporting units goodwill calculated using the residual method with the carrying amount of that goodwill If the

carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value the excess is recognized as an impairment loss

The impairment test for our franchise rights and other intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of

comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value If the carrying value of the intangible

asset exceeds its fair value the excess is recognized as an impairment loss

Since our adoption of SFAS No 142 in 2002 we have not recorded any impairments as result of our impairment

testing We completed our most recent impairment test as of October 2008 which reflected no impairment of our

franchise rights goodwill or other intangible assets

Our Class common stock price has had significant volatility during the fourth quarter of 2008 along with

precipitous drop in equity securities prices across all sectors of the United States Because there has not been

change in the fundamentals of our business we do not believe that our stock price is the sole indicator of the

underlying value of the assets in our reporting units We have therefore determined that this short-term volatility in

our stock price does not qualifi as triggering event under SFAS No 142 and as such no interim impairment test

is required as of December 31 2008

We could record impairments in the future if there are changes in the long-term fundamentals of our business

in general market conditions or in the regulatory landscape that could prevent us from recovering the carrying value

of our long-lived intangible assets In the near term the economic conditions currently affecting the U.S economy

and how that may impact the fundamentals of our business together with the recent volatility in our stock price may

have negative impact on the fair values of the assets in our reporting units For illustrative purposes if there were

hypothetical decline of 5% 10% and 20% in the fair values determined for cable franchise rights at our Mediacom

Broadband reporting unit an impairment loss of $0 $64.7 million and $196.1 million would result as of our

impairment testing date of October 2008 respectively In addition hypothetical decline of 20% in the fair

values determined for goodwill and other finite-lived intangible assets at the same reporting unit would not result in

any impairment loss as of October 2008 hypothetical decline of 20% in the fair values determined for

goodwill cable franchise rights and other finite-lived intangible assets at our Mediacom LLC reporting unit would

not result in any impairment loss as of October 2008

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability method as stipulated by SFAS No 109 This method generally

provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized for temporary differences between the financial

reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and anticipated benefit of utilizing net operating loss

carryforwards

In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards we assess all

available positive and negative evidence including our most recent performance the scheduled reversal of deferred

tax liabilities our forecast of taxable income in future periods and available prudent tax planning strategies In

forecasting future taxable income we use assumptions that require significant judgment and are consistent with the

estimates we use to manage our business During 2008 we increased our valuation allowance against deferred tax

assets by $58.2 million and recognized corresponding non-cash charge to the provision for income taxes At

December 31 2008 the valuation allowance had balance of approximately $677.4 million We will continue to
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monitor the need for the deferred tax asset valuation allowance in accordance with SFAS No 109 We
expect to add

to our valuation allowance any increase in deferred tax liabilities relating to indefinite-lived intangible assets We
will also adjust our valuation allowance if we assess that there is sufficient change in our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets Our income tax expense in future periods will be reduced or increased to the extent of offsetting
decreases or increases respectively in our valuation allowance These changes could have significant impact on
our future earnings

Share-based Compensation

We estimate the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model This fair

value is then amortized on straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards which is generally
the vesting period This option-pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the

options expected life and the price volatility of the underlying stock The estimation of stock awards that will

ultimately vest requires judgment and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current
estimates such amounts will be recorded as cumulative adjustment in the periods the estimates are revised Actual

results and future changes in estimates may differ substantially from our current estimates

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value
Measurements SFAS No 157 establishes single authoritative defmition of fair value sets out framework for

measuring fair value and expands on required disclosures about fair value measurement Effective January 2008
we adopted SFAS No 157 for our financial assets and liabilities In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position FSP No FAS 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 which delays the effective date of
SFAS No 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in

the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008

and interim periods within those fiscal years We are evaluating the impact of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities

which include goodwill and other intangible assets SFAS No 157 establishes framework for measuring fair value
under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurement The adoption
of SFAS No 157 on January 2008 did not have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

The following sets forth our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at

December 31 2008 These assets and liabilities have been categorized according to the three-level fair value

hierarchy established by SFAS No 157 which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market
data

Level Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data

As of December 31 2008 our interest rate swap liabilities net were valued at $80.2 million using Level

inputs

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS No 159 permits entities to choose to

measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value This Statement is effective as of the

beginning of an entitys first fiscal year that begins after November 15 2007 We adopted SFAS No 159 as of

January 2008 We did not elect the fair value option of SFAS No 159

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 Business Combinations which continues to require
the treatment that all business combinations be accounted for by applying the acquisition method Under the

acquisition method the acquirer recognizes and measures the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed
and any contingent consideration and contractual contingencies as whole at their fair value as of the acquisition
date Under SFAS No 141 all transaction costs are expensed as incurred SFAS No 141 replaces
SFAS No 141 The guidance in SFAS No 141 will be applied prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15
2008
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In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS No 160 requires that noncontrolling interest previously

referred to as minority interest be separately reported in the equity section of the consolidated entitys balance

sheet SFAS No 160 also established accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries

held by parties other than the parent ii the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the

noncontrolling interest iiichanges in parents ownership interest iv the valuation of retained noncontrolling

equity investments when subsidiary is deconsolidated and sufficient disclosures to identify the interest of the

parent and the noncontrolling owners SFAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15

2008 We are currently assessing the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No 160 will have on our

consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting

SFAS No 161 is effective for fmancial statements issued for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after

November 15 2008 with early application encouraged We have not completed our evaluation of SFAS No 161 to

determine the impact that adoption will have on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations

Inflation and Changing Prices

Our systems costs and expenses are subject to inflation and price fluctuations Such changes in costs and

expenses can generally be passed through to subscribers Programming costs have historically increased at rates in

excess of inflation and are expected to continue to do so We believe that under the FCCs existing cable rate

regulations we may increase rates for cable services to more than cover any increases in programming However

competitive conditions and other factors in the marketplace may limit our ability to increase our rates
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business we use interest rate swaps with counterparties to fix the interest rate on

portion of our variable interest rate debt As of December 31 2008 we had $1.2 billion of interest rate swaps with

various banks with weighted average fixed rate of approximately 4.8% We also had several forward starting

interest rate swaps with fixed rate of approximately 3.2% $1.0 billion and $0.1 billion of which commence during

the years ended December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively The fixed rates of the interest rate swaps are offset

against the applicable Eurodollar rate to determine the related interest expense Under the terms of the interest rate

swaps we are exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by the other parties however we do not

anticipate the nonperformance of any of our counterparties At December 31 2008 based on the mark-to-market

valuation we would have paid approximately $80.2 million including accrued interest if we terminated these

interest rate swaps Our current interest rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of $800.0 million

$300.0 million and $100.0 million during the years ended December 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively See

Notes and to our consolidated financial statements

Our interest rate swaps and financial contracts do not contain credit rating triggers that could affect our

liquidity

The table below provides the expected maturity and estimated fair value of our debt as of December 31 2008

all dollars in thousands

Bank Credit

Senior Notes Facilities Total

Expected Maturity

January 2009 to December 31 2009 124500 124500

January 12010 to December 31 2010 92000 92000

January 2011 to December31 2011 125000 148000 273000

January 2012 to December 31 2012 72000 72000

January 12013 to December 31 2013 500000 75250 575250

Thereafter 500000 1679250 2179250

Total 1125000 2191000 3316000

Fair Value 790000 1420773 2210773

Weighted Average Interest Rate 8.9% 4.3% 5.8%
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders of Mediacom Communications Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of Mediacom Communications Corporation and its subsidiaries the

Company at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement schedule

listed in the accompanying index presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein when read

in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the Company maintained in

all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements and

financial statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is

to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial statement schedule and on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with

the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over fmancial reporting assessing the

risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iiiprovide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys
assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

March 13 2009
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 67111 19388

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2774

and $2107 respectively 81086 81509

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 17615 20630

Deferred tax assets 8260 2424

Assets held for sale 1693 649

Total current assets 175765 124600

Investment in cable television systems

Property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation of

$1765319 and $1564583 respectively 1476287 1412139

Franchise rights 1793579 1793549

Goodwill 220646 220646

Subscriber lists and other intangible assets net of accumulated

amortization of $155721 and $153184 respectively 7994 10532

Assets held for sale 10933 28927

Total investment in cable television systems 3509439 3465793

Other assets net of accumulated amortization of $21922 and $27172

respectively
33785 24817

Total assets
3718989 3615210

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities 268574 246915

Deferred revenue 54316 51015

Current portion of long-term debt 124500 94533

Liabilities held for sale 2020 570

Total current liabilities 449410 393033

Long-term debt less current portion 3191500 3120500

Deferred tax liabilities 380650 316602

Other non-current liabilities 44073 38164

Total liabilities 4065633 3868299

Commitments and contingencies Note

STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT

Class common stock $.01 par value 300000000 shares authorized

94984989 shares issued and 67784366 shares outstanding as of

December 31 2008 and 93825218 shares issued and

82761606 shares outstanding as of December 31 2007 950 943

Class common stock $.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized

27001944 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 respectively
270 270

Additional paid-in capital 1004334 997404

Accumulated deficit 1198734 1121242

Treasury stock at cost 27200623 and 22281222 shares of Class

common stock as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

respectively 153464 130464

Total stockholders deficit 346644 253089

Total liabilities and stockholders deficit 3718989 3615210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended

December 31
2008 2007 2006

Amounts in thousands

Revenues $1401894 $1293375 $1210400

Costs and expenses

Service costs exclusive of depreciation and amortization 585362 544072 492729

Selling general and administrative expenses 278942 264006 252688

Corporate expenses 30824 27637 25445

Depreciation and amortization 227910 235331 215918

Operating income 278856 222329 223620

Interest expense net 213333 239015 227206
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 35831
Loss on derivatives net 54363 22902 15798
Loss gain on sale of cable systems net 21308 11079

Other expense net 9133 9054 9973

Loss before income taxes 19281 37563 65188
Provision for income taxes 58213 57566 59734

Net loss 77494 95129 124922

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 95548 107828 110971

Basiclosspershare 0.81 0.88 1.13
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 95548 107828 110971

Dilutedlossper share 0.81 0.88 1.13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT EQUITY

Transfer of stock

BalanceDecember3l2007
270 997404

Netloss

Share-based compensation
5168

Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan 1012

Issuance of restricted stock

units net of forfeitures

Exercise of stock options net

Treasury stock at cost

Transfer of stock __________

Balance December 312008
950 270

910

60
4857

34327

94814

95129
5299

961

402
32

69036

130464 253089

77494

5168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

1014

Class Class Additional

Common Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasury

Stock Stock Capital Deficit Stock

All dollar amounts in thousands

Deferred

Compensation Total

4857 59107

124922

4478

BalanceDecember3l2005 933 274 990584 901191 26636

Net loss
124922

Share-based compensation
4478

Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan...
908

Issuance of restricted stock

units net of forfeitures
60

Deferred compensation
4860

Treasury stock at cost 34327

Transfer of stock

BalanceDecember3l2006
938 271 991113 1026113 61023

Netloss
95129

Share-based compensation
5299

Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan...
962

Issuance of restricted stock

units net of forfeitures
402

Exercise of stock options net 32

Treasury stock at cost
69036

1121242

77494

609 609

755
755

22389 22389

1004334 1198734 153464 346644
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss 77494
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 227910
Loss on derivatives net 54363
Write-down assets held for sale 17680
Loss gain on sale of cable systems net 170

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Amortization of deferred fmancing costs 5070
Share-based compensation 5168
Deferred income taxes 58213

Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects from acquisitions

Accounts receivable net 778
Prepaid expenses and other assets 338
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses 21983
Deferred revenue 3301

Other non-current liabilities 3243
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 268715

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures 289825
Acquisition of cable system

Proceeds from sales of cable systems

Net cash flows used in investing activities 289825
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New borrowings $1035000
Repayment of debt 934033
Redemption/repayment of senior notes

Issuance of senior notes

Repurchases of Class common stock 22389
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in employee stock

purchase plan 1012
Other financing activities book overdrafts 130

Financing costs 10887
Net cash flows provided by used in financing activities 68833
Net increase decrease in cash 47723

CASH beginning of period 19388

CASH end of period 67111

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

235331 215918

22902 15798

11079

11206

4884 5998
5299 4478

57345 59527

Cash paid during the period for interest net of amounts capitalized 209164 245143 247507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSiDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended

December 31
2008 2007 2006

Amounts in thousands

95129 124922

6342
5360

21767

4722

2014
188792

227409

7274
32348

202335

11877
118

400

5220

4959
176905

210235

210235

412525 $2181000

342091 1823552
572500
300000

69036 34386

962

5814

3454
16997
36385

19388

909

3916

2953
52434

19104

17281

36385
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION

Mediacom Communications Corporation MCC and collectively with our direct and indirect subsidiaries

the Company was organized in November 1999 and is involved in the development of cable systems serving

smaller cities and towns in the United States Through these cable systems we provide entertainment information

and telecommunications services to our subscribers and customers As of December 31 2008 we were operating

cable systems
in 22 states principally Alabama California Delaware Florida Georgia Illinois Indiana Iowa

Kentucky Minnesota Missouri North Carolina and South Dakota

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31 2008 we had unused revolving credit commitments of $762.2 million all of which could

be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes
based on the terms and conditions of our debt arrangements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTiNG POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MCC and our subsidiaries All significant

intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated The preparation of the consolidated financial

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period The accounting estimates that require managements most

difficult and subjective judgments include assessment and valuation of intangibles accounts receivable allowance

useful lives of property plant and equipment share-based compensation and the recognition and measurement of

income tax assets and liabilities Actual results could differ from those and other estimates Effective January

2006 we adopted SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment See Note

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from video HSD and phone services are recognized when the services are provided to our

customers Credit risk is managed by disconnecting services to customers who are deemed to be delinquent

Installation revenues are recognized as customer connections are completed because installation revenues are less

than direct installation costs Advertising sales are recognized in the period that the advertisements are exhibited

Under the terms of our franchise agreements we are required to pay local franchising authorities up to 5% of our

gross revenues derived from providing cable services We normally pass
these fees through to our customers

Franchise fees are reported in their respective revenue categories and included in selling general and administrative

expenses

Franchise fees imposed by local governmental
authorities are collected on monthly basis from our customers

and are periodically remitted to the local governmental authorities Because franchise fees are our obligation we

present them on gross basis with corresponding operating expense Franchise fees reported on gross basis

amounted to approximately $36.8 million $36.6 million and $36.7 million for the years
ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best estimate of probable losses in the accounts receivable

balance The allowance is based on the number of days outstanding customer balances historical experience and

other currently available information During the year
ended December 31 2006 we revised our estimate of

probable losses in the accounts receivable of our advertising business to better reflect historical collection

experience
The change in estimate resulted in benefit to the consolidated statement of operations of $0.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2006
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2006 we revised our estimate of probable losses in the

accounts receivable of our video HSD and phone business to better reflect historical collection experience The

change in estimate resulted in loss of $0.6 million and income of $1.0 million in our consolidated statement of

operations for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2006 respectively

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our accounts receivable are comprised of amounts due from subscribers in varying regions throughout the
United States Concentration of credit risk with respect to these receivables is limited due to the large number of
customers comprising our customer base and their geographic dispersion We invest our cash with high quality
financial institutions

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Additions to property plant and equipment generally
include material labor and indirect costs Depreciation is calculated on straight-line basis over the following useful

lives

Buildings 40 Years

Leasehold improvements Life of respective lease

Cable systems and equipment and subscriber devices to 20
years

Vehicles
to years

Furniture fixtures and office equipment
years

We capitalize improvements that extend asset lives and expense repairs and maintenance as incurred At the
time of retirements write-offs sales or other dispositions of property the original cost and related accumulated

depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the gains or losses are included in depreciation and
amortization

expense in the consolidated statement of operations

We capitalize the costs associated with the construction of cable transmission and distribution facilities new
customer installations and indirect costs associated with our telephony product Costs include direct labor and

material as well as certain indirect costs including interest We perform periodic evaluations of certain estimates
used to determine the amount and extent that such costs that are capitalized Any changes to these estimates which

may be significant are applied in the period in which the evaluations were completed The costs of disconnecting
service at customers dwelling or reconnecting to previously installed dwelling are charged as expense in the

period incurred Costs associated with subsequent installations of additional services not previously installed at

customers dwelling are capitalized to the extent such costs are incremental and directly attributable to the
installation of such additional services See also Note

Capitalized Software Costs

We account for internal-use software development and related costs in accordance with AICPA Statement of
Position No 98-1 Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use
Software development and other related costs consist of external and internal costs incurred in the application

development stage to purchase and implement the software that will be used in our telephony business Costs

incurred in the development of application and infrastructure of the software is capitalized and will be amortized

over our respective estimated useful life of years During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we
capitalized approximately $2.5 million and $1.2 million respectively of software development costs Capitalized
software had net book value of $18.7 million and $16.5 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Marketing and Promotional Costs

Marketing and promotional costs are expensed as incurred and were $29.3 million $30.1 million and
$28.9 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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MEDIACOM COMMU4ICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible Assets

Our cable systems operate under non-exclusive cable franchises or franchise rights granted by state and local

governmental
authorities for varying lengths of time We acquired these cable franchises through acquisitions

of

cable systems
and were accounted for using the purchase

method of accounting As of December 31 2008 we held

1368 franchises in areas located throughout the United States The value of franchise is derived from the

economic benefits we receive from the right to solicit new subscribers and to market new products and services

such as advanced digital television HSD and phone in specific market territory We concluded that our franchise

rights have an indefinite useful life since among other things there are no legal regulatory contractual

competitive
economic or other factors limiting the period over which these franchise rights contribute to our

revenues and cash flows Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of

the identifiable net assets acquired In accordance with SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets we

do not amortize franchise rights and goodwill Instead such assets are tested annually for impairment or more

frequently
if impairment indicators arise

We follow the provisions
of SFAS No 142 to test our goodwill and franchise rights

for impairment We assess

the fair values of each cable system cluster using
discounted cash flow methodology under which the fair value of

cable franchise rights are determined in direct manner This assessment involves significant judgment including

certain assumptions and estimates that determine future cash flow expectations and other future benefits which are

consistent with the expectations
of buyers and sellers of cable systems

in determining fair value These assumptions

and estimates include discount rates revenues per customer market penetration as percentage
of homes passed

and operating margin We also consider market transactions market valuations and other valuations using multiples

of operating
income before depreciation and amortization to confirm the reasonableness of fair values determined by

the discounted cash flow methodology Significant impairment in value resulting in impairment charges may result

if the estimates and assumptions used in the fair value determination change in the future and such impairments

could potentially
be material

Based on the guidance outlined in EITF No 02-7 Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-

Lived Intangible Assets we determined that the unit of accounting or reporting unit for testing goodwill
and

franchise rights for impairment resides at cable system cluster level Such level reflects the financial reporting

level managed and reviewed by the corporate
office i.e chief operating

decision maker as well as how we

allocated capital resources and utilize the assets Lastly the reporting
unit level reflects the level at which the

purchase
method of accounting for our acquisitions was originally

recorded We have two reporting units for the

purpose
of applying

SFAS No 142 Mediacom Broadband and Mediacom LLC

In accordance with SFAS No 142 we are required to determine goodwill impairment using two-step process

The first step compares the fair value of reporting
unit with our carrying amount including goodwill If the fair

value of the reporting unit exceeds our carrying amount goodwill
of the reporting unit is considered not impaired

and the second step is unnecessary If the carrying amount of reporting
unit exceeds our fair value the second step

is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss if any The second step compares the implied fair value of

the reporting units goodwill calculated using the residual method with the carrying amount of that goodwill If the

carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value the excess is recognized as an impairment loss

The impairment test for our franchise rights and other intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of

comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value If the carrying
value of the intangible

asset exceeds its fair value the excess is recognized as an impairment loss

Since our adoption of SFAS No 142 in 2002 we have not recorded any impairments as result of our

impairment testing We completed our most recent impairment test as of October 2008 which reflected no

impairment of our franchise rights goodwill or other intangible assets

Our Class common stock price has had significant volatility during the fourth quarter
of 2008 along with

precipitous drop in equity
securities prices across all sectors of the United States Because there has not been

change in the fundamentals of our business we do not believe that our stock price
is the sole indicator of the
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MEDLACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

underlying value of the assets in our reporting units We have therefore determined that this short-term
volatility inour stock price does not qualify as triggering event under SFAS No 142 and as such no interim impairment testis required as of December 31 2008

Other finite-lived intangible assets which consist primarily of subscriber lists and covenants not to competecontinue to be amortized over their useful lives of to 10 years and years respectively Amortization expense forthe
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was approximately $2.6 million $2.5 million and $2.1 millionrespectively Our estimated aggregate amortization expense for 2009 through 2011 and beyond are $2.6 million$2.6 million $2.6 million and $0.2 million respectively

Other Assets

Other assets net primarily include financing costs and original issue discount incurred to raise debt Financingcosts are deferred and amortized as other
expense and original issue discounts are deferred and amortized as interest

expense over the expected term of such financings

Segment Reporting

SFAS No 131 Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information requires the disclosureof factors used to identify an enterprises reportable segments Our operations are organized and managed on thebasis of cable system clusters that
represent operating segments within our service area Each operating segmentderives our revenues from the

delivery of similarproducts and services to customer base that is also similar Each
operating segment deploys similar

technology to deliver our products and services and
operates within similar

regulatory environment In addition each operating segment has similar economic characteristics Managementevaluated the criteria for
aggregation of the

operating segments under SFAS No 131 and believes that we meet eachof the respective criteria set forth Accordingly management has identified broadband services as our one reportablesegment

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No 133 Accounting for DerivativeInstruments and Hedging Activities SFAS No 138 Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 and SFAS No 149 Amendment of Statement 133on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities These pronouncements require that all derivative instruments berecognized on the balance sheet at fair value We enter into interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate on portion ofour variable interest rate debt to reduce the potential volatility in our interest

expense that would otherwise resultfrom changes in market interest rates Our derivative instruments are recorded at fair value and are included in othercurrent assets other assets and other liabilities of our consolidated balance sheet Our
accounting policies for theseinstruments are based on whether

they meet our criteria for designation as hedging transactions which include theinstruments effectiveness risk reduction and in most cases one-to-one matching of the derivative instrument toour underlying transaction Gains and losses from changes in fair values of derivatives that are not designated ashedges for accounting purposes are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations We have no derivativefinancial instruments designated as hedges Therefore changes in fair value for the respective periods wererecognized in the consolidated statement of operations

Accounting for Asset Retirement

We
adopted SFAS No 143 Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations on January 2003SFAS No 143 addresses financial accounting and

reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs We reviewed our asset retirement obligations todetermine the fair value of such liabilities and if reasonable estimate of fair value could be made This entailed thereview of leases covering tangible long-lived assets as well as our rights-of-way under franchise agreements Certainof our franchise agreements and leases contain provisions that require restoration or removal of equipment if thefranchises or leases are not renewed Based on historical experience we expect to renew our franchise or lease
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agreements In the unlikely event that any franchise or lease agreement is not expected to be renewed we would

record an estimated liability However in determining the fair value of our asset retirement obligation under our

franchise agreements consideration will be given to the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984 which generally

entitles the cable operator to the fair market value for the cable system covered by franchise if renewal is denied

and the franchising authority acquires ownership of the cable system or effects transfer of the cable system to

another person Changes in these assumptions based on future information could result in adjustments to estimated

liabilities

Upon adoption of SFAS No 143 we determined that in certain instances it is obligated by contractual terms or

regulatory requirements to remove facilities or perform other remediation activities upon the retirement of our

assets We initially recorded $7.8 million asset in property plant and equipment and corresponding liability of

$7.8 million As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the corresponding asset net of accumulated amortization was

$2.1 million and $2.9 million respectively

Accounting for Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets we

periodically
evaluate the recoverability and estimated lives of our long-lived assets including property

and

equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount may not be recoverable or the useful life has changed The measurement for such impairment

loss is based on the fair value of the asset typically
based upon the future cash flows discounted at rate

commensurate with the risk involved Unless presented separately the loss is included as component of either

depreciation expense or amortization expense as appropriate

Programming Costs

We have various fixed-term carriage contracts to obtain programming for our cable systems
from content

suppliers whose compensation is generally
based on fixed monthly fee per customer These programming

contracts are subject to negotiated renewal Programming costs are recognized
when we distribute the related

programming These programming costs are usually payable each month based on calculations performed by us and

are subject to adjustments
based on the results of periodic audits by the content suppliers Historically such audit

adjustments
have been immaterial to our total programming costs Some content suppliers

offer financial incentives

to support the launch of channel and ongoing marketing support When such financial incentives are received we

defer them within non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets and recognizes such amounts as

reduction of programming costs which are component of service costs in the consolidated statement of

operations over the carriage term of the programming contract

Share-based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No 123R on January 2006 see Note We estimate the fair value of stock options

granted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model This fair value is then amortized on straight-line basis over

the requisite service periods of the awards which is generally
the vesting period This option-pricing model requires

the input of highly subjective assumptions including the options expected
life and the price volatility of the

underlying stock The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment and to the extent actual

results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates such amounts will be recorded as cumulative

adjustment in the periods the estimates are revised Actual results and future changes in estimates may differ

substantially from our current estimates

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability method as stipulated by SFAS No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes This method generally provides
that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized

for temporary

differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and anticipated benefit

of utilizing net operating loss carryforwards
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In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards we assess all

available positive and negative evidence
including recent performance the scheduled reversal of deferred tax

liabilities forecasts of taxable income in future periods and available prudent tax planning strategies In
forecasting

future taxable income we use assumptions that require significant judgment and are consistent with the estimates
used to manage the business At December 31 2008 we recorded net deferred tax asset valuation allowance of
approximately $677.4 million We will continue to monitor the need for the deferred tax asset valuation allowance in
accordance with SFAS No 109 Should there be sufficient change in our assessment of our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets we will adjust our valuation allowance

accordingly

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income requires companies to classif items of other
comprehensive income by their nature in the financial statements and display the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the

equity section of
statement of financial position We have had no other comprehensive income items to report

Rec1assficatjons

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value
Measurements SFAS No 157 establishes single authoritative definition of fair value sets out framework for

measuring fair value and expands on required disclosures about fair value measurement Effective January 2008we adopted SFAS No 157 for our financial assets and liabilities In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position FSP No FAS 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 which delays the effective date of
SFAS No 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008
and interim periods within those fiscal years We are evaluating the impact of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities
which include goodwill and other intangible assets SFAS No 157 establishes framework for measuring fair value
under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurement The adoption
of SFAS No 157 on January 2008 did not have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

The
following sets forth our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at

December 31 2008 These assets and liabilities have been categorized according to the three-level fair value
hierarchy established by SFAS No 157 which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market
data

Level Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data

As of December 31 2008 our interest rate swap liabilities net were valued at $80.2 million using Level
inputs

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option forFinancial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS No 159 permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value This Statement is effective as of the
beginning of an entitys first fiscal year that begins after November 15 2007 We adopted SFAS No 159 as of
January 2008 We did not elect the fair value option of SFAS No 159
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In December 2007 the PASB issued SFAS No 14 1R Business Combinations which continues to require

the treatment that all business combinations be accounted for by applying the acquisition method Under the

acquisition method the acquirer recognizes and measures the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed

and any contingent consideration and contractual contingencies as whole at their fair value as of the acquisition

date Under SPAS No 141R all transaction costs are expensed as incurred SFAS No 141 replaces

SPAS No 141 The guidance in SFAS No 141 will be applied prospectively to business combinations for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15

2008 Any impact will be dependent on the terms of future business combinations

In December 2007 the PASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS No 160 requires that noncontrolling interest previously

referred to as minority interest be separately reported in the equity section of the consolidated entitys balance

sheet SFAS No 160 also established accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries

held by parties other than the parent ii the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the

noncontrolling interest iiichanges in parents ownership interest iv the valuation of retained noncontrolling

equity investments when subsidiary is deconsolidated and sufficient disclosures to identify the interest of the

parent and the noncontrolling owners SPAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15

2008 We are currently assessing the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No 160 will have on our

consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the PASB issued SPAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting

SPAS No 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after

November 15 2008 with early application encouraged We have not completed our evaluation of SPAS No 161 to

determine the impact that adoption will have on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations

EARNINGS PER SHARE

We calculate eamings per
share in accordance with SPAS No 128 Earnings per Share SPAS No 128

computes basic eamings loss per share by dividing the net income loss by the weighted average
number of shares

of common stock outstanding during the period Diluted eamings per
share is computed by dividing the net income

loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period plus the effects of

any dilutive securities Diluted earnings per
share considers the impact of potentially dilutive securities except in

periods in which there is loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares would have an anti-dilutive

effect Our potentially
dilutive securities include common shares which may be issued upon exercise of our stock

options conversion of convertible senior notes or vesting of restricted stock units Diluted earnings per share

excludes the impact of potential common shares related to our stock options in periods in which the option exercise

price is greater
than the average

market price of our Class common stock during the period

Por the year
ended December 31 2008 we generated net losses and so the inclusion of the potential common

shares would have been anti-dilutive Accordingly diluted loss per share equaled basic loss per share Por the year

ended December 31 2008 the calculation of diluted loss per
share excludes 3.3 million potential common shares

related to our stock options and restricted stock units

Por the year ended December 31 2007 we generated net losses and so the inclusion of the potential common

shares would have been anti-dilutive Accordingly diluted loss per
share equaled basic loss per share Por the year

ended December 31 2007 the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes 2.1 million potential common shares

related to our stock options and restricted stock units

Por the year
ended December 31 2006 we generated net losses and so the inclusion of the potential common

shares would have been anti-dilutive Accordingly diluted loss per share equaled basic loss per share Por the year

ended December 31 2006 the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes 1.5 million potential common shares

related to our stock options and restricted stock units and 9.2 million potential common shares related to our

convertible senior notes
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The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator of the computations of diluted loss per share for

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 amounts in thousands except per share amounts

For the Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006

Amount AmountAmount

Net
per Net

per Net
per

Loss Shares Share Loss Shares Share Loss Shares Share

Basic loss per share $77494 95548 0.81 $95129 107828 0.88 $1249221 110971 1.13
Effect of dilutive securities

Conversion of convertible senior

notes

Assumed exercise of stock

options

Diluted loss per share $77494 95548 0.81 $95 129 107828 0.88 1249221 110971 1.13

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 property plant and equipment consisted of dollars in thousands

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Cable systems equipment and subscriber devices 3059325 2808187
Vehicles 72759 67468
Furniture fixtures and office equipment 60028 53005
Buildings and leasehold improvements 41941 40880
Land and land improvements 7553 7182

3241606 2976722
Accumulated depreciation 1765319 1564583

Property plant and equipment net 1476287 1412139

Change in Estimate Useful lives

Effective July 2008 we changed the estimated useful lives of certain plant and equipment within our cable

systems due to the initial deployment of all digital video technology both in the network and at the customers home
These changes in asset lives were based on our plans and our experience thus far in executing such plans to deploy
all digital video technology across certain of our cable systems This technology affords us the opportunity to

increase network capacity without costly upgrades and as such extends the useful lives of cable plant by four yearsWe have also begun to provide all digital set-top boxes to our customer base as part of this all digital network

deployment In connection with the all digital set-top launch we have reviewed the asset lives of our customer

premise equipment and determined that their useful lives should be extended by two years While the timing and
extent of current deployment plans are subject to modification management believes that extending the useful lives

is appropriate and will be subject to ongoing analysis The weighted average useful lives of such fixed assets

changed as follows

Useful Lives

in years

From To
Plant and equipment 12 16

Customer premise equipment

66



MEDLCOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These changes were made on prospective
basis effective July 2008 and resulted in reduction of

depreciation expense and corresponding
increase in net income of approximately $11.6 million and an increase to

basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.12 per
share for the year

ended December 31 2008

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was approximately

$225.3 million $232.8 million and $213.8 million respectively As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we had

property under capitalized leases of $0 million and $10.1 million respectively before accumulated depreciation and

$0 million and $1.9 million respectively net of accumulated depreciation During the years
ended December 31

2008 and 2007 we incurred gross
interest costs of $217.8 million and $243.2 million respectively of which

$4.3 million and $3.8 million was capitalized See Note

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following dollars in thousands

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Accrued interest
45265 39588

Liability under interest rate exchange agreements
45208

Accrued programming costs
37848 43596

Accrued taxes and fees 31198 27617

Accrued payroll and benefits
30590 25165

Book overdraftsW
16827 16971

Accrued service costs
14320 18114

Accrued property plant and equipment
13606 11588

Subscriber advance payments
11236 11471

Accrued telecommunications
5058 15687

Accounts payable
464 18528

Other accrued expenses
16954 18590

Accounts payable accrued expenses and other current liabilities 268574 246915

Book overdrafts represent outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit at our disbursement accounts We

transfer funds from our depository accounts to our disbursement accounts upon daily notification of checks

presented
for payment Changes in book overdrafts are reported as part of cash flows from financing activities in

our consolidated statement of cash flows

DEBT

Debt consisted of the following dollars in thousands

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Bank credit facilities
$2191000 2090000

/% senior notes due 2011 125000 125000

/2% senior notes due 2013 500000 500000

/2% senior notes due 2015 500000 500000

Capital lease obligations
33

3316000 3215033

Less Current portion
124500 94533

Total long-term debt
3191500 3120500
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Bank Credit Facilities

The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC one of our two principal subsidiaries maintain $1.21 billion

senior secured credit facility the LLC credit facility The LLC credit facility originally consisted of revolving
credit facility the LLC revolver with $400.0 million revolving credit commitment $200.0 million term loan

the LLC term loan and $550.0 million term loan the LLC term loan In May 2006 we refinanced the
LLC term loan with new term loan the LLC term loan in the amount of $650.0 million Borrowings under
the LLC term loan bear interest at rate that is 0.50% less than the interest rate of the LLC term loan that it

replaced The LLC revolver expires on September 30 2011 and its commitment amount is not subject to scheduled
reductions prior to maturity

The LLC term loan matures on September 30 2012 and beginning on March 31 2008 has been subject to

quarterly reductions ranging from 2.50% to 9.00% of the original amount The LLC term loan matures on
January 31 2015 and is subject to quarterly reductions of 0.25% that began on March 31 2007 and extend through
December 31 2014 with final payment at maturity representing 92.00% of the original principal amount

As of December 31 2008 the maximum commitment available under the LLC revolver was $400.0 million
and the revolver had an outstanding balance of $78.0 million As of the same date the LLC term loans and had
outstanding balances of $180.0 million and $637.0 million respectively

The credit agreement of the LLC credit facility the LLC credit agreement provides for interest at varying
rates based upon various borrowing options and certain financial ratios and for commitment fees of /2% to %%per
annum on the unused portion of the available revolving credit commitment Interest on outstanding LLC revolver
and LLC term loan balances is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus floating percentage ranging from 1.00%
to 2.00% or the base rate plus floating percentage ranging from 0% to 1.00% Interest on the LLC term loan is

payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus floating percentage ranging from 1.50% to 1.75% or the base rate plus
floating percentage ranging from 0.50% to 0.75%

For the
year ended December 31 2008 the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan was reduced by

$20.0 million or 10.00% of the original principal amount and the
outstanding debt under the LLC term loan was

reduced by $6.5 million or 1.00% of the original principal amount

For the
year ending December 31 2009 the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan will be reduced by

$24.0 million or 12.00% of the original principal amount and the
outstanding debt under the LLC term loan will

be reduced by $6.5 million or 1.00% of the original principal amount

The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC our other principal subsidiary maintain
1.755 billion senior secured credit facility the Broadband credit facility The Broadband credit

facility

originally consisted of revolving credit facility the Broadband revolver $300.0 million term loan the
Broadband term loan and $500.0 million term loan the Broadband term loan

In October 2005 we amended the Broadband revolver to increase the revolving credit commitment from
approximately $543.0 million to approximately $650.5 million of which

approximately $430.3 million is not
subject to scheduled reductions prior to the termination date and ii to extend the termination date of the
commitments not subject to reductions from March 31 2010 to December 31 2012 In May 2005 we refinanced the
Broadband term loan with new term loan the Broadband term loan in the amount of $500.0 million In

May 2006 we refinanced the Broadband term loan with new term loan the Broadband term loan in the
amount of $800.0 million Borrowings under the term loan bear interest at rate that is 0.25% less than the
interest rate of the term loan that it replaced In May 2008 we entered into an incremental facility agreement that

provides for new term loan Broadband term loan under our credit facility in the principal amount of
$350.0 million Approximately $335.0 million of the proceeds from the new term loan were used to

repay the

outstanding balance of the revolving credit portion of our credit facility without any reduction in the revolving credit

commitments
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The Broadband term loan matures on March 31 2010 and since September 30 2004 has been subject to

quarterly reductions ranging from 1.00% to 8.00% of the original principal amount The Broadband term loan

matures on January 31 2015 and is subject to quarterly reductions of 0.25% that began on March 31 2007 and

extend through December 31 2014 with final payment at maturity representing 92.00% of the original principal

amount The Broadband term loan matures on January 2016 and beginning on June 30 2008 has been subject

to quarterly reductions of 0.25% with final payment at maturity representing 92.50% of the original principal

amount

As of December 31 2008 the maximum commitment available under the Broadband revolver was

$516.7 million and the revolver had an outstanding balance of $57.3 million As of the same date the Broadband

term loans and had outstanding balances of $106.5 million $784.0 million and $348.3 million respectively

The credit agreement of the Broadband credit facility the Broadband credit agreement provides for interest

at varying rates based upon various borrowing options and certain financial ratios and for commitment fees of %%
to %% per annum on the unused portion of the available revolving credit commitment Interest on outstanding

Broadband revolver and Broadband term loan balances is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus floating

percentage ranging from 1.00% to 2.50% or the base rate plus floating percentage ranging from 0.25% to 1.50%

Interest on the Broadband term loan is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus floating percentage ranging

from 1.50% to 1.75% or the base rate plus floating percentage ranging from 0.50% to 0.75% Interest on the

Broadband term loan is payable at either the Eurodollar Rate plus margin of 3.50% or the base rate plus margin

of 2.50% For the first four years
of the term loan applicable Eurodollar and base rates are subject to minimum

of 3.00% and 4.00 respectively

For the year ended December 31 2008 the maximum commitment amount under the portion of the Broadband

revolver subject to reduction was reduced by $48.7 million The outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan

was reduced by $60.0 million or 20.00% of the original principal amount the outstanding debt under the Broadband

term loan was reduced by $8.0 million or 1.00% of the original principal amount and the outstanding debt under

the Broadband term loan was reduced by $1.75 million or 0.50% of the original principal amount

For the year ended December 31 2009 the maximum commitment amount under the portion of the Broadband

revolver subject to reduction will be reduced by $66.9 million the outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan

will be reduced by $60.0 million or 20.00% of the original principal amount the outstanding debt under the

Broadband term loan will be reduced by $8.0 million or 1.00% of the original principal amount and the

outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan will be reduced by $3.5 million or 1.00% of the original

principal amount

The LLC and Broadband credit agreements require compliance with certain financial covenants including the

requirement that we maintain ratio of senior indebtedness as defined to annualized system cash flow as defined

of no more than 6.0 to 1.0 The credit agreements also require compliance with other covenants including but not

limited to limitations on mergers and acquisitions consolidations and sales of certain assets liens the incurrence of

additional indebtedness certain restricted payments and certain transactions with affiliates

The LLC credit agreement is collateralized by Mediacom LLCs pledge of all our ownership interests in our

operating subsidiaries and is guaranteed by Mediacom LLC on limited recourse basis to the extent of such

ownership interests The Broadband credit agreement is collateralized by Mediacom Broadband LLCs pledge of all

out ownership interests in our operating subsidiaries and is guaranteed by Mediacom Broadband LLC on limited

recourse basis to the extent of such ownership interests

The average interest rates on outstanding debt under the bank credit facilities as of December 31 2008 and

2007 were 4.3% and 6.7% respectively including the effect of the interest rate swaps discussed below As of

December 31 2008 we had unused credit commitments of approximately $762.2 million under our bank credit

facilities all of which could be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes based on the terms and conditions

of our debt arrangements Giving pro forma effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13

2009 we had unused revolving credit commitments of approximately $652.2 million as of December 31 2008 See

Note 11
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As of December 31 2008 approximately $19.3 million of letters of credit were issued to various parties as

collateral for our performance relating primarily to insurance and franchise requirements The amount paid to obtain

these letters of credit was immaterial

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate exchange agreements or interest rate swaps to fix the applicable Eurodollar portion of

debt under our Broadband and LLC Credit Facilities As of December 31 2008 we had current interest rate swaps
with various banks pursuant to which the interest rate on $1.2 billion is fixed at weighted average rate of

approximately 4.8% As of the same date about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed interest rates or

subject to interest rate protection Our swaps have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes and have

been accounted for on mark-to-market basis as of and for the year ended December 31 2008 Our current interest

rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of $800 million $300 million and $100 million during the years

ended December 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively

In 2008 we entered into forward starting interest rate swaps that fixed rates for two years at weighted average

of approximately 3.2% on $400.0 million of floating rate debt commencing in 2009 and approximately 2.9% on

$100.0 million of floating rate debt commencing in 2010 We also entered forward starting interest rate swaps that

fixed rates for three years at weighted average rate of approximately 3.3% on $600.0 million of floating rate debt

commencing in 2009 These agreements have been accounted for on mark-to-market basis as of and for the year

ended December 31 2008

Although we may be exposed to future losses in the event of counterparties non-performance we do not

expect such losses if any to be material

The fair value of the interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive or pay to terminate such

agreements taking into account market interest rates and the remaining time to maturities As of December 31
2008 based on the mark-to-market valuation we recorded on our consolidated balance sheet net accumulated

liability for derivatives of $80.2 million As result of the mark-to-market valuations on these interest rate swaps
we recorded loss on derivatives of $54.4 million and $22.9 million for the

years
ended December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively

Senior Notes

On February 26 1999 Mediacom LLC and its affiliate Mediacom Capital Corporation Delaware

corporation jointly issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of %%senior notes due February 2011 the

%%Senior Notes The %%Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom LLC and the indenture for

the %%Senior Notes stipulates among other things restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness distributions

mergers and asset sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom LLC

On January 24 2001 Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital Corporation jointly issued $500.0 million

aggregate principal amount of A% senior notes due January 2013 the /2% Senior Notes The Y2% Senior

Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom LLC and the indenture for the /2% Senior Notes stipulates among
other things restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness distributions mergers and asset sales and has cross-default

provisions related to other debt of Mediacom LLC

On June 29 2001 Mediacom Broadband LLC and its affiliate Mediacom Broadband Corporation Delaware

corporation jointly issued $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of 11% notes due July 2013 the 11% Senior

Notes The 11% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom Broadband LLC and the indenture for the

11% Senior Notes stipulates among other things restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness distributions mergers
and asset sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom Broadband LLC
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On August 30 2005 Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation jointly issued

$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of /2% senior notes due October 2015 the Y2% Senior Notes The

/2% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom Broadband LLC and the indenture for the /2% Senior

Notes stipulates among other things restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness distributions mergers and asset

sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom Broadband LLC The proceeds were used

to reduce amounts outstanding under the revolving credit portion of our credit facilities

On July 17 2006 we redeemed all of the outstanding 11% Senior Notes We funded the redemption with

drawdowns on the revolving credit portions of our subsidiary credit facilities

On October 2006 Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation jointly issued an

additional $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of Y2% Senior Notes The proceeds were used to reduce

amounts outstanding under the revolving credit portion of our credit facilities

Our senior notes contain financial and other covenants though they are generally less restrictive than those

found in our bank credit facilities Principal covenants include limitation on the incurrence of additional

indebtedness based upon maximum ratio of total indebtedness to cash flow as defined in these debt agreements of

7.0 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom LLCs senior notes and 8.5 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom Broadband LLCs

senior notes These agreements
also contain limitations on dividends investments and distributions

For all periods through December 31 2008 we were in compliance with all of the covenants under our bank

credit and senior note agreements There are no covenants events of default borrowing conditions or other terms in

our credit facilities or our other debt arrangements
that are based on changes in our credit ratings assigned by any

rating agency

Convertible Senior Notes

On June 29 2001 we issued $172.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4% convertible senior notes due

July 2008 the Convertible Senior Notes On June 29 2006 we paid the entire outstanding principal amount of

our Convertible Senior Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest with borrowings under the Broadband term loan

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended December 31 2006 we recorded in our consolidated statement of operations loss on early

extinguishment of debt of $35.8 million as result of our redemption of our 11% senior notes This change reflected

representing $22.0 million of call premium $2.6 million of bank fees and the write-off of $11.2 million of

unamortized deferred financing costs There was no loss on early extinguishment of debt in the years ended

December 31 2007 and 2008

Fair Value and Debt Maturities

As of December 31 2008 the fair values of our Senior Notes and Bank Credit Facilities are as follows dollars

in thousands

Ys% senior notes due 2011 97500

/2% senior notes due 2013 375000

14% seniornotes due 2015 317500

790000

Bank credit facilities 1420773
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The stated maturities of all debt outstanding as of December 31 2008 are as follows dollars in thousands

2009 124500
2010 92000
2011 273000
2012 72000
2013 575250
Thereafter 2179250
Total 3316000

STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT

We have authorized 300000000 shares of Class common stock $.01 par value and 100000000 shares of

Class common stock $.01 par value The holders of Class and Class common stock are entitled to vote as

single class on each matter in which our shareholders are entitled to vote Each Class share is entitled to one vote

and each Class share is entitled to ten votes

Stock Repurchase Plans

In November 2007 the Board of Directors authorized an additional $50.0 million Class common stock

repurchase program During the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we repurchased approximately
4.9 million 11.2 million and 5.8 million shares for an aggregate cost of $22.4 million $69.0 million and

$34.4 million respectively at an average price per share of $4.68 $6.18 and $5.90 respectively As of
December 31 2008 approximately $47.6 million remained available under the Class common stock repurchase

program

Share-based Compensation

In April 2003 our Board of Directors adopted our 2003 Incentive Plan or 2003 Plan which amended and

restated our 1999 Stock Option Plan and incorporated into the 2003 Plan options that were previously granted
outside the 1999 Stock Option Plan The 2003 Plan was approved by our stockholders in June 2003 and provides for

the grant of incentive stock options nonqualified stock options restricted shares and other stock-based awards in

addition to annual incentive awards The contractual life of share-based awards granted under the 2003 Plan is no

more than 10 years We deliver shares from treasury upon the exercise of stock options or the conversion of

restricted stock units The 2003 Plan has 21.0 million shares of common stock available for issuance in settlement of
awards As of December 31 2008 approximately 13.8 million shares remained available for issuance under the

2003 Plan

Effective January 2006 we adopted SFAS No 123R using the modified prospective method
SFAS No 123R revises SFAS No 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes APB
Opinion No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees SFAS No 123R requires the cost of all share-based

payments to employees including grants of employee stock options to be recognized in the financial statements

based on their fair values at the grant date or the date of later modification over the requisite service period In

addition SFAS 123R requires unrecognized cost based on the amounts previously disclosed in our pro forma
footnote disclosure related to options vesting after the date of initial adoption to be recognized in the financial

statements over the remaining requisite service period

Under this method prior periods are not restated and the amount of compensation cost recognized includes

compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to but not yet vested as of January 2008 based
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No 123 and ii compensation
cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 2008 based on the grant date fair value estimated

in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No 123R We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model which

requires extensive use of accounting judgment and financial estimates including estimates of the expected term
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employees will retain their vested stock options before exercising them the estimated volatility of our stock price

over the expected term and the number of options
that will be forfeited prior to the completion of their vesting

requirements Application of alternative assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of the fair value

of share-based compensation and consequently the related amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of

operations The provisions of SFAS No 123R apply to new stock awards and stock awards outstanding but not

yet vested on the effective date In March 2005 the SEC issued SAB No 107 Share-Based Payment relating to

SFAS No 123R We have applied
the provisions of SAB No 107 in our adoption

Impact of the Adoption of SFAS No 123R

Upon adoption of SPAS 123R we recognize share-based compensation expenses
associated with share

awards on straight-line basis over the requisite service period using the fair value method The incremental share-

based compensation expense recognized due to the adoption of SPAS 123R was approximately $2.2 million for the

year ended December 31 2006 Compensation expense
related to restricted stock units was recognized before the

implementation
of SFAS No 123R Results for prior periods have not been restated

Total share-based compensation expense was as follows dollars in thousands except per share data

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Share-based compensation expense by type of award

Employee stock options
1638 1920 2240

Employee stock purchase plan
299 284 287

Restricted stock units
3231 3095 1951

Total share-based compensation expense
5168 5299 4478

Tax effect on stock-based compensation expense

Effectonnetloss
5168 5299 4478

Effect on loss per share

Basic and diluted
0.05 0.05 0.04

As required by SPAS No 123R we made an estimate of expected forfeitures and is recognizing

compensation costs only for those equity awards expected to vest The total future compensation cost related to

unvested share-based awards that are expected to vest was $12.5 million as of December 31 2008 which will be

recognized over weighted average period
of 1.0 years

In November 2005 the FASB issued PASB Staff Position No FAS 123R-3 Transition Election Related to

Accounting for Tax Effects of Shared-Based Payment Awards We have elected the short-cut method to calculate

the historical pool of windfall tax benefits

73



MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Valuation Assumptions

As required by SFAS 123R we estimated the fair value of stock options and shares purchased under our

employee stock purchase plan using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the straight-line attribution approach
with the following weighted average assumptions

Employee Stock Option Plans Employee Stock Purchase Plans

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 48.0% 38.0% 55.3% 33.0% 33.0% 33.0%
Risk free interest rate 2.9% 4.5% 4.8% 3.0% 4.3% 4.7%

Expected option life in years 6.2 6.1 4.1 0.5 0.5 0.5
Forfeiture rate 11.5% 14.0% 14.0%

We do not expect to declare dividends Expected volatility is based on combination of implied and historical

volatility of our Class common stock For the
years ended December 31 2006 and 2007 we elected the

simplified method in accordance with SAB 107 to estimate the option life of share-based awards For the year ended
December 31 2008 we estimated the option life of share-based awards using historical data and other factors The
risk free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield in effect at the date of grant The forfeiture rate is based on
trends in actual option forfeitures The awards are subject to annual vesting periods not to exceed

years from the
date of grant
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The following table summarizes the activity of our option plans for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006

Shares

Outstanding at January 2006 4931915

Granted 415000

Exercised 14000
Forfeited 234670

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2006 5098245

Vested or expected to vest at December 31 2006 4954230

Exercisable at December 31 2006 4069569

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

14.12

5.73

6.94

13.85

13.35

13.54

15.06

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term In

years

4.5

4.5

4.3

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Value In

thousands

2508

2252

679

Outstanding at January 2007 5098245

Granted 580000

Exercised 83250

Forfeited 215687

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2007 5379308

Vested or expected to vest at December 31 2007 5233676

Exercisable at December 31 2007 4339078

Outstanding at January 2008 5379308

Granted 1676000

Exercised 29000

Forfeited 176415

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2008 6849893

Vested or expected to vest at December 31 2008 6537651

Exercisable at December 31 2008 4619593

13.35

8.06

7.01

14.75

The aggregate
intrinsic values in the table above represent the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on our stock

price of $4.30 $4.59 and $8.04 per share as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively which would have

been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date

The weighted average exercise price at the date of grant of Class common stock option granted under our

option plan during the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $4.07 $8.06 and $5.73 respectively

During the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 approximately 413333 404369 and 670621 stock

options vested with weighted average
exercise price of $6.72 $6.98 and $9.15 respectively The proceeds we

received resulting from the exercise of stock options during 2008 2007 and 2006 were immaterial

12.82 4.1

12.98 4.0

14.20 3.4

12.82

4.07

5.90

12.95

10.70 4.7 420

10.98 4.5 361

13.52 2.6
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The following table summarizes information concerning stock options outstanding as of December 31 2008

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Aggregate Weighted

Aggregate
Average Weighted Intrinsic Average Weighted IntrinsicNumber of Remaining Average Value Number of Remaining Average Value

Range of Shares Contractual Exercise In Shares Contractual Exercise In
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price thousands Outstanding Life Price thousands
3.00 $12.00 4470410 6.4 years 6.43 420 2240110 4.1 years 8.00

$12.01 $18.00 374935 2.3 years 17.22 374935 2.3 years 17.22

$18.01 $22.00 2004548 1.1 years 19.01 2004548 1.1 years 19.01

6849893 4.7 years 10.70 420 4619593 2.6 years 13.52

Restricted Stock Units

We grant restricted stock units RSUs to certain employees and directors together the participants in

Class common stock Awards of RSUs are valued by reference to shares of common stock that entitle participants
to receive upon the settlement of the unit one share of common stock for each unit The awards are subject to

annual vesting periods not exceeding years from the date of grant We made estimates of expected forfeitures

based on historic voluntary termination behavior and trends of actual RSU forfeitures and recognized compensation
costs for equity awards expected to vest The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding RSUs was $12.7 million based
on the closing stock price of $4.30 per share of our Class common stock at December 31 2008

The following table summarizes the activity of our restricted stock unit awards for the
year ended

December 31 2008

Number of

Non-Vested Weighted

Share Unit Average Grant

Awards Date Fair Value
Unvested Awards at January 2006 1132300 5.46
Granted

484700 5.77
Awards Vested

41250 5.78

Forfeited 96325 554
Unvested Awards at December 31 2006 1479425 5.55
Granted 553000 8.05
Awards Vested 163275 5.71

Forfeited 36675 6.94

Unvested Awards at December 31 2007 1832475 6.26
Granted

1631200 4.20
Awards Vested

386250 6.54

Forfeited 126175 6.11

Unvested Awards at December 31 2008 2951250 5.09

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain an employee stock purchase plan ESPP Under the plan eligible employees are allowed to

participate in the purchase of shares of our Class common stock at minimum 15% discount on the date of the
allocation Shares purchased by employees amounted to 270878 157999 and 183906 for the

years ended
December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The net proceeds to us were approximately $1.0 million
$0.9 million and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is attributable to an increase in the valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets

The reconciliation of the income tax expense at the United States federal statutory rate to the actual income tax

expense is as follows dollars in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Tax benefit at the United States statutory rate 6499 13353 22808

State taxes net of federal tax benefit 7765 8549 9124

Valuation allowance 55031 61552 72450

Permanent items and other 1916 818 968

Total income tax expense
58213 57566 59734

For the year ended December 31 2008 total income tax expense
differed from the tax benefit at the

U.S statutory rate primarily due to an increase in the valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets see

below State tax expense primarily represents the change in the state valuation allowance

During the year ended December 31 2008 we have again determined that deferred tax assets from net

operating loss canyforwards that were created in the respective periods will not be realized under the more-likely-

than-not standard required by SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes As result we increased our

valuation allowance recorded against these assets tax provision of $58.2 million $57.6 million and $59.7 million

was recorded for the years
ended December31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The respective tax provision

amounts substantially represent
the increase in the deferred tax liabilities related to the basis differences of our

indefinite-lived intangible assets

Our net deferred tax liability consists of the following dollars in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Current deferred tax assets

Accrued liabilities 8133 6884 6383

Unrealized loss on interest rate exchange agreements 18258

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1106 790 848

Current deferred tax assets 27497 7674 7231

Less Valuation allowance 19237 5250 4764

Current deferred tax assets net
8260 2424 2467

Long-term deferred tax assets

Net operating losses 918061 897921 812970

Capital loss 4593 10300 9997

Unrealized loss on interest rate exchange agreements 14133

Other assets 4031 6382 7310

Valuation allowance
658211 625757 547023

Long-term deferred tax assets 282607 288846 283254

Long-term deferred tax liabilities

Investment in cable television systems

Tangible fixed assets and defmite-lived intangible assets 290867 291270 285720

Indefinite-lived intangible assets 372390 314178 256834

Long-term deferred tax liabilities
663257 605448 542554

Long-term deferred tax liabilities net
380650 316602 259300
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As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we had deferred tax assets of $968.3 million and $922.3 million

respectively with valuation allowances of $677.4 million and $631.0 million respectively Most of the deferred tax

assets relate to pre-tax net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state purposes These federal net operating
loss carryforwards had balance of approximately $2.3 billion and $2.2 billion as of December 31 2008 and 2007
respectively and if not utilized will expire in the years 2021 through 2028 The state net operating loss

carryforwards had balance of approximately $2.1 billion and $2.0 billion as of December 31 2008 and 2007
respectively and if not utilized will expire in the

years 2009 through 2028 For the
year ended December 31 2008

we changed our methodology for calculating our deferred tax asset for state net opcrating loss carryforwards by

using more accurate state-by-state calculation rather than applying blended state rate This change resulted in

decrease to our deferred tax assets of
approximately $10.4 million As result of certain realization requirements of

SFAS No 123R the table of deferred tax assets and liabilities shown above does not include portion of the net

operating loss deferred tax asset at December 31 2008 and 2007 that arose directly from tax deductions related to

equity compensation in excess of compensation recognized for financial reporting Equity would be increased by

approximately $0.2 million if and when such deferred tax asset is ultimately realized

SFAS No 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by valuation allowance if it is more likely than not

that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized We periodically assess the likelihood of
realization of our deferred tax assets considering all available evidence both positive and negative including our

most recent performance the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities our forecast of taxable income in future

periods and the availability of prudent tax planning strategies As result of these assessments in prior periods we
have established valuation allowances on portion of our deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the

realization of these assets

During the
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 based on our assessment of the facts and

circumstances we concluded that an additional portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss

cariyfowards would not be realized under the more-likely-than-not standard of SFAS No 109 As result we
increased our valuation allowance against deferred tax assets by $58.2 million $57.3 million and $59.5 million in

these years respectively and recognized corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense in each year
These amounts related to the portion of deferred tax liabilities based upon the book vs tax basis difference of our
indefinite-lived intangible assets Our assessment of the facts and circumstances took into account our history of

losses the reduced likelihood of future taxable income and the limited availability of prudent tax planning strategies

We expect to continue to increase our valuation allowance for any increase in the deferred tax liabilities

relating to certain goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets We will adjust our valuation allowance if we
assess that there is sufficient change in our ability to recover our deferred tax assets Our income tax expense in

future periods will be reduced or increased to the extent of offsetting decreases or increases respectively in our

valuation allowance These changes could have significant impact on our future earnings In the event of change
in control our net operating losses would be subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitations

In June 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes- An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FiN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in an entitys financial statements in accordance with SFAS No 109 and prescribes recognition
threshold and measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken on tax return We adopted the provisions of FiN 48 on January 2007 As of December 31 2008 we have
not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits We do not think it is reasonably possible that the total

amount of unrealized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months

We file U.S federal consolidated income tax returns and income tax returns in various state and local

jurisdictions Our 2005 2006 and 2007 U.S federal tax years and various state and local
years from 2004 through

2007 remain subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities

We classif interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as component of income tax expense
During the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively no interest and penalties were accrued
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10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Mediacom Management Corporation Mediacom Management Delaware corporation
holds 1% direct

ownership interest in Mediacom California LLC which in turn holds 1% interest in Mediacom Arizona LLC

Revenues related to these ownership interests represent less than 1% of our total revenues Mediacom Management

is wholly-owned by our Chairman and CEO

One of our directors is partner of law firm that performs
various legal services for us For the years

ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we paid this law firm approximately $0.5 million $1.2 million and

$0.6 million respectively
for services performed

On September 2008 we entered into Share Exchange Agreement the Exchange Agreement with

Shivers Investments LLC Shivers and Shivers Trading Operating Company STOC Both STOC and

Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company LLC Morris Communications and STOC Shivers

and Morris Communications are controlled by William Morris III member of the our Board of Directors the

Board Effective upon closing of the transaction Messrs Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of

Directors See Note 11

11 REPURCHASE OF MEDIACOM CLASS COMMON STOCK

On February 13 2009 we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant
to which we exchanged all of the

capital stock of wholly-owned subsidiary which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic cable

systems serving approximately 25000 basic subscribers for 28309674 shares of Mediacom Class common stock

held by Shivers As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the completion of this transaction our total Class

and Class outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million

The $110 million cash portion of the Exchange Agreement was funded with borrowings made under the

revolving commitments of our bank credit facilities The effective rate of this borrowing was 1.79% as of

February 12 2009 and was based on our Eurodollar rate plus spread of 1.44% The revolving commitments under

the bank credit facilities mature in September 2011

The results of operations for the sale of assets were as follows dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Revenues
22499 21380

Pre-tax net income 2271 1933
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The sale assets from the Exchange Agreement are presented below under the caption Assets held for sale and
Liabilities held for sale in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively dollars in thousands

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Assets held for sale current

Cash 53

Accounts receivable net 1618 587

Prepaid and other current assets 22 62

Total assets held for sale current 1693 649

Assets held for sale long term

Property plant and equipment net 6396 24154
Franchise rights net 4532 4773
Other assets

Total assets held for sale long term 10933 28927
Liabilities held for sale current

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2020 570

Total liabilities held for sale current 2020 570

Based upon the $4.30 closing price per share of our Class common stock on December 31 2008 we
recorded non-cash write-down on the sale assets of approximately $17.7 million for the

year ended December 31
2008 This unrealized loss is included in our statements of operations for the

year ended December 31 2008 under
the caption loss on sale of cable systems net This loss on sale of cable systems net includes approximately
$4.0 million in advisory and consulting fees paid in connection with the Exchange Agreement

The closing price of our Class common stock on February 13 2009 was $4.92 As result we expect to

realize gain on the sale of cable systems net of approximately $18 million in the first quarter of 2009 This

amount along with other closing adjustments will be recorded in our results of operations for the three months
ended March 31 2009

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate in defined contribution plan pursuant to the

Internal Revenue Code Section 40 1k the Plan Under such Plan eligible employees may contribute up to 15%
of their current pre-tax compensation The Plan permits but does not require matching contributions and non-

matching profit sharing contributions to be made by us up to maximum dollar amount or maximum
percentage of

participant contributions as we determine annually We presently match 50% on the first 6% of employee
contributions Our contributions under the Plan totaled approximately $2.5 million $2.4 million and $2.1 million for
the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease and Rental Agreements

Under various lease and rental agreements
for offices warehouses and computer terminals we had rental

expense
of approximately $6.5 million $6.3 million and $5.7 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively Future minimum annual rental payments are as follows dollars in thousands

2009 6212

2010 5392

2011 4538

2012 3464

2013 1818

Thereafter 8531

Total 29955

In addition we rent utility poles in our operations generally under short-term arrangements but we expect these

arrangements to recur Total rental expense for utility poles was approximately $11.0 million $9.8 million and

$10.4 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Letters of Credit

As of December 31 2008 approximately $19.3 million of letters of credit were issued to various parties to

secure our performance relating to insurance and franchise requirements The fair value of such letters of credit was

immaterial

Legal Proceedings

Mediacom LLC one of our wholly owned subsidiaries is named as defendant in putative class action

captioned Gary Ogg and Janice Ogg Mediacom LLC pending in the Circuit Court of Clay County Missouri

originally filed in April 2001 The lawsuit alleges that Mediacom LLC in areas where there was no cable franchise

failed to obtain permission from landowners to place its fiber interconnection cable notwithstanding the possession

of agreements or permission from other third parties While the parties continue to contest liability there also

remains dispute as to the proper measure of damages Based on report by their experts the plaintiffs claim

compensatory damages of approximately $14.5 million Legal fees prejudgment interest potential punitive damages

and other costs could increase that estimate to approximately $26.0 million The plaintiffs
have recently proposed an

alternative damage theory of $42.0 million in compensatory damages We are unable to reasonably determine the

amount of our final liability in this lawsuit as our experts
have estimated our liability to be within the range of

approximately $0.1 million to $2.3 million This estimate does not include any estimate of damages for prejudgment

interest attorneys fees or punitive damages We believe however that the amount of such liability as stated by any

of the parties would not have material effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations cash

flows or business There can be no assurance that the actual liability would not exceed this estimated range As of

March 2009 the trial commenced for the claim by the class representatives Gary and Janice Ogg Mediacom

LLC has tendered the lawsuit to our insurance carrier for defense and indemnification The carrier has agreed to

defend Mediacom LLC under reservation of rights and declaratory judgment action is pending regarding the

carriers defense and coverage responsibilities Mediacom LLC intends to vigorously defend against any claims

made by the plaintiffs including at trial and on appeal if necessary

We are involved in various other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business In the opinion of

management the ultimate disposition of these other matters will not have material adverse effect on our

consolidated financial position results of operations cash flows or business

81



MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSiDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 SALE OF CABLE SYSTEMS NET

We recorded net gain on sale of assets amounting to $11.1 million for the
year ended December 31 2007

due to the sale of certain cable systems in Iowa and South Dakota See Note 11

15 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA all amounts in thousands except per share data

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Unaudited
2008

Revenues 339679 349501 352553 360161

Operating income 64616 69332 71179 73729
Net loss income 30635 20932 2197 69988
Basic and diluted net loss income

per share 0.31 0.22 0.02 0.74
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding... 97645 95137 94628 94781
Diluted weighted average common shares

outstanding 97645 97257 96916 94781

2007

Revenues 307876 324734 328252 332513

Operating income 52327 60961 55439 53602
Net loss 16880 6644 34733 36872
Basic and diluted net loss per share 0.15 0.06 0.32 0.35
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares

outstanding 109890 109758 108013 103649

20061

Revenues 289348 302421 305556 313075

Operating income 52696 59850 55963 55111
Net loss income 37208 5725 89827 3612
Basic and diluted net loss income per share 0.33 0.05 0.82 0.03
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding... 113529 110922 109689 109798

Diluted weighted average common shares

outstanding 113529 121690 109689 109798

Effective January 2006 we adopted SFAS No 123R see Note

16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 13 2009 we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged all of the

capital stock of wholly-owned subsidiary which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic cable

systems serving approximately 25000 basic subscribers for 28309674 shares of Mediacom Class common stock

held by Shivers As of December 31 2008 after giving effect to the completion of this transaction our total Class

and Class outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million See Notes 10 and 11
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions Deductions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Charged to Charged to

Beginning Costs and Other Costs and Other Balance at

of Period Expenses Accounts Expenses Accounts end of Period

December 31 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current receivables 3078 4148 5053 2173

Valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets 429480 122307 551787

December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current receivables 2173 5416 5482 2107

Valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets 551787 79220 631007

December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current receivables 2107 3165 2456 42 2774

Valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets 631007 46441 677448

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rule 3a- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by this report Based

upon that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures were effective as of December 31 2008

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13 a-i 5f
under the Exchange Act during the quarter ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of our company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f under the

Exchange Act as process designed by or under the supervision of our principal executive and principal financial

officers and effected by our board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on the fmancial statements

Because of our inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of our companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based

on this assessment management determined that as of December 31 2008 our companys internal control over

financial reporting was effective

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is

included herein

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Infonnation called for by Item 10 is set forth under the heading Directors and Executive Officers of the

Registrant in Item 4A of this annual report and in our proxy statement relating to the 2009 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders the Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information called for by Item 11 is set forth in our Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein

by this reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information called for by Item 12 is set forth in our Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein

by this reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Information called for by Item 13 is set forth in our Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein

by this reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information called for by Item 14 is set forth in our Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein

by this reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

Our financial statements as set forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements under Part II Item of

this Form 10-K are hereby incorporated by reference

Exhibits

The following exhibits which are numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K are filed herewith

or as noted incorporated by reference herein

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Share Exchange Agreement dated as of September 2008 by and between Mediacom Communications

Corporation Shivers Investments LLC and Shivers Trading Operating Company1

2.2 Significant Stockholder Agreement dated as of September 2008 by and between Mediacom

Communications Corporation and Rocco Commisso

2.3 Asset Transfer Agreement dated February 11 2009 by and among Mediacom Communications

Corporation certain operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC and the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom Broadband LLC

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Mediacom Communications Corporation2

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Mediacom Communications Corporation3

4.1 Form of certificate evidencing share of Class common stock2

4.2 Indenture relating to %%senior notes due 2011 of Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital

Corporation4

4.3 Indenture relating to V2% senior notes due 2013 of Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital

Corporation5

4.4 Indenture relating to /z% senior notes due 2015 of Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom

Broadband Corporation6

10.1a Credit Agreement dated as of October 21 2004 among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC the

lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent for the lenders7

10.1b Amendment No dated as of May 2006 to the Credit Agreement dated as of October 21 2004

among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank as

administrative agent for the Ienders8

10.1c Amendment No dated as of June 11 2007 to the Credit Agreement dated as of October 21 2004

among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank

as administrative agent for the lenders9

10.1d Amendment No dated as of June 11 2007 to the Credit Agreement dated of October 21 2004

among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase

Bank as administrative agent for the lenders9

10.2a Amendment and Restatement dated December 16 2004 of Credit Agreement dated as of July 18 2001

among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase

Bank as administrative agent for the lenders

10.2b Amendment No dated as of October 11 2005 to the Amendment and Restatement dated as of

December 16 2004 of Credit Agreement dated as of July 18 2001 among the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank as administrative agent for

the lenders1

86



10.2c Amendment No dated as of May 2006 to the Amendment and Restatement dated as of

December 16 2004 of Credit Agreement dated as of July 18 2001 among the operating subsidiaries

of Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent

for the lenders8

10.2d Amendment No dated as of June 11 2007 to the Amendment and Restatement dated as of

December 16 2004 of Credit Agreement dated as of July 18 2001 among the operating subsidiaries

of Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative

agent for the lenders9

10.2e Amendment No dated as of June 11 2007 to the Amendment and Restatement dates as of

December 16 2004 of Credit Agreement dated as of July 18 2001 among the operating subsidiaries

of Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative

agent for the 1enders9

10.3 Incremental Facility Agreement dated as of May 2006 between the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom LLC the lenders signatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative

agent8

10.4 Incremental Facility Agreement dated as of May 2006 between the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders signatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

administrative agent8

10.5 Incremental Facility Agreement dated as of May 29 2008 between the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom Broadband LLC the lenders signatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

administrative agent12

10.6 Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement by and among Mediacom

Communications Corporation Rocco Commisso BMO Financial Inc CB Capital Investors L.P

Chase Manhattan Capital L.P Morris Communications Corporation Private Market Fund L.P and

U.S Investor Inc.2

10.7 Fifth Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Mediacom LLC3

10.8 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Mediacom Broadband

LLC4

10.9 Compensation Agreement of Rocco Commisso5

10.10 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan06

10.11a 2003 Incentive P1an7

10.11 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers

10.1 1c Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers

10.12a Non-Employee Directors Equity Incentive Plan08

10.12b Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors

10.12c Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors

12.1 Schedule of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of Mediacom Communications Corporation

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31.1 Rule 3a-14a Certifications

32.1 Section 1350 Certifications
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Financial Statement Schedule

The financial statement schedule Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is part of this

Form 10-K

Compensatory Plan

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 2008 of Mediacom

Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-90879 of Mediacom

Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 21 2007 of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1998 of

Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2000 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 30 2005 of Mediacom Broadband LLC
and Mediacom Broadband Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30 2004 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31 2006 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2007 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

10
Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2004 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

11 Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30 2005 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

12
Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29 2008 of Mediacom Broadband LLC and

incorporated herein by reference

13
Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year
ended December 31 1999 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

14
Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-72440 of Mediacom Broadband

LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

15
Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31 2004 of

Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

16
Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-68306 of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference

17
Filed as Exhibit to the definitive Proxy Statement of Mediacom Communications Corporation on April 30
2003 and incorporated herein by reference

18
Filed as Exhibit to the definitive Proxy Statement of Mediacom Communications Corporation on April 29
2004 and incorporated herein by reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on our behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Mediacom Communications Corporation

March 13 2009

By Is Rocco COMMISSO

Rocco Commisso

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title Date

Is ROCCO COMMISSO Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 13 2008

Rocco Commisso principal executive officer

Is MARK STEPHAN Executive Vice President Chief Financial March 13 2008

Mark Stephan Officer and Director principal financial officer

and principal accounting officer

Is THOMAS REIFENHEISER Director March 13 2008

Thomas Reifenheiser

Is NATALE RICCIARDI Director March 13 2008

Natale Ricciardi

Is ROBERT WINIKOFF Director March 13 2008

Robert Winikoff
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Exhibit 12.1

Mediacom Communications Corporation and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Computatioh of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

For the Years Ended December 31
2007 20O6 2005

In thousands except ratio amounts

2008 2004

Earnings

Loss income before income taxes 19281 37563 65188 24966 13628
Interest expense net 213333 239015 227206 208264 192740
Amortization of capitalized interest 2872 3069 2678 2357 2055
Amortization of debt issuance costs 5070 4884 5998 8613 8725
Interest component of rent expenseW 6289 5787 5755 5267 4931

Earnings available for fixed charges 208283 215192 176449 199535 222079
Fixed Charges

Interest expense net 213333 239015 227206 208264 192740
Capitalized interest 4273 3818 3603 3756 3012
Amortization of debt issuance cost 5070 4884 5998 8613 8725
Interest component of rent expense 6289 5787 5755 5267 4931

Total fixed charges 228965 253504 242562 225900 209408
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges --- 1.06

Deficiency of earnings over fixed charges 20682 38312 66113 26365 12671

reasonable approximation one-third is deemed to be the interest factor included in rental expense
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 File No 333-

82124 and Form S-8 File Nos 333-41360 333-68306 333-122787 and 333-129008 of Mediacom

Communications Corporation of our report dated March 13 2009 relating to the financial statements financial

statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting which appear
in this Form 10

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

March 13 2009
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

Rocco Commisso certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mediacom Communications Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of
and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of end of the period covered

by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over fmancial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors

or persons performing the equivalent function

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process
summarize and report fmancial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is Rocco CoMMIsso

Rocco Commisso

Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer

March 13 2009
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Exhibit 31.1

Mark Stephan certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mediacom Communications Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other fmancial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of end of the period covered

by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors

or persons performing the equivalent function

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report fmancial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is MARK STEPHAN

Mark Stephan

Executive Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer

March 13 2009
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Mediacom Communications Corporation the Company on

Form 10-K for the period ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the

date hereof the Report Rocco Commisso Chief Executive Officer and Mark Stephan Chief Financial

Officer of the Company certif pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 that

the Report fuliy complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

By Is Rocco COMMISSO

Rocco Commisso

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

By Is MARK STEPHAN

Mark Stephan

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

March 13 2009
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Directorsand Officers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OFFICERS AND KEY MANAGEMENT

Rocco Commisso Rocco Commisso John Pascarelli

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President

Mediacom Communications Corporation Operations

Thomas Reifenheiser Charles Bartolotta Michael Rahimi

Retired Managing Director Senior Vice President Senior Vice President

JP Morgan Chase Co Enterprise Solutions and Marketing and Consumer Services

Field Senice Operations

Natale Ricciardi Italia Commisso Weinand Mark Stephan

President Senior Vice President ExecutWe Vice President and

Global Manufacturing Programming and Human Resources Chief Financial Officer

Pfizer Inc

Scott Seaton Calvin Craib J.R Walden

Partner Senior Vice President Senior Vice President

Londonderiy Capital LLC Corporate Finance and Technology

Business Development

Mark Stephan Tapan Dandnaik Brian Walsh

Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer Customer Service and Corporate Controller

Mediacom Communications Corporation Financial Operations

Robert Winikoff Steve Litwer Joseph Young

Partner Senior Vice President Senior Vice President

Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP Advertising Sales General Counsel and Secretary

OnMedia Division

Edward Pardini

Senior Vice President

Divisional Operations

North Central Division
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